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CORPORATE PROFILE
R E I

As a pioneer in the IT industry, Computer And Technologies (“C&T") Group
operates its business on a vision to build a better world with Information
Technology. Since our establishment in 1991 and listing in the main board
of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: SEHK00046) in 1998,
C&T Group has committed to providing best-of-breed software products
from human resources management to enterprise-level information
management, procurement management and retail management to
enable organisations to run their businesses and operations better. Apart
from software products, the Group also has a long-standing track record in
delivering effective IT solutions and quality services, including IT solutions
design and implementation, software development, online e-Services
as well as business processing outsourcing services, to enhance the
competitive advantages of our clients.

For more than two decades, C&T's products and services have been
widely adopted across multiple industries, from local conglomerates to
multinational corporations and government organisations. Leveraging on
C&T's products and services, our customers are enhancing their business
and operation covering from the basic necessities of our daily life including
clothing, food, housing and transportation to the highly-specialised and
professional services.

Apart from serving extensively the large commercial organisations, C&T is
also an active services provider for government organisations and the public
sector in delivering world-class innovative and large-scale mission-critical
IT solutions. Our credentials include implementation of the 2" generation
Automated Securities Trading System for Shanghai Stock Exchange, the
world-first and award winning electronic tendering system for the Hong
Kong SAR Government and the 7x24 mission-critical customer care and
billing system supporting over 2.7 million households in Hong Kong. Our
professional services also extend to integration of modern technologies
and management best practice into traditional business segments. The
award-winning cemetery management system we built for the Board of
Management of the Chinese Permanent Cemeteries is one of the many
successful examples of ours.

Our staff is the most important factor for our success. We recruit and
develop high caliber professionals who are both knowledgeable and
skillful in latest technology spectrums including web-based development,
cloud services, mobile applications and security networks. Our people are
also experienced in large-scale software implementation ranging from
project management and technical design to system development and
maintenance. Our sustained accomplishment is also a reflection of our
committed practice of IT development standards and methods in related to
resources and project management, quality control, system implementation
and support methodologies.

Together with our extensive business domain knowledge in human
resources, information management, procurement handling and retail
solutions management, C&T is committed to providing all our clients with
best-of-breed software products and high quality system development and
related services and, putting all these together, to building a better world
with Information Technology for all of us.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

EABEERETENLSE BB XFE (R
ESEHRERE U EEREHE—EEEZFHR
MESREEEK B—NWNL—FKZ - BB
— AN NFRREBB T ER T (2R
SEHK00046) LAZR » BB = E — E BN IR HAEIK
HENRHER  SBEEEANBREEECERE
AWENERE KRBETERTEEE  FSEE
BEF AU EHEE MIENE - lREMFERID -
AEBMERNERE BRI R REREDR
BHEBRAERERENEERLS  BEEERE
fRR T R RTT - BFMAE  BLEETFRR
EAREBRIZINARE - WEERARPAHR

g

“+EFR  MBERNMRBERXIRITENRF]
FEZERR » EPBAAMACXEBNUEE
BN E MR - P ER LR R EEE
TBEREZ  ARRETEERNLELHESH
BEERY - 2 REEPEERGNEE LW
RRIFTEK °

B T B2 B R EL T SRS - B IR B R IR AT
AR R D EREIRERTAR AR B R KREE
EREEARAT R - BHfIEEREHAILERESE
BREFZGMEBE _REDCESFRSH R
REBRFRBBZIZ2HEENBERNE R
BRES  MER-EUXEREEBHBIBI0EF
RENE2XREFEPRELKRE R4 - HANE
ERBITIEREFRAR R EEREEBRE
EEREHEY - HWAIR/EAKEESEERE
SRVNEEERRSRITERMRZEDOF 2

— o

BTEHRMBBHA IEPT - RIVEBTEHHRE
RBEEEHNNREB(REEGER i
R - mBEAEA R 2EK)HEEREM
MR BEES - WFIWAS HREIREE
B R MR ETAE KRBV S R A5 3% M R
HEEELELR - RISERSHSHKH
NENETHRMBHERERRIBERERE HE®
H - RRBE R IETENESRRERFEER
HAEBRIE-

BERMEANER  BEAERE KBRELT
ERRNREESEBRENEBAD - BHEE
DIIBNBBREPRETAAENTERRE
B R AR RS - SREALEIR - WAE
LLAEERRAE AFEE RS -



CORPORATE INFORMATION
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
DRER ()
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBHE

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t—-HLEE

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
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HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS$ Million

BEAT BEBT BEBT BEET BEAET
Revenue WA 187.1 2108 219.1 2587 253.9
Profit for the year REF T 48] 488 44.1 503 543
HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cents
A &AL AL Al B4l
Basic earnings per share BREARRF
('EPS") ([EREARN]) 20.03 20.26 1827 20.81 22.43
Dividends per share GRS
(‘DPS") (Mg E]) 15.00 16.00 14.00 17.00 22.00
Revenue Profit for the year EPS vs DPS
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERBE

Dear Shareholders,

OVERVIEW

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Computer And
Technologies Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present
the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
"Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Group's overall revenue slightly dropped by HK$4.8 million, or 1.8% to
HK$253.9 million (2016: HK$258.7 million). The gross profit of the Group
also reduced by HK$2.6 million, or 1.8% to HK$143.5 million (2016: HK$146.1
million) while the gross profit margin was maintained at around 56.5% (2016:
56.5%). The drop was primarily due to delay in project completions of the
Group's Solutions Services business™ in early 2017. The respective delivery
progress had gradually been resumed in second half of the year and the
result of the related business was improved in the corresponding period.
On the other hand, the Group’s Application Software business™” recorded
sustained growth during the year under review.

The Group recorded an increment in other non-operating incomes during
the reporting year. In particular, the Group’s Application Software business
in PRC successfully received tax rebates of HK$4.4 million (2016: HK$0.2
million) for some of value added tax ("VAT") previously paid®. The Group
also recorded valuation gains on financial assets and investment properties
of HK$5.0 million (2016: HK$1.2 million) in view of continual appreciation of
related assets.

Apart from increasing resources in research and development ("R&D") of its
existing application software products, during the year under review, the
Group had also incurred additional development costs of HK$4.1 million in
building a software to replace an existing system under a long term services
contract (“Contract”) with a department of the HKSAR Government (the
“Government”). Considering that such software replacement will generate
cost savings under the Contract in the future, related costs had been
capitalised as deferred development costs and would amortise over the
remaining contract period.

With the abovementioned, the Group's consolidated net profit attributable
to shareholders recorded an increase of 7.9% to HK$54.3 million (2016:
HKS$50.3 million). The basic earnings per share increased to 22.43 HK cents
(2016: 20.81 HK cents) or improved by 7.8% compared with last year.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(H)

OVERVIEW (CONTINUED)

In view of sustained healthy financial position and as celebrating the 20™
anniversary of the Company being publicly listed, the Board recommended
the distributions of a final dividend of 7 HK cents and a special dividend of
5 HK cents (2016: a final dividend of 7 HK cents and a special dividend of
3 HK cents) per ordinary share with a scrip dividend alternative. Counting
the interim and special dividends of 10 HK cents being paid (2016: an
interim dividend of 7 HK cents) together with these proposed dividends,
the Group's full year dividend payout had reached a record high of 22 HK
cents.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Application software

With the improved business performance and benefited from significant
increase in VAT refunds, the Group's Application Software business recorded
a satisfactory results with double-digit growth in profit contributions.

The revenue of the Group’s Human Resources Management Software
("HRMS") business was mildly improved during the year. The business
continued to grow with more new contracts acquired from different
industries in the region, including a diversified global conglomerate with
around 10,000 employees, an international multi-channel retailer and a
leading global financial services provider.

During the reporting period, the Group entered into a long-term
partnership agreement with Shanghai Foreign Service (Group) Co., Ltd.
("FSG") for the provision of payroll outsourcing services through the Group’s
HRMS Platform. By synergising the effects of the Group's robust HRMS and
FSG's huge customer base in PRC, this partnership enables both industry
leaders to extend customer reach and accelerate business growth in the
scope of payroll outsourcing.

In December 2017, the Group’s HRMS operating subsidiary in Hong
Kong was granted the ISO 20000-1:2011 certification by the International
Organisation for Standardisation (“ISO”). The ISO 20000 based on the ITIL
V3 framework is considered the foremost IT service management standard
in the world, which enables organisations to ensure their processes are
aligned with the needs of the business, customers and international best
practices. The certification demonstrated the Group’s commitment in
providing quality services to its customers consistently.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(E)

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Application software (continued)

Besides, the Group’s HRMS was named one of the “Best 100 Human
Resource Service Brands in Greater China” by HRoot's Human Capital
Management magazine for four consecutive years and awarded the “"HR
Leading Enterprise Award” by INFOOBS.com, CCIDNET.com and National
Public Service Platform. These awards not only showed the industry
recognitions but also reaffirmed the Group's competency in delivering high
quality services.

The overall revenue and profit contributions from the Group’s other
software businesses, including Enterprise Information Management
Software (“EIMS”), Enterprise Procurement Management Software
("EPMS") and Enterprise Retail Management Software ("ERMS”) were stably
maintained during the reporting year.

Supported by the various enhancement orders from existing customers,
the revenue recognised by ERMS business was improved during the
reporting year. The EIMS business was also stably maintained and was
named one of the “Top 25 Document Management Solution Providers”
by APAC ClOoutlook . While the service revenue recognised by EPMS
business was dropped after the completion of a milestone project in 2016,
the management foresees the performance of related business would
be improved upon the conclusion of the various new contracts under
negotiation.

During the reporting period, the Group had launched a numbers of new
Software modules and Software as a Service (“SaaS") over Cloud platform.
In particular, the Group's EIMS is integrated with Azure, an enterprise-grade
cloud platform powered by Microsoft. Users of VitalDoc (one of the Group’s
EIMS products) on Azure can collaborate blissfully anytime, anywhere, by
embracing digital document management and sharing with seamless
integration of Microsoft Office applications on the Azure cloud.

The new Work Force Management (“WFM") module of the Group’s HRMS
was launched in second half of 2017 and received enormous market interest
during the launch roadshow held in Beijing, Shanghai and Guangzhou in
November 2017. This new WFM software will bring more convenience and
transparency to the enterprises by giving employees and managers more
control over their work autonomy, thus realising the interactive integration
of mobile intelligent management and individual service.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(H)

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Application software (continued)

In September 2017, our flagship ERMS, ChainStorePlus also released
the Member e-Reg module, a mobile-centric application designed for
multinational retail groups to better manage their membership registration
and management system.

Solutions and integration services

As mentioned in our interim results announcement, the Group's Solutions
Business had experienced some delays in project completions at the
beginning of the reporting year. Although those projects had resumed on
tracks in the second half of the year, it had impacted the revenue and profit
contributions of the related business for the full year to drop by 8.0% and
12.0%, respectively.

During the reporting year, the Group continue to carry on the second 10-
year services contract to support the Customer Care and Billing System
("CCBS") for the Water Supplies Department of the Government. Additional
development costs were incurred in fulfilling certain enhancements
and new software development on the CCBS. Considered that such
development works would generate cost savings in the future, the related
development costs of HK$4.1 million had been capitalised as deferred
development costs by end of the reporting year.

In July 2017, the Group awarded contracts for three categories of services
under the Standing Offer Agreement for Quality Professional Services
4 ("SOA-QPS4") by the HKSAR Government for a period of 48 months
starting from 31 July 2017. The three categories of services include
pre-implementation & independent program/project management services
(Category 1), implementation & combined system development services
(Category 3 Major Group), and information security and independent
testing services (Category 4). In addition, the business continued to acquire
new service contracts from government organisations and commercial
enterprises, including Hong Kong Deposit Protection Board, Food and
Environmental Hygiene Department and Education Bureau under the
HKSAR Government.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(E)

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Solutions and integration services (continued)

Building on these new SOA-QPS4 agreement and other multi-year service
engagements with organisations such as Hong Kong Airport Authority, the
management expects the business will continue to benefit from its solid
foundation and able to deliver a satisfactory result in the coming year.

The performance of the Group's Integration Services business™ in PRC was
stably maintained comparing to same period last year.

e-Service and related business

Due to decreasing demand from an existing customer, the revenue as well as
the result of the Group's BPO® service was dropped moderately. As a result,
the profit contribution from the e-Service and related business®? dropped
8.4% during the year under review.

Market share of the Group’s GETS®! business was improved and profit
contribution from the related business is slightly better than last year. It is
most important that the Group’s GETS license had further been renewed for
another six-year till the end of year 2024, which is momentous for the Group
to continue our commitment to providing high-value and cost-effective
services for Hong Kong's trading community.

Investments

The Group's investments segment recorded an increase in profit of 97.1%
to HK$7.8 million (2016: HK$4.0 million). The change was in line with the
increase in fair value gains of the investment properties and financial assets
held.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

EBEE (&)

R R R E R (&)

HRIR L HT H) SOA-QPS4TH 8 B B 2 F RIS R 8
(BRABRSEER)  EEEBEHRERBSESE
XENEEENRENER K FRIEES -

HEFRBPMEL - NEERTEZ KKRE %
BUMERBRRFRE °

EFRBERAEBER
HRRETFHNERMD - AEEZEXZHRIE
SNAIBRTSO 2 WA R R AEEE Tk - Bt - B
TR MAABEBINE M BERNBREFE THK
84% °

REBZGETSVEB 2 TSN B BEMAENRE
BUEF EWMEREF - REBFEFE SRS
HIGETSH I EE BB A INFEE_T_F
FE ARERGEERBBEIHHREASE
1B M & AR 2 IR

RE&E

AREEBIE 7 #8315 )4 A 3B HN97.1% 2 7808 & 7T
(ZF—"F 14008 8TT) - ZEHRMFRE
MENFEEENFEREIEE -



CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(H)

PROSPECT

Looking ahead, the uncertainties or even threats over Sino-US relations, the

impact of US interest rate hikes and the consequences of curbs on capital
outflows in Mainland China would continue to impact the global economy
in 2018. Despite these uncertainties, the Group will keep monitoring the
business environment cautiously and remain committed to devoting more
resources in the software and solutions businesses and look for regional
acquisition opportunities to accelerate its business growth.

Footnotes:

[

The Group's Solutions and Integration Services business includes (i) Development
Services for the provision of IT solutions implementation and application software
development; (i) Managed Services for the provision of IT and related operation/
infrastructure outsourcing services; and (iii) Integration Services for the provision of
IT systems and network infrastructure with related design, implementation and on-
going support services.

The Group's Application Services business engages in the provision of application
software and e-business services for enterprises including (i) the provision of
enterprise application software with implementation and ongoing support
services for Human Resource Management, Enterprise Procurement Management,
Enterprise Information Management and Enterprise Retail Management (collectively
the “Application Software”); and (ii) the Government Electronic Trading Services
("GETS"), cloud services, business process outsourcing (“BPO”") services and other
related value added services (collectively the "e-Service and related business”).

Such refund can generally be applied for all invoices issued with 17% VAT paid for
the sales of software license by an enterprise with “double soft certification” in PRC.

APAC ClOoutlook is a magazine with 6,000 qualified subscribers in the Asia Pacific
region that aims to provide a platform for top ClOs, CTOs and other senior IT
managers and decision makers to share their experience, wisdom and advice with
the enterprise IT community.

Since 2004, the Group has been granted a license (the “GETS License”) from the
Government for the provision of front-end Government Electronic Trading Services
for processing certain official trade-related documents. The Group's GETS License
was further renewed in early 2018 for operation of additional six years until the end
of 2024.

The Group’s BPO business comprises the provision of services for the operations
and support of specific business functions or processes of customers.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(E)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and gross profit

Both the overall revenue and gross profit were slightly shrunk during the
year. The revenue dropped by HKS$4.8 million, or 1.8% to HK$253.9 million
(2016: HK$258.7 million) and the gross profit dropped by HK$2.6 million, or
1.8% to HKS143.5 million (2016: HKS$146.1 million).

The decrease in overall revenue was primarily due to delay in project
completions of the Group’s Solutions Services business in early 2017.
Although the situation being rectified during the second half of the year,
the improvement was still not big enough to recover all the adverse
impacts. On the other hand, the overall gross profit margin had not been
deteriorated and maintained at around 56.5% (2016: 56.5%).

Non-operating incomes and gains, net (included other
incomes and gains, net, foreign exchange differences,
net and fair value gains, net)

Non-operating incomes and gains (included other incomes and gains, net,
foreign exchange differences, net, and fair value gains, net recorded an
increase of 110.9% to HKS$13.3 million (2016: HK$6.3 million). The change
was in line with the significant increase in VAT refund received and the
appreciation of investment properties and financial assets held.

Expenses

The Group's overall expenses had no significant change from last year.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense slightly increased by 1.0% to HK$6.5 million (2016:
HK$6.5 million) compared with same period last year.

The Group's overall effective tax rate for the tax charge in 2017 was around
10.7%, whereas in 2016 was 11.4%. The effective tax rate was lower than
the Hong Kong statutory profits tax rate because several types of onshore
incomes/gain, including dividend, bank interest income and fair value gains
from the revaluation of investment properties, were not subject to the
Hong Kong profits tax. Besides, the reversal of certain withholding taxes on
dividend and the recognition of deferred tax credit arising from amortisation
of other intangible assets had further driven down the effective tax rate.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(H)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Net profit

The profit for the year attributable to shareholders increased to HK$54.3
million (2016: HK$50.3 million) while the net profit margin (profit for the
year attributable to shareholders divided by revenue) rose to 21.4% (2016:
19.5%). The improvement was mainly due to the increase of non-operating
incomes and gains, net as abovementioned.

Non-current assets

The Group's non-current assets as at 31 December 2017 slightly dropped by
0.1% to HK$266.7 million (31 December 2016: HK$267.0 million). The change
was mainly due to the net of the amortisation of other intangible assets
and depreciation of property, plant and equipment, addition of deferred
development costs for a solution project and appreciation of investment
properties held.

The Group reviewed and considered no impairment indication to the
carrying value of goodwill during the year under review.

Current assets

The Group’s current assets as at 31 December 2017 slightly increased
by 1.3% to HK$341.4 million (31 December 2016: HK$337.2 million). The
change mainly represented the net results of (i) decrease in cash and bank
balances (including pledged bank deposits) as there were cash outflows
for the dividend payments of 2016 final and 2017 interim results and the
final payment for completion of respective acquisition; (ii) increase in
amount due from contract customers as there was an increase in progress
development awaiting for billing; (iii) decrease in trade receivables as
good progress had been made in the collection of some long outstanding
balances; and (iv) increase in inventories and prepayments, deposits and
other receivables due to increase in work in progress for trade orders
scheduled to be delivered in the first quarter of 2018.

The Group maintains strict control over its outstanding trade receivables
and considered that the trade receivables (net of impairment provision)
were all recoverable in the foreseeable future.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(E)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Current liabilities

The Group's current liabilities as at 31 December 2017 dropped 3.6% to
HK$139.9 million (31 December 2016: HK$145.2 million). The change was
primarily due to the net effect of reduction in consideration payable on an
acquisition as payment made in early 2017 and increase in trade and other
payables for purchase orders placed by the Integration Services business in
fulfilling its trade orders.

Segment assets and liabilities

The segment assets of Applications Services business remained at
approximate the same level while the segment liabilities decreased due to
the payment of HK$14.8 million in early 2017 for an acquisition taken place
in prior year.

The segment assets of Solutions and Integration Services business increased
in line with the increase in deferred development costs arising from
Solutions Services business while the segment liabilities increased in line
with the increase in trade and other payables for purchase orders placed by
the Integration Services business in fulfilling its trade orders.

Segment assets of Investments business increased due to the appreciation
in value of investment properties and financial assets held.

Equity

Total equity as at 31 December 2017 mildly increased by 2.6% to HK$453.0
million (31 December 2016: HK$441.5 million). The change was mainly due
to the profit earned in 2017 partially offset by the dividend payments for
2016 final and 2017 interim results.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(H)

TREASURY POLICY

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity position
throughout the period under review. The Group strives to reduce exposure
to credit risk by performing ongoing credit assessments and evaluations
of the financial status of its customers. To manage liquidity risk, the Board
closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity
structure of the Group's assets, liabilities and other commitments can meet
its funding requirements from time to time.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had pledged an investment property
with a fair value of HK$60.0 million (31 December 2016: HK$57.0 million),
listed debt and equity securities of HK$13.4 million (31 December 2016:
HKS$12.0 million) and bank balances of HK$1.1 million (31 December 2016
HK$21.9 million) to secure certain general banking facilities including
guarantee/performance bonds facilities granted to the Group/subsidiaries
of the Company in aggregate of HK$106.8 million (31 December 2016:
HK$105.8 million) of which HK$20.5 million (31 December 2016: HK$19.7
million) had been utilised as at 31 December 2017.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s bank balances and cash (excluded
pledged bank deposit) was HK$246.5 million (31 December 2016: HK$229.4
million).

All of the Group’s on hand fundings are in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
and US dollars. The Group had not adopted any hedging policies, as these
currencies carry relatively low exchange fluctuation risks. Nevertheless, the
Group had been monitoring the foreign exchange exposures closely and
hedging any significant foreign currency exposure in order to minimise the
exchange risk should the needs arose.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no bank borrowings (31 December
2016: Nil). The Group's current ratio, representing current assets divided by
current liabilities, was 2.4 (2016: 2.3) and gearing ratio, representing total
liabilities divided by total assets, was 25.5% (2016: 26.9%).
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(E)

REMUNERATION POLICY AND NUMBER OF
EMPLOYEES

The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance, working
experience and prevailing market conditions. Apart from basic salary,
discretionary bonus and other incentives are offered to employees of the
Group to reward their performance and contributions.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed 327 full time employees and
6 contract-based employees (31 December 2016: 334 full time employees
and 8 contract-based employees).

As at 31 December 2017, the Company operates a share option scheme and
a share award scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards

to the employees who contribute to the success of the operations as well as
retain them for the continual development of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Save as disclosed in the report, the Group has no significant investments
held as at 31 December 2017.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

The Group did not have any material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries
during the reporting year and up to the date of this annual report.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in the report, there was no specific plan for material
investments or capital assets as at 31 December 2017.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed in the report, the Group has no material contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2017.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(H)

FINAL AND SPECIAL DIVIDENDS

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of 7 HK cents
and a special dividend of 5 HK cents (2016: a final dividend of 7 HK cents
and a special dividend of 3 HK cents) per ordinary share for the year ended
31 December 2017.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Company’s Register of Members will be closed from Thursday,
17 May 2018 to Wednesday, 23 May 2018, both days inclusive, for the
purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote
at the AGM. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM to be
held on Wednesday, 23 May 2018, all transfer documents, accompanied
by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s
Share Registrars, Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Wednesday, 16 May 2018.

In addition, the Company’s Register of Members will be closed from
Tuesday, 29 May 2018 to Wednesday, 30 May 2018, both days inclusive, for
the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed final
and special dividends. In order to qualify for the proposed final and special
dividends, shareholders must lodge their duly stamped instruments of
transfer, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, to the Company's
Share Registrars, Tricor Tengis Limited, for registration no later than 4:30 p.m.
on Monday, 28 May 2018. During this period, no transfers of shares will be
registered. The proposed final and special dividends will be offered with a
scrip alternative for shareholders to elect to receive such final and special
dividends wholly or partly in the form of new fully paid shares instead of in
cash. The new shares to be issued pursuant to the scrip dividend scheme
that are subject to their listing being granted by The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

A circular containing details of this scrip dividend scheme will be dispatched
to shareholders together with an election form for the scrip dividend on
or about Thursday, 14 June 2018. The final and special dividends will be
distributed on or about Monday, 23 July 2018 to shareholders whose names
appear on the Company’s Register of Members on Wednesday, 30 May
2018.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEHE(E)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an audit committee which was established in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purpose of reviewing
and providing supervision over the Group's financial reporting process,
risk management and internal controls. The Audit Committee comprises
three independent non-executive directors of the Company. The Audit
Committee has reviewed the Group's consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2017 with the management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed risk
management and internal controls and financial reporting matters related
to the preparation of the annual results for the year ended 31 December
2017.

APPRECIATIONS

On behalf of the Board and the management, | would like to express our
sincere thanks to all employees, shareholders, customers and business
partners for their supports to the Group during the reporting year.

By Order of the Board

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
Ng Cheung Shing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 13 March 2018
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESkEREERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ir. Ng Cheung Shing, aged 56, the founder and Chairman, is responsible
for the corporate strategies and business development of the Group. Ir. Ng
graduated with a Bachelor of Science Degree in Computer Science from
the University of Manchester in the United Kingdom in 1984 and has over
30 years of experience in IT industry. Before establishing the Company,
Ir. Ng held executive positions in companies such as Hewlett-Packard Asia
Pacific Ltd. and Sun Hung Kai (China) Ltd. Ir. Ng is the Honorary Fellow of
Vocational Training Council and The Professional Validation Council of
Hong Kong Industries and a fellow of the Hong Kong Computer Society and
the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers. He is Founding Chairman of the
Hong Kong Information and Software Industry Association and Chairman
of Information and Technology Sub-Committee of the Chinese General
Chamber of Commerce. Ir. Ng was also the awardees of “Young Industrialist
Awards of Hong Kong”, “Ten Outstanding Young Persons Award of Hong
Kong” and “Directors of the Year Awards”.

Ir.Ng is the brother-in-law of Mr. Leung King San, Sunny.

Mr. Cheung Wai Lam, aged 54, the Group's Chief Executive Officer, is in
charge of the overall business operation of the Group. Mr. Cheung has over
30 years of experience in IT and consulting business ranging from software
development to enterprise solutions implementation and is one of the
founders of Y&A Professional Services Ltd. (the “Y&A”"). Mr. Cheung joined
the Group in 2006 when Y&A became a subsidiary of the Group. Before Y&A,
he held various consulting positions in IBM in Hong Kong and Australia.
Mr. Cheung graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor Degree in Computer Science in 1985 and an Executive Master
Degree in Business Administration in 2011. Mr. Cheung is currently studying
the Doctor of Business Administration degree in the City University of Hong
Kong.

Mr. Leung King San, Sunny, aged 56, is responsible for finance and
administration strategies of the Group. Mr. Leung has over 30 years of
experience in finance, administration and planning in the IT industry. Before
joining the Group, Mr. Leung held senior management positions in IBM
and its associated company in Asia Pacific. Mr. Leung graduated from the
Simon Fraser University in Canada with a Bachelor’s Degree in Business
Administration in 1983.

Mr. Leung is the brother-in-law of Ir. Ng Cheung Shing.

BITES

RRBELETIREM som BIMARTIE &
BEAEEZOCERBRERER - REER
—HN\NFERESBHNFASER  REKK
KREBESL  HEMMRITEARRIOFER -
ERIMAREIR - REEENEEEZABERAA
N E (PR BRARSZZHE AR L ETTHE
i - REERBBRBENRBNE BT EEE
EREERL  YRBBEMBEREEIIZM
BEeEREE - AT ERMIEMERSAIE
ERMBATERAHEEMMMRZEEER -
RAEEDEIBFEEFFIERE] BB TAHK
HEF IR REHE R IFRE -

RIEERRSH LR

RERRE 5458 - AKETTHAE - AEAS
Bz BREXBEE - REEREMBERNERZ
BHRAEFLSR  BRRERNTRBEEERE
EERDR - URELRAREMERARAR
(TEZDEMAZ— - REEBESBNR-_TETX
FREAEEZHB AR MMARNEE - R0
AEZRT - R EE FORIMN IBMYE £ 2 1 B A B
7o RAEEDHIR - NNAFR-_FT——FFX
REBRNAR  BEXEMAZLEMUNTH
ERITHELT M - RELRBREEUTAL
(EEIRmERIE LM -

REHFKLE > sopx 0 BRI AKE 2B RIT
BUREE  REEENEARRFE T - EE LK
177 E A BB 0FAR - RIMAKREER - 2%
EERBWREAESARZBEARHEISRE
BRI - REAEER NN\ =FHEMERAEPIIES
REBEE BEIRETERSLSM -

RELERRRBFRENPILS

MEESEERERAR —EB—LFFR



20

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EEREREEE(E)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Ng Kwok Keung, aged 44, is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group
and the Secretary of the Company. He has over 20 years of experience
in accounting, auditing, finance and business advisory. Before joining
the Group, he was a financial controller of a Hong Kong listed company
and worked as a manager of assurance and advisory business services
department of an international accounting firm. Mr. Ng graduated from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Bachelor of Arts Degree
in Accountancy and is a Certified Public Accountant of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ha Shu Tong, aged 69, joined the Board in 1998. Mr. Ha has involved
in the financial industry for over 40 years and has substantial experience in
corporate finance and corporate development.

Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew, aged 58, PhD, joined the Board in
1998. He is Vice-President (Development & External Relations) and Chair
professor of Information Systems & E-Commerce at the City University
of Hong Kong. Professor Lee is currently the Chairman of Hong Kong
Committee for Pacific Economic Cooperation. Professor Lee is an
independent non-executive director of China Goldjoy Group Limited (Stock
Code: 1282). He holds the following U.K. university degrees: BEng (first-class
honours) in electronic engineering & MBA in business studies (University
of Sheffield); Msc in computation (University of Oxford); PhD in computer
science (University of Manchester); LLB and LLM in commercial & corporate
law (University of London). He is a chartered engineer of the UK Engineering
Council, and a professional member of the British Computer Society.
Professor Lee has been admitted as a barrister-at-law in Hong Kong and
England & Wales.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, MH, FCCA, FCPA (Practising), ACA,
CTA(HK), FHKIoD, aged 64, joined the Board in 2004. Mr. Ting is an
accountant in public practice as a partner of Messrs. Ting Ho Kwan & Chan,
Certified Public Accountants since 1987. He is currently a non-executive
director of Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited (Stock Code:
116) and holds independent non-executive directorship in six other
listed companies namely, China SCE Property Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1966), Dongyue Group Limited (Stock Code: 189), New Silkroad
Culturaltainment Limited (Stock Code: 472), Texhong Textile Group Limited
(Stock Code: 2678), Tong Ren Tang Technologies Company Limited (Stock
Code: 1666) and Tongda Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 698).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yeung Sai Cheong, Steve, aged 52, is in charge of the corporate
development as well as Application Software business units of the Group.
Mr. Yeung joined the Group in 1998 and has over 25 years of [T experience
in sales and business development. He graduated from the University of
Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Science Degree in Computer Studies in 1988
and received a Master Degree in Business Administration from the Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology in 1999.

Mr. Kwok Ka Chun, Erik, aged 39, joined the Group in 2018 and is in
charge of the Research & Development division focusing on the Group’s
software products. Before joining the Group, Mr. Kwok had worked in both
Canada and Mainland China where he led multiple R&D teams across
Canada, China and India working on cross-industry software products and
vertical solutions. In addition to building R&D teams and products, Mr. Kwok
was responsible for sales development activities and project delivery for
multinational corporations. Mr. Kwok graduated from The Simon Fraser
University in Canada with a Bachelor's Degree in Computing Science.

BYFHTES(E)

TRE%4% © MH, FCCA, FCPA (Practising), ACA,
CTA (HK), FHKloD - 645% * RZ—ZEZMF NAE
Fg o ThAER - NNEFRETHESFRT
MARSERITTZARA - thRAERARAEES

B BR AR (RO - 116) ZIERITEE R
ANERHMETARZEBIIENITES » HHlAF
BEEITRER AR (BN - 1966) « RESE
BAR DR (IMASE : 189) « AR IKER A
RI(RMBASR - 472) » RUHBEEER QA
MRS 2678) ~ ERFACERRERRHBRA
A (RDRSR  1666) RaBESEBEIER AR AR (IR
MR 698) ©

SREEE

BHERLE 25 AREAKELEXERNER
BHEBEM - BEER - ANNFEMARE
B REMBMRITERARLFLR  BEHE
MEBERBA - BEER-NANN\FEERE
/%7('5—1 FEBMBLEM - WR—NAANFER
FERARTRERRLTSM -

BREALE 395 —T—\FEMALEE - +
BT 0 WEITHEANKEMEFES ©
AREER - BREZDRIRMEAR R FE A
THE - AHEREMEK - B REENZEH
TEG - HEBTERTERREERRTER
BT EBR RERIN - BELETARHE
BRAPHURBEHRRAFHIEED RN - ?B?EEJWJD
ERAMEIRBEE  BAERMBEL

fiL °

MEESEERERAR —EB—LFFR



22

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CEEARRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard of corporate
governance within a sensible framework with an emphasis on the principles
of integrity, transparency and accountability. The board of directors of the
Company (the “Board”) believes that good corporate governance is essential
to the success of the Company and to the enhancement of shareholders’
value.

The Board opined that the Company has complied with the code provision
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG code”) as stipulated in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) during the reporting year.

The Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure
that its corporate governance practices are similar to those provided in the
CG Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises four executive directors and three
independent non-executive directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr.Ng Cheung Shing (Chairman)

Mr. Cheung Wai Lam (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Leung King San, Sunny

Mr. Ng Kwok Keung

Independent non-executive directors (“INEDs”):
Mr. Ha Shu Tong

Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen

INEDs constitute more than one-third of the Board. The Company has
received from each INED a confirmation of his independence pursuant
to the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and considers that all INEDs are independent. One of the three INEDs is a
professional accountant, which is in compliance with the requirement of
the Listing Rules.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

RERER

ﬂﬁjﬁ%ﬂé?ﬁfﬁf’%Z?E AR =K FRE
CARSERE  SEREREEERRA

AEZE([EFE DREEREEERYEA

AZRY RRFREETIIFFEE -

I-‘r>

£

M mE
eell D) ﬁ> D)

BExeRR- $/&TEA#&¢¢F HETE B
BRGMERARER ETARN LRI H
1 4Fﬁ§|JEH¢%”§./E\?FE\'J(Fﬁ%a/m—r,ﬁJJJ)ﬁﬁﬁ
ZSTRNEX -

RRARBRERIUE HHEHE EE{% XERER
HRERTRFTHERE

Exg

EESEAHNEITESE N =B IFNITE
R

BITES:
SRBRLE(FE)
RERTE(TTEARE)
BEFRAE

REIR LA

BIUFHITES
BRfZEE
FEZHE
TRBNE

%%A_“Z A LB IFAITESMEK - A
RAEWBZRBULIFATESRE LMRRIE

313ﬂ P8BS M1 S E R BB 1 2 HERR K
WRRPIABIYIFNITESTHEEY - =8B

3F$ﬂﬁi$qﬂﬁqﬂ—u?,%:'ﬁ/a\imiﬁ,ﬁﬂ%ﬁmz%
ZETAD -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERRE (R)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

One-third of the directors shall retire from office at every annual general
meeting and all directors (including non-executive directors) are subject
to retirement by rotation once every three year in accordance with the
Company's bye-laws and the CG Code. Retiring directors are eligible for
re-election at the annual general meeting at which they retire. Any director
appointed to fill a causal vacancy is subject to re-election at the next annual
general meeting of the Company. Separate resolutions are proposed for the
election of each director.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element
in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development. In designing the Board's composition, Board diversity has
been considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. Board appointments will continue
to be made on a merit basis and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on Board.

The current board composition was also evaluated by reference to, among
other things, the gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service of each
director, against the Company’s business model and specific needs.

As of the date of this report, the Board comprises seven directors and is
characterised by great diversity, whether considered in terms of age, culture
and educational background, professional experience, skills and knowledge.

The Company believes diversity is important to enhance the Board’s
effectiveness by encouraging a diversity of perspectives and to maintain
high standards of corporate governance. The Company will continue to
monitor and develop new objectives for implementing and achieving
improved diversity on the Board as and when it considers appropriate with
regard to the specific needs of the Company from time to time.

The directors’ biographical information is set out in the “Directors and Senior
Management” section on pages 19 to 21. Two executive directors, Mr. Ng
Cheung Shing and Mr. Leung King San, Sunny, are brother-in-law. Save as
disclosed, there is no relationship between each of the Board members.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Board has the ultimate decision on the Group's overall strategy, annual
budget, annual and interim results, appointment or retirement of directors,
significant contracts and transactions as well as other significant policies
and financial matters. The Board has delegated the daily operations and
administrations to the Group’s management.

According to the division of responsibilities between the Chairman and
CEO approved by the Board, the Chairman is mainly responsible for long-
term strategic development of the Group as well as operation of the Board,
to make sure that the Board is run in the best interests of the Group and
all the Board meetings are effectively planned and carried out. CEO mainly
focuses on the overall business operations of the Group, assists the Board to
formulate strategies for the Group and to make sure they are implemented
successfully. CEO is fully responsible to the Board for overall business
operations of the Group.

Every director is entitled to have access to Board papers and related
materials and has access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary. In addition, every director has separate and independent access
to the Company'’s senior management to facilitate them to make informed
decisions. All directors, in the discharge of their duties, are allowed to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at a
reasonable cost to be borne by the Company.

The Company has not established any committee responsible for the
corporate governance function of the Group and the function has
been collectively performed by the Board. The Board acknowledges the
overseeing of the corporate governance function by the Board collectively.

During the year, the Board has reviewed and monitored the training and
continuous professional development of directors and senior management.
The Board has also reviewed and ensured compliance of the relevant legal
and regulatory requirements, the code of conducts, the CG Code and the
disclosures in the Corporate Governance Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERRE (R)

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Directors should participate in continuous professional development to
ensure their contributions to the Board remain informed and relevant.
Each newly appointed director is provided with necessary induction and
information to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the Company’s
operations and businesses as well as his responsibilities under the relevant
statutes, laws, rules and regulations.

Directors’ training is a continuing process. The Company updates directors
on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices. Directors
are encouraged to participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. In addition, all directors are
provided with monthly updates on the Group's performance, position and
prospects to enable the Board as a whole to discharge their duties.

During the year, all directors, namely Mr. Ng Cheung Shing, Mr. Cheung
Wai Lam, Mr. Leung King San, Sunny, Mr. Ng Kwok Keung, Mr. Ha Shu Tong,
Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew and Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, have
participated in appropriate continuous professional development, including
the training provided by the Company on 31 May 2017, to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
TERERHRE (K)

BOARD MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

In order to achieve a high standard of corporate governance, the Board
held at least four regular meetings at approximately quarterly interval to
discuss the overall strategy as well as the operational matters and financial
performance of the Group. Attendance of each director at the Board
meetings is set out below:

Executive directors:

Mr.Ng Cheung Shing (Chairman)
Mr. Cheung Wai Lam

Mr. Leung King San, Sunny

Mr. Ng Kwok Keung

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Ha Shu Tong

Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen

BOARD COMMITTEES

To strengthen the functions of the Board, there are several Board
Committees namely, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
the Nomination Committee, the Investment Committee and the Risk
Management Committee formed under the Board, with each performing
different functions.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERRE (R)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 24 April 1999 and during the
reporting period, the three INEDs, namely, Mr. Ha Shu Tong, Professor Lee
Kwok On, Matthew and Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen are the members
of the committee. Mr. Ting was elected as the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include:

to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement
of the external auditor, and any questions of its resignation or
dismissal;

to review and monitor the external auditor's independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards;

to develop and implement policy on engaging an external auditor to
supply non-audit services;

to act as the key representative body for overseeing the Company’s
relations with external auditor;

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
annual report and accounts, half-year report and to review significant
financial reporting judgments contained in them;

to review the Company'’s financial controls, risk management and
internal control systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control systems with
management to ensure that management has performed its duty to
have an effective risk management and internal control systems;

to review the financial and accounting policies and practices of the
Group; and

to review the external auditor's management letter, any material
queries raised by the auditor to management about accounting
records, financial accounts or systems of control and management’s
responses.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
TERERHRE (K)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice every year. Attendance of

each director at the meeting is set out below:

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Ha Shu Tong

Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen

During the year, the Audit Committee, among other matters, reviewed and
provided supervision over the Group’s financial reporting processes, risk
management and internal control systems, reviewed interim and annual
results of the Group and met with the internal and external auditors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 22 September 2004 and
comprises of three INEDs, namely, Mr. Ha Shu Tong, Professor Lee Kwok On,
Matthew, and Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen and two executive directors
namely, Mr. Ng Cheung Shing and Mr. Leung King San, Sunny. Mr. Ha is
currently the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include:

to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all directors and senior management remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy;

to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board'’s corporate goals and objectives;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
TERERHRS (K)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

to determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior management
and the terms of their service contracts;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive directors;

to consider and approve the grant of shares and share options to
eligible participants pursuant to the share award scheme and share
option scheme of the Company;

to review and approve compensation payable to executive directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms
and is otherwise fair and not excessive; and

to ensure that no director or any of its associates is involved in
deciding his own remunerations.
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The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once every year.
Attendance of each director at the meeting is set out below:

Number of meetings
Attended/Eligible

to attend
HESBRE
Al tH R &

Executive directors: BITES:

Mr. Ng Cheung Shing REBTE 3/3
Mr. Leung King San, Sunny REFTRE 3/3
Independent non-executive directors: BUKHITES

Mr. Ha Shu Tong BERRTE 3/3
Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew TR 3/3
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRERE 3/3

During the year, the work performed by the Remuneration Committee
included the review of the Group’s remuneration policy for its executive
directors and senior management, determined their levels of remuneration
and approved the grant of shares to eligible participants pursuant to the
share award scheme.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERRE (H)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG code, the remuneration of senior
management by band for the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out
below:

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

Further particulars in relation to directors’ remuneration and the five highest
paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the
Listing Rules are set out in notes 7 and 8 to the report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 22 September 2004 and
comprises of the three INEDs, namely, Mr. Ha Shu Tong, Professor Lee
Kwok On, Matthew, and Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen and two executive
directors namely, Mr. Ng Cheung Shing and Mr. Leung King San, Sunny.
Mr. Ha is currently the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include:

to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships;

to review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, and review the
measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing the
Board Diversity Policy, and monitor the progress on achieving the
objectives, and make disclosure of its review results in the Corporate
Governance Report annually;

to assess the independence of INEDs and to ensure at least one-third
of the Board should be INEDs; and
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
TERERHRS (K)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of directors and succession planning for directors, in
particular the chairman and the CEO.

Attendance of each director at the meeting is set out below:

Executive directors:
Mr.Ng Cheung Shing
Mr. Leung King San, Sunny

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Ha Shu Tong

Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen

During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the Group's structure,
size and composition of the Board, assessed the independence of INEDs
and made recommendations to the Board on reappointment of directors of
the Company.

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The Investment Committee was established on 17 May 2012 and comprises
of an INED, Mr. Ha Shu Tong, and an executive director, Mr. Ng Cheung
Shing. Mr. Ng is currently the chairman of the Investment Committee. The
Investment Committee is responsible for executing investment guidelines
approved by the Board, monitoring the performance of the investments
and proposing investment strategies to the Board. During the year, the
Investment Committee reported the performance of investments and
reviewed the investment strategies with all directors in the Board meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee was established on 17 August 2016

and comprises of one INED, namely, Mr. Ha Shu Tong and three executive
directors namely, Mr. Leung King San, Sunny, Mr. Cheung Wai Lam and
Mr. Ng Kwok Keung. Mr. Leung is currently the chairman of the Risk
Management Committee.

The principal duties of the Risk Management Committee include:

to review the Group’s risk management (‘RM”") and internal control
("IC") strategies, policies and guidelines and submit them to the Audit
Committee for approval;

to review the Group's risk framework and approved risk policies,
standards and limits within the overall appetite and tolerance
approved by the Board;

to review the Group's processes for determining risk appetite
tolerance, monitoring compliance with approved risk tolerance levels
and policies and the resultant action in respect of policy breaches;

to review the Group’s compliance policies and submit them to the
Board and/or Audit Committee for approval;

to review the Group’s key risks and submit to the Audit Committee
for approval half-yearly;

to report to the Audit Committee that, to the best of the RM
Committee’s belief, the disclosures made in the annual report on its
activities, the risk governance and related sections are fair, balanced
and understandable;

to consider issues raised by external auditors, the Audit Committee
or any member of the Board who has lodged a request for a meeting;
and

to liaise with the chairman of the Audit Committee to determine on
a case by case basis which RM Committee takes responsibility for
undertaking deep dive reviews and keeping the Audit Committee
updated on any relevant findings from reviews requested.

The first meeting of the Risk Management Committee was held in January
2017 and reviewed the Group’s risk framework and key risks, RM and IC
strategies, policies and guidelines.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERRE (R)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the year under review, the Board at all times met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three INEDs with
at least one INED possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each INED of
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the
contents of such confirmation, the Company still considers all of the INEDs
to be independent.

The INEDs bring a wide range of business and financial expertise,
experiences and independent judgment to the Board. Through active
participation in board meetings, taking the lead in managing issues
involving potential conflict of interests and serving on Board Committees, all
INEDs make various contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR WHO
HAS SERVED FOR MORE THAN NINE YEARS

Mr. Ha Shu Tong, Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew and Mr. Ting Leung
Huel, Stephen have served as INEDs for more than nine years. The future
appointment of these three INEDs without the approval by way of passing
a separate resolution of the shareholders is regarded as a deviation from
Code Provision A4.3 of the CG Code.

To comply with this CG Code Provision, all these three INEDs had retired
at the previous annual general meetings of the Company and offered
themselves for re-election.

The Board is of the opinion that all these three directors remain
independent notwithstanding the length of their services and believes that
their valuable knowledge and experience in the Group'’s business and their
general business acumen continue to generate significant contribution to
the Board, the Company and the shareholders as a whole. The Company's
circular to be despatched to shareholders of the Company in April 2018 will
contain the biographical information of Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen and
the detailed reasons behind the Board's recommendation of his continuing
appointment as an INED.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as its code of conduct for dealings in securities of the
Company by the directors. Based on a specific enquiry of the Company’s
directors, the directors have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code throughout the year.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS'’
RIGHTS

Information of the Company and the Group are delivered to its shareholders
through a number of channels, which includes annual report, interim report,
announcements and circulars. The latest information of the Company and
the Group together with the published documents are also available on the
Company's website.

The Company's annual general meeting provides a useful platform for direct
communication between the Board and shareholders. Separate resolutions
are proposed on each substantially separate issue at the general meetings.

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to
appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if
they are unable to attend the meetings.

The process of the Company's general meeting will be monitored and
reviewed on a regular basis, and, if necessary, changes will be made to
ensure that shareholders’ needs are best served.

The annual general meeting in 2017 (“the AGM”) was held on 31 May 2017.
All directors and the Company’s external auditor attended the AGM.

According to Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the "Act”)
and bye-law 58 of the bye-laws of the Company, shareholders holding
in aggregate not less than 10% of the paid-up capital of the Company
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the
Company, to request a special general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition, and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERRE (R)

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS'
RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Any number of shareholders representing not less than 5% of the total
voting rights of the Company on the date of the requisition or not less than
100 shareholders of the Company are entitled to put forward a proposal for
consideration at a general meeting of the Company. Shareholders should
follow the requirements and procedures as set out in Section 79 of the Act
for putting forward such proposal at a general meeting.

In relation to the shareholders communication, the shareholders can
contact the Company Secretary or the Vice President of Corporate
Development and Communications by email to InvestorRelation@ctil.com
or by mail to Level 10, Cyberport 2, 100 Cyberport Road, Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during
the year of review.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group and have adopted the accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and complied with the requirements of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (which include all Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

During the reporting year, the management has provided such explanation
and information to the Board as necessary to enable the Board to make
an informed assessment of the financial information and position of the
Group put forward to the Board for approval. The directors are not aware
of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s independent auditors are
set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 58 to 65.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
DEERRE ()

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal controls of the Company, including
material financial, operational and compliance controls, risk management
functions and particularly the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programs and budget of the accounting and financial
reporting function. The Board, assisted by the Audit Committee and the
Risk Management Committee, is required to assess the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems on an ongoing basis.
Appropriate policies and control procedures have been designed and
established to ensure that assets are safeguarded against improper use or
disposal, relevant rules and regulations are adhered to and complied with,
reliable financial and accounting records are maintained in accordance with
relevant accounting standards and regulatory reporting requirements, and
key risks that may impact on the Group’s performance are appropriately
identified and managed. These control procedures are designed to manage,
rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and
such procedures can only provide reasonable, and not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or losses.

Effective risk management is a fundamental part of the Group’s business
strategy. Recognising and managing risk is central to the business and to
protect the shareholders’ interests and value. The Company operates within
overall guidelines and specific parameters set by the Board. Each transaction
is comprehensively analysed to understand the risks involved. Responsibility
for managing risks lies initially with the business functions concerned,
working within the overall strategy and risk tolerance established by the
Board, in conjunction with the Audit Committee and the Risk Management
Committee.

The Board meets quarterly, or more often if necessary, to review the
Group’s operations and financial performance. The Board also reviews
the risks to the assets and operations of the Company, and acts upon any
comments from the internal and external auditors. The Board considers the
economic environment and the industry risk in assessing business risk. The
management also meets at least monthly to review the operations of the
Group and discuss any identified issues.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERRE (R)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONTINUED)

Key risks, control measures and management actions are continually
identified, reviewed and monitored by the management as part of the
Group's enterprise wide risk management framework. The internal auditor
assists and guides the management in the formulation of risk policies and
processes to effectively identify, evaluate and manage significant risks. The
management has established a risk identification and management process.
The risk profiles are reported to the Risk Management Committee, the Audit
Committee and the Board on a regular basis to highlight changes in the risk
assessment, quantitative and qualitative factors affecting the inherent risks
and effectiveness of respective controls. The ownership of these risks lies
with the respective business functions with stewardship residing with the
Board. Action plans to manage the risks are continually being monitored
and refined by the management and the Board. The internal auditor
conducts audits to review the risk management framework and processes
and assess the effectiveness of the internal controls of the Group, including
material financial, operational and compliance controls. Any material
non-compliance or lapses in internal controls together with corrective
measures are reported to the Risk Management Committee and the Audit
Committee.

In performing its audit of the financial statements, the external auditors
perform tests over operating effectiveness of certain controls that they
intend to rely on which are relevant to the Group's preparation of its
financial statements. The external auditors report any significant deficiencies
in such internal controls to the Risk Management Committee and the Audit
Committee.

In addition to the review of risk management and internal controls
undertaken within the Company, from time to time, the Board and/or the
management will engage professional third parties to assess and comment
on the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal
controls and, where appropriate, recommendations will be adopted and
enhancements to the risk management and internal controls will be made.

Based on the framework established and the reviews conducted by the
internal and external auditors, the Board opines, with the concurrence of the
Audit Committee, that there are adequate and effective risk management
and internal control systems in place within the Group in addressing
material financial, operational, compliance and information technology
control risks in its current business environment.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONTINUED)

Risk management framework

The Group has established an effective risk governance and management
framework in line with the requirements set out by the Hong Kong
Listing Rules and other regulations. This framework was built around a
structure that enables the Board and the management to discharge their
risk management-related responsibilities with appropriate delegation as
well as checks and balances. These responsibilities included defining risk
appetite in accordance with the Group’s business strategies and objectives,
formulating risk policies that govern the execution of those strategies, and
establishing procedures and limits for the approval, control, monitoring and
remedy of risks.

The members of the Risk Management Committee positioned at the highest
level of the Group's risk governance structure under the Board. Members
included one independent non-executive director and three executive
directors. The Risk Management Committee had direct involvements
in formulating the Group's risk appetite, and determined the levels of
risk that the Group is willing to undertake with reference to its financial
capacity, strategic direction, prevailing market conditions and regulatory
requirements.

The Risk Management Committee will continuously ensure the Group'’s
risk appetite is realistically reflected in the policies and procedures that
the management adopted in executing its business functions. The Risk
Management Committee will regularly review the Group's risk management
framework and ensure that all important risk-related tasks are performed
according to established policies and with appropriate resources.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERRE (H)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONTINUED)

Inside information

Regarding procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company:

(0

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

is aware of its obligations under the SFO and the Listing Rules and
the overriding principle that inside information should be announced
immediately if it is the subject of a decision;

conducts its affairs with close regard to the applicable laws and
regulations prevailing in Hong Kong;

has included in the Code of Conduct a strict prohibition on the
unauthorised use of non-public or inside information;

has established a policy and implemented guidelines for monitoring,
reporting and disseminating inside information to our shareholders,
investors, analysts and media. These policies and guidelines also
identify who are the Company's authorised spokespersons and their
responsibilities for communications with stakeholders; and

has communicated to all relevant staff regarding the implementation
of the policy and the relevant trainings are also provided.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Ernst & Young has been re-appointed as the independent auditors of
the Company by shareholders at the last annual general meeting. The
remuneration in respect of services provided by Ernst & Young to the Group
in 2017 is summarised as follows:
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Auditing services Bz 1,220
Non-auditing services (which included agreed upon procedures and EEZRG (RIEHTERF
other professional services) REMBEZERS) 128
Total st 1,348
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERERE (R)

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Ng Kwok Keung, was appointed as the
Company Secretary of the Company on 18 May 2007 and is a full time
employee of the Group. Mr. Ng is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has confirmed that he
has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional trainings during the
reporting year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements of
the Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the
financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group's principal activities during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year under review and
a discussion on the Group's future business development and important
events affecting the Company occurred during the year ended 31
December 2017 are provided in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement”
on pages 6 to 18 of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year ended 31 December
2017 using key performance indicators is provided in the section headed
“Chairman’s Statement” of this annual report, and other key performance
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indicators are at set out below.

Strategies

SRR

Maintain the Group's liquidity for future development

REFAEENE DRI EAERTE R

Enrich the Group’s product portfolio
EEAEEERAS

Keep the Group's staff turnover rate with
no material adverse change

BRAEEE TRAKEEEATNES

WFX -

Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs”)

BRENER(BRERER]

Net cash flows from operating activities in 2017: HK$55.2 million
(2016: HK$32.6 million)

R-T - FHKLEEBSRTIMFE ¢ 552000007 7T
(ZZ—7X%F 1 32,600,000%7T)

Cash and cash equivalents as of 31 December 2017: HK$246.5 million
(31 December 2016: HK$229.4 million)
RZZE—+F+_A=1T—HNRERERRESEE : 246,500,000/ T
(ZE—A"F+ZA=+—H8 : 229,400,000%7T)

Number of new product/module launched: 10 (2016: 4)
HEm MEMBHEE - 10(ZT—RF : 4)

Staff turnover rate, representing number of resigned and terminated staff
during the year divided by number of staff of the Group as at the year end
date, in 2017: 25% (2016: 25%)

R-ZE—tFNETRAR(TDIRFABREBERE T ABRAREER
AEEETABGHHE) : 25% (ZT—7RNF : 25%)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (@)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's financial condition, results of operations, businesses and
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties. The key
risks and uncertainties identified by the Group are discussed in this section.
There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those shown
below, which are not known to the Group or which may not be material
now but which could become material in the future. Furthermore, risks can
never be eliminated completely due to inherent limitations in measures
taken to address them. Also, risks may be accepted for strategic reasons or if
it is deemed not cost-effective to mitigate them.

Strategic Risk

The business strategy may require the Group to develop its business both
organically and through new business combinations, strategic investments
and acquisitions. If market conditions change or for any other reasons, the
Group may decide to delay, modify or forgo some aspects of its growth
strategies.

Business Risk

The Group constantly faces the challenge of gauging and responding
promptly to market changes within the industry it operates in. Any failure
to interpret market trends properly and adapt its strategy to such changes
accordingly may have a material adverse effect on the Group’s business,
financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

The Group has been looking into different kinds of business and investment
opportunities to broaden the revenue sources of the Group in order to
manage the associated risk and to create greater value for the shareholders.

The Board meets quarterly, or more often if necessary, to review the
Group's operations and financial performance. The Board also considers the
economic environment and the industry risk in assessing the strategic risk
as well as the business risk. The management meets monthly to review the
business developments of the Group and keeps the Board informed on any
issues identified.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of financial loss or reputational damage resulting
from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems.
Responsibility for managing operational risks in the Group rests with every
function at both divisional and departmental levels.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (@)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(CONTINUED)

Operational Risk (continued)

Key functions in the Group are guided by standard operating procedures,
limits of authority and a reporting framework. The Group will continuously
identify and assess key operational exposures and report such risk issues
to the Board and/or senior management as early as possible so that
appropriate risk responses can be taken.

Technology Obsolescence

The Group's operations depend on its ability to innovate and the successful
deployment of continuously evolving technologies, particularly its response
to technological and industry developments, as well as its ability to foresee
and/or rapidly adapt to the emergence of disruptive technologies. The
Group cannot be certain that technologies will be developed in time to
meet changing market conditions, that they will perform according to
expectations or that they will achieve commercial acceptance. The Group
has made relentless efforts in producing and delivering premium products
and high quality services. Looking forward, the Group will continue with its
research and innovation to enrich its products portfolio.

Manpower and Retention Risk

The Group's success and ability to grow depends largely on its ability to
attract, train, retain, and motivate highly skilled and qualified managerial,
sales, marketing, administrative, operating, and technical personnel. The
loss of key personnel, or the inability to find additional qualified personnel,
could materially and adversely affect the Group’s prospects and results of
operations.

The Group recognises the employees as one of our most valuable assets
and will keep on providing competitive remuneration package to motivate
the employees and to attract any suitable candidates in the market. The
Group also regularly reviews the remuneration package of employees and
makes necessary adjustments to conform to the market standard.

Financial Risk

In the course of its business activities, the Group is exposed to various
financial risks, including market, liquidity and credit risks. The currency
environment and interest rates cycles may significantly affect the Group’s
financial condition and results of operations.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial Risk (continued)

The Group's earnings and capital or its ability to meet its business objectives
may be adversely affected by movements in foreign exchange rates,
interest rates and equity prices. In particular, any depreciation in the Group’s
functional currency may affect its net profit margin. The Group closely
monitors the relative foreign exchange positions of its assets and liabilities
and allocates its holdings of different currencies accordingly in order to
minimise foreign currency risk.

The Group may also be subject to liquidity risk if it is unable to obtain
adequate funding to finance its operations. In managing liquidity risk, the
Group monitors its cash flows and maintains an adequate level of cash and
credit facilities to enable it to finance its operations and reduce the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows.

The Group is also subject to exposure to credit risk from its customers. New
customers are subject to credit evaluation while the Group continues to
monitor its existing customers, especially those with repayment issues. Cash
is deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

The financial risk management policies and practices of the Group are
shown in note 35 to the financial statements.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group has established procedures in place to ensure that its operations
comply with applicable laws, rules and regulations. The Board is responsible
to monitor the Group's policies and practices for achieving compliance with
legal and other regulatory requirements, and such policies and practices
are regularly reviewed. Any changes in the applicable laws, rules and
regulations are brought to the attention of relevant employees and relevant
operating units whenever necessary.

As far as the Board is aware, the Group has complied in all material respects
with laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group’s
business and operations.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

Employees are valuable assets to the Group. The Group provides equal
employment opportunity and competitive remuneration packages to
attract and retain employees. In addition, the Group subsidises employees
to attend job-related training courses to enhance their career progression
and provides occupational health and safety information to employees to
raise their awareness. The Group prides itself on providing a safe, effective
and congenial work environment and it values the health and well-being
of its staff. Adequate arrangements, training and guidelines have been
implemented to ensure its working environment is healthy and safe. The
Group provides communications on health and safety matters and other
programmes to employees in order to raise their awareness of such issues
and enhance their related behavior.

To suppliers and customers, the Group values mutually beneficial long
standing relationships with them by providing high quality services to
customers and developing mutual trust with suppliers.

Details of the Group's trade receivables and trade payables are set out in
notes 18 and 23 to the financial statements, respectively.

There was no material dispute between the Group and its business partners.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group does not operate in an environmentally sensitive business
and is predominantly service-oriented. However, the Group is committed
to the long term sustainability of the environment and communities in
which it operates. As a supporter of environmental protection, the Group
endeavours to comply with laws and regulations regarding environmental
protection and adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use of
resources, energy saving and waste reduction. The Group also strives for a
greener future by eco-friendly practices in various aspects of our operations.
Efficient and effective use of energy and resources are encouraged in the
operation and management level of the Group. “Green Guidelines and
News” are formulated and launched on a continuous basis via intranet or
email to promote the concept of “Reduce, Reuse and Recycle” and to arouse
the employee’s awareness of the importance of environmental protection.

The Company will issue Environmental, Social and Governance Report in a
separate manner and publish the report on the Stock Exchange’s website
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company's website (www.ctil.com).
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DONATIONS

The Group's charitable donations during the year amounted to HK$13,000.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2017 and the Group's
financial position at that date are set out in the financial statements on
pages 66 to 178.

An interim dividend of 7 HK cents and a special dividend of 3 HK cents per
ordinary share were paid on 13 September 2017. The directors recommend
the payment of a final dividend of 7 HK cents and a special dividend of
5 HK cents per ordinary share to shareholders whose names appear on the
Company's Register of Members on 30 May 2018.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements, is set out on pages 180. This summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND AWARDED
SHARES

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital, share options and
awarded restricted shares of the Company during the year are set out in
notes 25, 26 and 27 to the financial statements, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-
laws or the laws of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the Company
is incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

B

FRN - AREBZEEBHEEEH13,00087T

RERKRE

AEBHE_ZT—+tF+_A=+—HLEFEZ
A R AEENZE 2 ERARAHR I BRES
6621788, °

ER-ZZE—tFNAT=ZAIRMNERE BT S
RE7EWESRIREIEN - EFZHEAN_-F
—N\FRA=THANARAFRRAM 2 BRIK
T RCE BBCR BAR B 7B Il R B Bl A B8 -

PMBERNBE

AEENBETBYREFRCTEZXEREE
LB BEHMEREERECMBERE - RERE
180E ° LI B TMEREBREMBRE 2 — &

e

BRAE - BRERERRA

ARRREA - BRERERFIEZRRORERNZ
HEFE - DRSS REMFE25 « 26527 ©

BrEERE

RRF Z A BRI R B FEMAILZ FLERE R
BREAVNTERNELBEEE AT - BEXR
RAVRRLLBIABRABRBEHNA -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (@)

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or
sold any of the Company's listed securities during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2017, the Company's reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, amounted to HK$122,349,000, of which HK$29,096,000 has
been proposed as final and special dividends for the year. In addition, the
Company's share premium account, in the amount of HK$38,493,000, may
be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for 36.3% of the total sales for the year and sales to the largest
customer included therein amounted to 24.2%. Purchases from the Group’s
five largest suppliers accounted for 18.4% of the total value of supplies
purchased for the year and purchases from the largest supplier included
therein amounted to 7.3%.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:

Ng Cheung Shing (Chairman)

Cheung Wai Lam (Chief Executive Officer)
Leung King San, Sunny

Ng Kwok Keung

Independent non-executive directors:

Ha Shu Tong
Lee Kwok On, Matthew
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen

BE BORHEXRF LHES

4l

ARBREEAMNBRARNFABERE -
FHEARBEM EHES

Tt

e

A ki

R_ZE—+F+-_A=+—H B —HI\—FA
REQNREZHRTHE - ARR AR IRFEHA
122,349,000 7T + 3 ## LA H A1 29,006,000 7T Ik 2%
FRRAEERRE © fIN  RARRMDRER
FR38,493,00078 T Al FR BB AL IR T DK ©

FEFFRHER

REEFE  MASBAARFHEZIHERG
PHEHERE3%  EFPATARFPEHEZHE
B(524.2% - BASKE RN HERES 2 KESEL
PEREHEREI4Y  ETESANEREE
2 EREERE(G7.3% ©

ARBEEF  RESAEMABEALHEES
PR FBER AN R B 5% A £ B BTN 2 (IR
R BEAAEELATP MMt EETHEEEMN

BE
R ARTEERE

HITES
REB(EE)
FER(FTBARE)
REH

REH

BYFHITES
B
FEZ
TRiE

HEEREBERAR —T—LEFR



48

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (@)

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

In accordance with bye-law 87 of the Company’s bye-laws, Cheung Wai
Lam, Ng Kwok Keung and Ting Leung Huel, Stephen will retire by rotation
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

All independent non-executive directors of the Company renewed their
appointments with the Company for specific terms of three years but are
subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the provisions of the
bye-laws of the Company.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from Ha
Shu Tong, Lee Kwok On, Matthew, and Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, and as at
the date of this report still considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 19 to 21 of the annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general meetings.
Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s board of directors
with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the
results of the Group. In addition, the directors’ remuneration is reviewed by
the Remuneration Committee annually.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws, every director shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them
may incur in or sustain or about the execution of the duties of their office or
otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the Group throughout
the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No director nor a connected entity of a director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, or any
of the Company's subsidiaries was a party during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year and up to the date of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests of the directors in the share capital
and underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFQ"), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

EERRORMEERD 2EZRAR

R-E—+F+-_A=+—H8" %%%B’\$’D\T
KEBEER (EE LB F MG EHN(E
EMWUJ)%XV*B)ZH&$&$EE§H§1%EP%§$
REARBEEZ M GRIIEIDGREFEZ

BRMhRESRE EMRETARESTETES

RHHRETRRITHE AR T MR T2 iEm

LN

FAREBERZHER

Number of shares held,
capacity and nature of interest

FEROBE - o RERMEE

Percentage of

Directly Through the Company’s

beneficially controlled issued share

owned corporation capital

RN

=k 3 &R BBITRA

Name of director BExES ZEH AT A Aok
Ng Cheung Shing REB @) 3,050,000 110,000,000 113,050,000 4630
Cheung Wai Lam %Eﬁ* 750,000 - 750,000 031
Leung King San, Sunny 225 % 1,010,000 - 1,010,000 041
Ng Kwok Keung R B 270,000 - 270,000 0.11
5,080,000 110,000,000 115,080,000 47.13
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS EERRORMEERG 2EERKXE
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (&)
(CONTINUED)
Long positions in shares of an associated corporation: R—EEBEEERG 2HFR
Number of shares Percentage of
R E the associated
Name of Relationship Directly Through corporation’s
associated with the beneficially controlled issued share
Name of director corporation Company Class of shares owned corporation capital
hZAEE L E
HE ZiR BRITRE
g HELE BB b NG ol A gl BRZEE SEHAF BOl
Ng Cheung Shing Computer And Company's Non-voting 1,750,000 3,250,000 N/A
REE Technologies subsidiary deferred (note KT3E(D) TNEA
International Limited Y /NC] ERERET
Rt ZRARARE] AR
Notes: T
(a) The 110,000,000 shares were held by Chao Lien Technologies Limited (“Chao Lien”), (a) CS. BVI) Limited 2 2 & M B R BB E R AR A A
a wholly- owned subsidiary of C.S. (BVI) Limited. Mr. Ng Cheung Shing was entitled ([ &8 1) #5110,00000008 fx (7 - REBLERE
to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at FACS. (BVI) Limited 2 IR ARG E1TE S IZHITTEE =5
general meetings of C.S. (BVI) Limited, which in turn was entitled to exercise or 2 A E 2R EERE - TCS. (BV) Limited BIEHER G
control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at general meetings BEARR R E EITHESIRRITTRE =9 2 — I ERE
of Chao Lien. Accordingly, Mr. Ng Cheung Shing was deemed, under the SFO, to be 7o Eitt - BIEESKBAE G - RERBEERS
interested in all shares held by Chao Lien. RNBEFTRE 2 FIERO P HBE R -
(b)  The 3,250,000 non-voting deferred shares were held by Chao Lien. (b)  7%3,250,0000% X BRI BRI A -
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the directors had BREXEEEN RZBE—tF+-_A="1—
registered an interest or a short position in the shares or underlying shares H - SIEESNARQ RS H AR EE 2Rk
of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to SRR MND T - HEREESF RBAERAIFE352
be recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified AT BB EMBITAZTESETESR
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for SRR ETRSITAEARR R LB AP a5k
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers. R o
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections “Share option scheme” and “Restricted
share award scheme” below, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company granted to any director or their respective spouses or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company,
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
primary purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group'’s operations. Further details of
the Scheme are disclosed in note 26 to the financial statements.

No share option of the Company was granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed during the year.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted a restricted share award scheme (the “"Award
Scheme”) on 22 May 2008 (the “Adoption Date"). Pursuant to the Award
Scheme, shares of the Company (the “Awarded Shares”) are granted
to eligible employees (including directors) of the Group until the 10%
anniversary from the Adoption Date. The Company shall also pay cash to
the appointed trustee company for its acquisition and holding upon trust of
the Awarded Shares for the benefit of these employees and directors. The
Awarded Shares will then be transferred to these employees and directors
upon vesting. The aggregate number of shares to be awarded under the
Award Scheme throughout its duration shall not exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time.

Details of the Award Scheme and the shares awarded thereunder are set
out in note 27 to the financial statements.
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RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The following table illustrates the number of and movements of the
Awarded Shares under the Award Scheme for the year ended 31 December

2017.

Name of
category of

participant
SRENE
it ¥

Directors

gz

Cheung WailLam
FER

Cheung WaiLam
FER

Ng Kwok Keung
RE%

Ng Kok Keung
RE%

At

1January

2017

RZE-tE
-A-A

Awarded
during
the year
Eh
E%R

Number of Unvested Awarded Shares

G LELLOEE

Transferred
in/(out)
during
theyear
RER
/(%)

Vested
during
theyear
£
EER

Forfeited
during
theyear
£
BRl

At

31 December
2017
RZB-t&
t=B=1-A

BRI IR0 R B E & ()

TRENEBE-FTEF+t_A=t—"BLFE

Nz R 8IR T RE R 2 B8 M EEE -

Award date

RAZBAS

200,000 - - (100,000) - 100,000 14 January 2014 31 December 2014 to 31 December 2018 188
“E-mE “E-NEt+-f=1-HZ
—A+EA “F-\FtZh=t-H

250,000 - - (50,000) - 200,000 14 October 2016 30 September 2017 to 30 September 2021 243
“ENE “E—tENAZTRE
TATEA “ET-EAAZTH

100000 - - (50,000) - 50,000 28 March 2013 30 April 2014 to 30 April 2018 145
—5-Cf “Z-PENA=THE
=f=t/R —2-\EmA=1H

96,000 - - (24,000) - 72,000 4May 2015 30 April 2016 to 30 April 2020 262
515 “$-AERAZTAE
TARA “ECEFRAZTH

646,000 - - (224000) - 422000
Bt X E AR A A Tt FFIR

Vesting period of
Awarded Shares

RRROEES

Weighted
average
fair value
per share
SRE
THATHE
HK$

BT
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EEemE(E)
RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED) BRI AR 10 SR =t &l (4]8)
Number of Unvested Awarded Shares
AERRRRGHE
Transferred Weighted
At Awarded in/(out) Vested Forfeited At average
Name of category 1January during during during during 31 December Vesting periodof  fairvalue
of participant 2017 the year the year the year the year 2017 Award date Awarded Shares  per share
SEENT RZB-tF Eh RER £ R B-R-tE SHiE
it 4] -B-B BRE  EA/(R) EER BRE +=A=t-8 ReZmAS REROSRA VOLTE
HKS$
BT
Other employees
HfbfE8
Inaggregate 160000 - - (30,000) - 130000 28 March 2013 30 April 2014 to 30 April 2018 145
B3t —3-cE ZE-TEMA=TRE
ZA-thR Z2-\§mA=1A
In aggregate 40,000 - - 20,000) - 20000 12 August 2013 30 September 2014 to 30 September 2018 158
t —T-=f “B-MEAA=TRE
NA+ZH “2-)\fhA=TH
Inaggregate 196,000 - - (49,000) (30,000) 117,000 4 May 2015 30 April 2016 to 30 April 2020 262
it —2-1f - ENA=TEE
TAMA “TCTENA=TR
Inaggregate 120000 - - (74,000) - 46000 14Qctober 2016 30 September 2017 to 30 September 2021 243
it i SRS “E-tENAZTRE
tAtRH “Z-ENAZTR

1,162,000 - (397,000) (30,000) 735,000
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

EFERE (8

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, the following interests of more than 5% of the
issued share capital and share options of the Company were recorded in
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to

section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions:

Name of shareholder
of the Company

FRRRREE £

Chao Lien Technologies Limited

R ERAR

CS. (BVI) Limited

Puttney Investments Limited ("PIL")

Hutchison International Limited ("HIL")

Hutchison Whampoa Limited ("‘HWL")
MEEHERAR(AMZ])

Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited ("CKH")
RIEX(EE)ERAA(IRE]

CK Hutchison Holdings Limited (“CKHH ")
RIMEEXERAR(RA])

Hui Yau Man
Ei115°S

Webb David Michael

Capacity and nature of interest

SoRERME
Directly beneficially owned

ERESHA

Through a controlled corporation

iy bRz NG

Directly beneficially owned

EREGHA

Through a controlled corporation

BERTEH D F

Through a controlled corporation

EBEAHAT

Through a controlled corporation

iy kR VNG

Through a controlled corporation

BRXEH A

Directly beneficially owned

ERESHA

Directly beneficially owned

ERESHRA

Through a controlled corporation

i3k VNG

TERRREMATRRG REER
1z

R-B—+F+-A=+—8 " UTRAEARRAEA
CHNEREE AR RAERIIEBEREFE
Z B R AE AR B BT N B S%
A b7 #Eas

"R

Percentage of

Number of the Company’s
ordinary issued share
shares held capital
PN

Fiis BRTRE
EERHE BAt
110,000,000 45.05
110,000,000 4505
29148938 11.94
29,148,938 11.94
29,148,938 11.94
29148938 1194
29148938 11.94
26,782,000 1097
3,540,000 145
8,740,000 358

MR EEER AR

Number of
share
options held

Firfs
BRERE

ZE—tFFR
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (@)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (CONTINUED)

Long positions: (continued)

Notes:

(a) The interest was also disclosed as an interest of Mr. Ng Cheung Shing in the section
“Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares” of this
report.

(b) PIL is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HIL, which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of HWL. CKH is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CKHH and subsidiaries of CKH are
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of more than one-third of the voting
power at the general meetings of HWL. By virtue of the SFO, CKHH, CKH, HWL and
HIL were deemed to be interested in the 29,148,938 shares of the Company held by
PIL.

(0 The 8,740,000 shares were held by Preferable Situation Assets Limited (“PSAL"). PSAL
was 100% directly owned by Mr. Webb David Michael and accordingly, Mr. Webb
David Michael is deemed to be interested in the said shares held by PSAL.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, no person, other than
the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the section
"Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares”
above, had registered an interest or a short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, there was no connected transaction nor continuing

connected transactions which need to be disclosed pursuant to
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the contingent liabilities of the Company and the Group are set
out in note 31 to the financial statements.
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(© 8,740,000 f% % 15 M Preferable Situation Assets Limited
(TPSALL)¥EHE ° PSALFRWebb David Michael /¢ 4 B
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE (@)

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within

the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
There is no other material subsequent event undertaken by the Company

or by the Group after 31 December 2017 and up to the date of this annual
report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the corporate governance of the Group are set out in the section
headed “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditors of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Ng Cheung Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 13 March 2018

RARWBRE
REAARAMTE 2 ERRLHEEHM - R
WEEE  ARARDREITRA BB D H 5%
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBENRE

EYzx

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF COMPUTER AND
TECHNOLOGIES HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Computer And
Technologies Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 66 to 178, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
By B E#RE ()

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”"), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The
results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

RREXE

RIZERED DR R BB S AtAD A @R 2 BB R
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BZBERE (&)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

BRELSER

Revenue recognition — contracts for services

The Group recognised certain contract revenue from integration
and solutions services and application services by reference to the
stage of completion of the contract activity. The determination
of stage of completion involved significant management
judgements and estimates including total contract costs,
remaining costs to completion and contract risks. Revenue,
costs and gross profit realised on such contracts can vary
from management’s original estimates because of changes in
conditions.

Relevant disclosures for the significant judgements and estimates
are included in note 3 to the financial statements.

WATETE — IR EHT

BERE2RA KA TR R R R R BRTT RIRTEIA K
FERREE TAOWA - BETKIEES REXETEEH 6
KfbEt - BRESHKRA  TRZB TRAREHER - B
AENER WA - KAREMNSHEBREZ M REEER
RZAEFTBATE -

BRAEAHE LAt 2 AR BE SN RS

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

REEaEE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

TR FMAEERARERER

We have performed testing on the Group's controls over its
processes to record contract costs and contract revenue, the
calculation of stage of completion and the identification of
contract losses. We have selected material contracts entered into
during the year to understand the contract terms such as the
contract revenue and the scope of deliverables and services. We
have checked to the project status reports and related supporting
documents showing costs incurred to date and compared to the
total budgeted costs to evaluate the stage of completion used
by management for revenue recognition and management’s
assessment on provision for foreseeable losses.

We have also checked the project revenue calculations prepared
by management.

Apart from the above, we have assessed the significant
judgements made by management, through the examination of
project documentation, including the total budgeted contract
costs, by checking to the invoices or quotations provided by
suppliers and comparing to the work hours used by similar
projects in the past, and discussion of the status of those projects
in progress with management, finance, and technical personnel of
the Group. We have also compared the budgeted contract costs
with the actual costs incurred to assess if there were any material
differences.

AzBMes BEREHHETHAONERAHOKRAZE
2 ST BRGTE MRS AR 2 EHIETRIR o A8
B BN AFEERILZERGH A THREOBAARR
NERRERE 2 BEZEOGRK - ABEIERETEBEBMR
HERBRETEEENAZABRAXST - LAEEE
WARERARAE TR ER 2 RBERAEEEEA R
ERBE ST -

AT REERERE BB BAGE -

BRALFratESN - AZBE D BB AR R IR 2 B RN
RIE R ELBTACIE B FTA 2 TIERSLLE - BHBEA X
(BRABESAOKRA)  tE BREEEE - BRI
ABRmZESEITHEBE ZMRN - EmFHEEREMRELZ
EARHE - AZBENTERBESNNAEEEL 2 BRK
REITHE - UG HBRENEAZR



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BZBERE ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

RREXSER

Goodwill impairment assessment

The carrying amount of goodwill of the Group as at 31 December
2017 was HKS$134 million (representing 22% of the total assets),
which was allocated to two cash-generating units (“CGUs"),
application services CGU and integration and solutions services
CGU. Significant management’s judgements and estimates
were involved in the impairment assessment of goodwill. The
determination of the net recoverable amount was based on
management’s estimates of variables such as budgeted revenue,
gross margins and the discount rates.

The significant judgements and estimates and disclosures for the
goodwill impairment testing are included in notes 3 and 14 to the
financial statements.

B EE

EEER - E—+F+ - A=+-—BZREBE2EKEESR
134,000,000 T (B EBE 222%) * WHREMEIRSE
HBEN([REELEM])  NERREEEELESBMUARE
R EER A RBISFECEEEN - BERETHSINERE
B A R - IREFADBEEEBYHIEREZ G
FTEETE - BInTEE WA - EFERITEE -

B R AV R A ET A K B R E R B 2 IR EE SR B TS R P =
3ki14 e

REEaEE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

R 2 FE AR ERARERER

We have involved our internal valuation specialists to assist us
in evaluating and testing the assumptions and methodologies
used by management in their impairment assessment. We have
assessed the budgeted revenue growth and profit margins of
the cash-generating units by making reference to the historical
trend analyses. For the discount rates applied to the cash flow
projections, we have assessed the inputs used to determine
the rates, which included referencing to market data and
benchmarking to comparable companies in the same industry.
We have also performed sensitivity analysis on management
estimates and assumptions used in evaluating whether a
reasonably possible change in assumptions would cause the
carrying amount of goodwill to exceed its recoverable amount.

We have also evaluated the adequacy of the related disclosures.

AIZ BN 2 AEMAES R E 2 8158 E KO & BRI
EHEFIRZBRET A - AHBE D2 BEBENT
FHERESEABM 2 RBERAER FOGEME - EARRER
BRAZIFREME  ARBEOETEAREEFHLEZ
BARE  EheR2EmSEERAENELRARZE
%o AT EHEEENTABRRZEEAEEHER

BYHEREEBBE A WE S EAA 2 (AT MRER - £1T
HREDHT
RS E A ERRREZ TR -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
By B E#RE ()

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN
THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
By B E#RE ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
By B E#RE ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

REMRBEZGEMBREAEZE
E(8&)

HEERMAKBELCESHEEZREEE
Hagwm - RBEMEN EXRE  BER
BFEERENHXBERABIERTEE
M- EmAEERY BEREZHELE
BENELBERRE - WAZBMRRTFE
EXRTHEEMN @ BB EEREENRS S
RECAEIZGESVBHRRP ZHER
B aiMAERETR  AREERIARK
Bz BR - ARBEN 2 R HVERBE
ZHBE R E B HANG 2 ERER - A
M AREHXBERALER SKRET

AERAM MR CBEEN TR - AB
MAR(BRERE) AREEHBREKE
BURBEZHAZ2IEER B REHF

P BREETERAXBEH 2 HBE
RERER  @EZERERE - UEHER
EBUBHRBERER - ARBMAEEE
Bt A - EEEHT - ARBEAE

AAERARR-

ARBINERE B R EE (LD BRZE
B E R R AR EAE AR (REAK
B2 56 4P PRI O BB 1 2 (E A AR
AT -

AZBEMAEZZ BRRRBH - SANEEH
EENAERBLIEZ AEBEER - ARARE
BENG RIS BMR B AN ZBEN 2 B E
EREZFERRREMER  UREEREBER
T2 AEREREAE i o



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
By B E#RE ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wong Yat Kin.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

22/F CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

13 March 2018
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—F-/\f=A+=H

MBRGEEERAT T tEEH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mEEER

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 #{Z—Z—tF+-A=+—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—+F —EF—RF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET TET
REVENUE ON 5 253,915 258,699
Cost of sales and services §HE MRS AR (110,424) (112,578)
Gross profit EA 143,491 146,121
Other income and gains, net EA A R ik s 5 58 5 9,264 5,194
Foreign exchange differences, net M 5 RRFRR (905) (109)
Fair value gains, net: N EREFRE
Financial assets at fair value through TR ELER AR
profit or loss IS EE 1,380 235
Investment properties REMEE 3,590 1,000
Selling and distribution expenses HE RO HERAX (34,497) (33823)
General and administrative expenses, net — RATE A S5 (55,453) (55,799)
Other expenses HiAxz (6,024) (6,024)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RRBEAT R R 6 60,846 56,795
Income tax expense FriS iR 9 (6,517) (6451)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE ISYNGIE 2PN
TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT REERF 54,329 50,344
2017 2016
—E—tF —ET—RF
HK cents HK cents
b= (il
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE B RATAEERRER
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF EhEREF
THE PARENT 11
Basic - YIN 22.43 2081
Diluted e 22.36 20.74
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SEEHEWRER

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 #{Z —ZF—tF+-A=+—HIFE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Other comprehensive income/(loss)
to be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods:
Available-for-sale investment:
Change in fair value
Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations

Net other comprehensive income/(loss)
to be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR
THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE PARENT

REEHER

Htt2EWBA

GRS - B REMA
(B598) 16 B3 518
EEHK

A R
AT

S TR A A
25

REEBERT - B REMA
(B18) BB EH S
e e

BRAREEABERFE
2HBARE

2017 2016
—E—tF —F—N
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET
54,329 50,344
(100) =
5,020 (4,323)
4,920 (4,323)
59,249 46,021

Mgt R EER AR

—T—LFFIR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R a BRI R

31 DECEMBER 2017 —Z—+tF+-A=+—H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Goodwill

Other intangible assets

Available-for-sale investment

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories
Trade and bills receivables
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Due from contract customers
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Tax recoverable
Pledged bank deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade payables, other payables
and accruals

Due to contract customers

Deferred revenue

Tax payable

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

FRBEE

YE T E

BEM=

[k

Hit B\ EE

AHHERE
BATERESARZPBEE

BT IAEE
FRBEERE

REBEE

A

FE W E 7 Bk e R W SR A
BNFOR - e REAAMEKFIR
A HEF A
BAFERES AR HEE

AIRERIA
EHEIPRITER
RekFRRGEE

BB ELRE

REAE

e B SRR - EAERRIA
N EET IR
ENEHEPHIA

BN

it

mE R EAE

RBEEFE

REERRBRE

FRBEE
EEHARE

BEFE

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

12
13

15
16

21
24

17
18
19
20

21

22
22

23
20

24

2017 2016
—E—tF —EF—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TET
3,950 5,860
71,255 67,665
134,485 134,485
49,706 51,603
1,780 1,880
2,544 2,531
2,984 2,994
266,704 267,018
1,433 38
41,363 44,388
15,466 13,819
16,276 10,092
10,857 9,490
8,433 8,038
1,071 21,885
246,547 229,404
341,446 337,154
74,274 79,024
20,407 20,205
35,969 35,753
9,285 10,234
139,935 145216
201,511 191,938
468,215 458,956
15,247 17,474
452,968 441,482




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
mEaMBERRR (&)

31 DECEMBER 2017 —_E—+F+_A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—tF AN S
HK$’000 HKS'000
FExT FBTT
EQUITY L
Equity attributable to owners of the parent &2 F)#HE A GRS
Issued capital BEITRA 25 24,419 24419
Share premium account B im B R 25 38,493 38,493
Shares held under the restricted share award B35 A R HIP(D 2€Eh =+ 2
scheme ESZ =P ) 25 (1,919) (2,447)
Other reserves H 362,879 356,810
Proposed final and special dividends BORARE R RIS 10 29,096 24,207
Total equity B 452,968 441,482
Ng Cheung Shing R R Leung King San, Sunny 2 27
Director & Director 2%
Bl X EE BB A A T —tFFR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEnBER

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 #{Z—Z—tF+-A=+—HIFE

Shares held

underthe

restricted Share- Proposed
Share based A investm ) e final and

ssued  premium d d Goodwil  revaluati e esel fluctuation al Total

capital account eserve d e dividends equity

At January 2016 RZZ—E-A-H 24419 38493 (3019 2604 (1227) 1972 721 3 2574 350428 16920 428618
Profitfor the year REE R - - - - - - - - - 50344 - 50344
Other comprehensive income TEREMZENA -

forthe year:

Exchange differences on BEBINEHE

translation of foreign operations ~ EAEZEREE = = = = = = = = (430) - - (431)

Total comprehensive income TEERARNER

for the year - - - - - - - - 433) 50,344 - 46021
Vesting of shares held under the ARk 52 RHi )

restricted share award scheme BETRNGE bl - - 51 (572) = - - - = = = =
Share award arangements Rty EZH bl = = = 7 = = - - = = = m
Final 2015 dividend declared BE-E-REAHRE - - - - - - - - - (19 (16920 (1699
Interim 2016 dividend “B-RERERS 10 - - - - - - - = - (16%9) - (1693)
Proposed final and special RR-F-AFAER

2016 dividends KRS 10 - - - - - - - - - o) 0 -
At31 December 2016 RE-AEtZA=1-A 24419 38493 (441 2745 (1221) 1972 721 3 (1749 359615 UNT 44148
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
mEEmSE R (H)

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 #{Z —ZF—tF+-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent
BAAEEAES
Other reserves
Rl
Shares held
under the Available-
restricted Share- for-sale Proposed
Share share based Asset  investment Exchange final and
Issued  premium award  payment  Goodwill revaluation revaluation  Reserve fluctuation  Retained special Total
capital  account scheme reserve reserve reserve reserve funds reserve profits  dividends equity
¢
AR
R %R it HRAA
B&f Rt HERE  REMAR mE BEEff HERE fE  EXR® RE  REH it
Bx  EER  ZRB e e i EfbRR -5 5 it gl RS, 4%
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tén  TEx TR TR TR TR TEr Tér TEr TEr  TEn TR

(note 28) (note 28)
(H&28) (Hf*28)

At1 January 2017 RZ-t5-A-H 2419 38493 (2447) 245 (1227) 1972 1 733 (1,749) 359615 24207 441,482
Profitfor the year RER R - = = = = = = = - 543 - 543
Other comprehensive incore TEREMREMA -

forthe year:

Change i fairvalue of an —EAfHERE

available-for-sale investment ATERD - - - - - - (100) - - - - (100)
Exchange differences on BEBNEBR
translation of foreign operations B ZERER - = = = = = = = 5,020 - - 5,020

Total comprehensive income REERANNER

for the year - - - - - - (100) - 5,020 54,329 - 59,249
Vesting of shares held under the ARk {3 52 Ef5 1 )

restricted share award scheme ETRGE 7 - - 528 (528) = = = = S - - -
Share award aangements TR REZH 7 - - - 691 - - - - - - - 691
Tranferred from retained profis BB BREEF - = = = = = = 13 = (13) - -
Final and special 2016 ER-E-ERER

dividends declared BRIRE - - - - - - - - - (200 (24207)  (24.227)
Interim and special 2017 “I-tERER

dividends BRIRE 10 - - - - - - - - - (2a227) - (42)
Proposed final and special RE-F-tFRER

2017 diidends KBRS 10 - - - - - - - - - (29,09)  29,0% =
At 31 December 2017 W-E—+%£+-f=1-H 24,419 38,493 (1,919) 2,908 (7,227) 1,972 621 746 3271 360,588 29,096 452,968

M REGEEERART —T—tFFH



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 #{Z—Z—tF+-A=+—HIFE

2017 2016
—B-tF —EREF

HK$’000 HK$'000
Tz TAT

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES &% ZE2EHESHRE

Profit before tax FR A5 A A 60,846 56,795
Adjustments for: IR EK
Bank interest income RITRBHA 5 (3,849) (4,081)
Dividend income from listed investments ETRE ZIREIWA 5 (689) (657)
Loss on disposal of items of property, LEYE  BMEMEEEBE 2
plant and equipment, net EEFE 6 18 42
Fair value gains, net: N EREFE
Financial assets at fair value BERATHELBRARZ
through profit or loss MBEE 6 (1,380) (235)
Investment properties WEYZ 6 (3,590) (1,000)
Depreciation e 6 2,833 2,870
Impairment of trade receivables EWE 5 RFURE 6 746 294
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables B[Ol e B 5 R 5B E 6 (401) (372)
Reversal of impairment of an amount due BEEWE R P FRIERE
from a contract customer 6 = (4)
Amortisation of other intangible assets HAb B & =Y 6 6,024 6,024
Equity-settled share-based payment expense AR IEAEE AR KD X 27 691 713
61,249 60,389
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BFERL,/(Em) (1,395) 198
Decrease/(increase) in trade and JEUE B R R FEU = 4R
bills receivables D (38hn) 2,680 (3,776)
Increase in amounts due from JEUE 4% P SRIALE N
contract customers (6,184) (3,748)
Increase in prepayments, TEFRIE - e REAM
deposits and other receivables FEWRIEIE AN (1,647) (5:894)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables, JERTE SRR - BT
other payables and accruals RIE & FEST AL I, OB d) 10,045 (4,512)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to FERE KR P RIEE I CRd)
contract customers 202 (396)
Increase/(decrease) in deferred revenue EEAAIE N, CRd) 216 (3,620)
Cash generated from operations KEEBFIBE S 65,166 38,641
Hong Kong profits tax paid BHEEBEBRER (8,929) (4,276)
Overseas taxes paid EEUEINGITE (1,047) (1,770)
Net cash flows from operating activities KETEEFS RS REFE 55,190 32,595
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

RERERER(E)

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 &£ =%

Net cash flows from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Bank interest received
Dividends received from listed investments
Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment
Additions to other intangible assets
Acquisition of subsidiaries
Payment of acquisition consideration payable
Proceeds from disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits
Decrease/(increase) in non-pledged bank
deposits with original maturity of more than
three months when acquired

Net cash flows from/(used in)
investing activities

CASH FLOWS USEDIN A
FINANCING ACTIVITY
Dividends paid

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as stated
in the consolidated statement of
financial position
Non-pledged time deposits with original
maturity of more than three months
when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in
the consolidated statement of cash flows

—tF+-A=+—RALFE

EERPMEREREFR

RETHZHERE
EWERTTALE
B E iR E TR B
BEWE  WFEMREERB
//J\Eﬁ{ﬁlﬁﬁ/,éF
WeRE B A
Eﬁﬁéﬁﬂiﬁﬁﬁfﬁ
HEWE - BERRBER
FRiSEIE
BHEMRITEZORLD, (G n)
W RE R [REHA A = A A
2 BRI IRITIE AR
A, (En)

BEEBFS(FTA)
BeREF5

—EREEBAZ
RERE
EfAE

RERSARLHES
s, (AD) B

FZRERERRLEE

x5 Y EFE

FRZAEGRERNREEE

BeRERARTEE
EERD AT

HAMBRRAKRARZ
RAeEhERARTCEE

WRER REIHI e =18 A
Z BRI HITF R

GAERERERFIRZ
ReRERReEE
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2017 2016
—g—t5 | =2 AE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBT T
55,190 32,595
3,849 4,081
689 657
(914) (1,462)
(4,127) =
29 = (86,175)
(14,795) (3,442)
16 24
20,814 (10,646)
11,164 (31,617)
16,696 (128,580)
(48,454) (33,870)
23,432 (129,855)
170,393 304,726
4,875 (4,478)
198,700 170,393
246,547 229,404
(47,847) (59,011)
198,700 170,393
HBEAREARAT T LEER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R R B EE

31 DECEMBER 2017 —_E—+F+_-_A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the
Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is
located at Level 10, Cyberport 2, 100 Cyberport Road, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal
activities:

provision of enterprise applications software and related
services, business process outsourcing, e-business, and related
maintenance services;

provision of system and network integration, information
technology (“IT") solutions development and implementation,
and related maintenance services; and

property and treasury investments.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of incorporation/
registration and Issued ordinary/
business registered capital

M, BRTEE/

AMREELR AMER

REAREEER

MEEAREEERAR DR B REZM
K Z2ERAR  HEMoEECR
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda ° AR A) 3 B & 1 B R
B S EIE S8 1005 EE B2 1042 ©

FA - AEBRFEATEEZER
PRt X AT RABR RS - X715
ARSI - EFEBRYS - LARIEE
RERF
RERXGLBEEKRY - BARH
(TR BEAT RERNER
ARABERERE : &
MEREBHKE -

BB 2 B 2 B
ARREEMBARZFEMT :

Computer And Technologies British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1,000

(BV) Limited Hong Kong LEmAR1,000% 7T
HBRAES/BH

Computer And Technologies Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2

International Limited &5 Non-voting deferred**

R RSB R AR HK$5,000,000

LERET

BRERELT™

5,000,000/ 7T

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

Percentage of
equity attributable to
the Company Principal activities
KA R EERE
EEADL FTEEK
2017 2016
—E2—+tF =T F
100 100 Investment holding
KREER
100 100 Provision of IT solutions
development and
implementation
services, investment
holding and treasury
investments

REEARERT R
BREERRY R
BERNEBRE



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B 35 S R M e (7R

31 DECEMBER 2017 —_Z—+HF+=ZA=+—H

1.
(CONTINUED)

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Computer And Technologies
Integration Limited

MEERBR AT

Computer And Technologies
International Trading
(Shanghai) Company
Limited*

R R e S AR
25 (LB)BRAR)

Computer And Technologies
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.#

EREHE S AL
BRARE

Computer And Technologies
Investment Limited

C&T (Guangzhou)
Investment Limited

M (BN REBRAF]

C&T (Hong Kong) Investment
Limited
R (BB )REERAA

Place of incorporation/
registration and Issued ordinary/
registered capital
BRITEE/
HEAR

business

A

AMREELM

Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2
0 Limik2E T
PRC/Mainland China US$200,000
R, E A 200,000% 7T
PRC/Mainland China US$3,500,000
R, E At 3,500,003 7T
British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1
Hong Kong T@ERIET
EBRAHE/ BB
Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2
Bh LBERAT
British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1
Hong Kong TRERIET
RBRIHE/ B

75

1. ARREEER(E)
MEQ R &R (&)
Percentage of
equity attributable to
the Company Principal activities
FRREGERA
EmADH TEEHK
2017 2016
—E-tF —ERF

100 100 Provision of system and
network integration
services

R RGN BB R
A%

100 100 Sale of computer
networks and system
platforms

HEERB® KRS
Ta

100 100 Provision of system and
network integration
services

REt R R ABR R
R
100 100 Investment holding and
treasury investments
REZERNEBRE
100 100 Property holding
RAEYNE
100 100 Property holding
RAEYME

Mgt R EER AR

T —tFFR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B 365 S M e (7R

31 DECEMBER 2017 —_Z—+HF+=A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

C&T (Nanjing) Investment
Limited
Rt (AR REBRAR

C&T (Shanghai) Investment
Limited
B ( 8 IREBBAF

Computer And Technologies
Solutions Limited

M HERAR]

Computer And Technologies
Solutions (Shenzhen) Co,,
Ltd.*

REgE ORI AR AR

Computer And Technologies
Resources Limited

M EREEARAF

Computer And Technologies
Software (Hong Kong)
Limited

Mg R Gt (F8)
BRAR

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

Place of incorporation/

registration and
business

A
AMREELR

Issued ordinary/
registered capital
BRTEE
&R

1. ARREEER(E)

Principal activities

E-E 33

Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2
BE Limik2B T
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2
BB EEik2BT

Ordinary HK$10,000

Hong Kong
7 T 3BA% 10,0007 7T

B8

PRC/Mainland China US$1,128,000
R RE N 1,128,000 7T

Hong Kong
&

Ordinary HK$10,000
EiBAR100008 7T

Ordinary HK$10,000

Hong Kong
7 T 38BA% 10,0007 7T

BB

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

ME DR 2ER ()
Percentage of
equity attributable to

the Company

ERREMGERA
EEADL

2017 2016

=

100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

Property holding
HAEYE

Property holding
ERES

Provision of IT solutions
development and
implementation
services

RUBAR AT R
R R EHRE

Provision of IT solutions
development and
implementation
services

REBARRBEAT R
B R E RS

Provision of human
resources management

REANERER

Provision of enterprise
applications software
and related operation

RECEHHEAR
HEsE



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5o 35 S Y o ()

31 DECEMBER 2017 —_Z—+HF+=ZA=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Place of incorporation/

registration and

business

A

AR EELR

Issued ordinary/
registered capital
BRTEE
AEMER

Global e-Business Services  British Virgin Islands/ Class A US$1,600
(BVI) Limited Hong Kong Class B US$400
EBELER /BB A$B 1600375
BXB400ETT
Global e-Business Services  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,010,000
Limited £ E3/AR1,010,00078 7T
BREFBERS
BRLE
Global e-Trading Services Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2,501,000
Limited B L 3AA%2,501,0007% T
BEIRBARAA
IPL Research Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100
&5 Non-voting deferred**
HK$300,000
LimR100%8 T
BREEELT
300,000/7C

77

1. ARKREEER(HE)

MEARZER (&)
Percentage of
equity attributable to
the Company Principal activities
A A TEEBA
BHES L TEEEY
2017 2016
=Bt == F
100 100 Investment holding
KREER
100 100 Provision of enterprise
applications software
services
RECERMEARS
100 100 Provision of e-business

related services,
including government
electronic trading
services
RUETESNR
k% - BB
BETEHR

100 100 Provision of enterprise
applications software
and related operation
outsourcing services

RECEHHEAR
L EINIRTS

M REGEEERART —T—tFFH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5o 35 e Y o ()

31 DECEMBER 2017 —_Z—+HF+=A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Place of incorporation/
registration and
business

M

Issued ordinary/
registered capital
BRTLE/

AMREELR HMER

Platinum China Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000
&5 LAk 1000078 7T
Platinum Software Systems ~ PRC/Mainland China Ordinary US$200,000
(Shanghai) Co, Ltd* FEL B T3 A% 200,000 T
BEEMER(LE)
BRAR"
Sanyo Extended System Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000,000
Services Ltd 5 @ik 1,000000% 7T
=HRRESARAR
ANNUAL REPORT 2017 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

1. ARREEER(E)

MEAR2ER (&)

Percentage of
equity attributable to
the Company

AARRMERAE
BEEIH
2017

Principal activities

FEEK

100 Trading of computer
software licenses,
provision of training,
implementation
and maintenance of
software services, and
investment holding

BEESMBMRETRE
RESEE - Bi
RIRERBEIAR
REER

100 100 Trading of computer
software licenses,
provision of training
and implementation,
maintenance and
support services

BEESMBMETE
REUEI R E AR
RE KX E RS

100 100 Provision of computer

support and
programming services,
and investment
holding

REBHZER

TR Fr ekt IR A
REER



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B 35 S R M e (7R

31 DECEMBER 2017 —Z—t&§+-A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Sanyo Extended Data
Systems Ltd
SHAMRERARAR

LERBRHERAR"

MR ORFY) AR AR

Place of incorporation/
registration and

Issued ordinary/
registered capital

BRITEE/

business
ML

Ef R EE R HEAR

Hong Kong Ordinary HK$180,000
BE L iAR180,0007 7T
PRC/Mainland China Ordinary US$450,000
R, E A AR450,000% T
Macau Ordinary MOP25,000
R T3 A%25,00088 P9 7T

RAREEER (&)

MEAR2ER (&)

Percentage of

equity attributable to

the Company Principal activities

AR FRIGRA
BREIL
2017 2016

TEXEH

—g—tf |2 G

100 100 Provision of computer
support and
programming services

REBHZERIEZF
SRR

100 100 Provision of enterprise
applications software
and related operation
outsourcing services

REUGRERIT R
L EINHIRES

100 100 Provision of enterprise
applications software
and related operation

REUGRERIT R
HEZE

M REGEEERART —T—tFFH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2% B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2017 —_Z—+HF+=A=+—H

2.1

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

i The subsidiary is registered as a Sino-foreign equity joint venture under PRC
law.

# The subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under
PRC law.

L Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the
Ernst & Young global network.

** The non-voting deferred shares, which are not held by the Group, carry no
rights to dividends or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general
meeting. In the winding-up of the subsidiaries, the holders of the deferred
shares carry the rights to receive a return of capital after the holders of the
ordinary shares have received a sum of HK$1,000,000,000 per ordinary share.

Except for Computer And Technologies (BVI) Limited, all of the above
subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group
or of particular importance to the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars
of excessive length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
investment properties, an available-for-sale investment and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss which have been measured
at fair value. These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars ("HKS") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R 2R B aE (AR
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017. A subsidiary
is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e, existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(©)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2% B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2017 —_Z—+HF+=A=+—H

2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control described above. A change in
the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill and other intangible assets) and liabilities
of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (i) the cumulative translation differences recorded in
equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(i) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis
as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first time
for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for

Unrealised Losses
Amendments to Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities:
HKFRS 12 included in Clarification of the Scope of HKFRS 12

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

The adoption of the above revised standards has had no significant
financial effect on these financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,

that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

HK(FRIO)-Int 22

HK(FRIO)-Int 23

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts'

Financial Instruments'

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*

Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers'

Leases?

Insurance Contracts®

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures?

Transfers of Investment Property'

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration'

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments?

3t |

A==~

23 CHEMERRERZERBHBER

AEESER U EFEHRRERA T ISR
B I R AR R 2 FT T S B AT & B B 15

) -

BB SRS 2R
EPLACCHFN)
BB SRS 2R
FAFRUERTAN)

BB B HREZER
Fo5%
BB ER|
ELLACEEIRN)
BB RS 2R
FI0REBS
SR AERIZE 285

({BETA)
BB ZER

155
BB B HREER

ESLVHACHEN)

W

BB ER|
F165%

ARV BIwEER
F1758

BB GETAERIFE 285
CHEN)

BB GRTERIFE 4055
(3T A)

a5 (BB RE
ZEZEE)
—RREE2

B% (BRI RE
REZET)
—EE 2R

|

Rl R B AR

BRI 549
PR E

R BB H &
ERFEATEIRE S
b5 —HER BB
&R
FogEH T A

EETA

AFRHIEZIEFT
BRI

REZE BB &5
B EREZ A
B EET &

KEEFEAIBIPA
BB BB IR
AIE 155 B &~
BAIBTYEA
He:
REz A 47
REBENFIRAE
PR AR
1R E Y EE
INERS B RBTE

BLAT I3 B B EE Y
THEAZE

NG —T—LFFIR

83



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 2.3 CEMERKRENR T BMIFER

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS 2R (48)
(CONTINUED)
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 1 and HKAS 28 —E—FESR HEB 15 %R

HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Annual Improvements to Amendments to a number of HKFRSs?
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below. Of those standards,
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 will be applicable for the Group’s financial year
ending 31 December 2018 and are expected to have a significant
impact upon adoption. Whilst management has performed a
detailed assessment of the estimated impacts of these standards,
that assessment is based on the information currently available to
the Group. The actual impacts upon adoption could be different to
those below, depending on additional reasonable and supportable
information being made available to the Group at the time of
applying the standards.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

—E-ANFERC  FIREREESR
BRUBHEER  ERIF.HREL

FRUE CH
—E-AFF HERBEBVHRE
—F—tFAY . EREHZER]D
BB EER

FRRAE

1 RZE-N\F-A—HRXZRFRBZFES
AR

2 RIB-NF—-A Bz &K FEH
AR

3 R-E-—F— A HRXZRFABZFES
AR

4 1 AR T2 T 56 Il AR Ak B B - BT LR AR

BEHRERARNAREZZEBTBYBRE
B2 E—FEHNRN TIXEAL - ERFE
Al - BRMBREENF ISR NEBH
BHREENBSHEFEARANEEHEE—
E-N\FE+_A=1+—BLMBEFE B
BHREARSERNEATE - EEED
BZERERZ Gt FEETHAG
BRAFEIAAKRERRMAIRZERNRE
- XARZERZEXA RN T XA
AT AKERNEREARES Z B
BEIFREME



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

The HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 2 in August 2016 that
address three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the
measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction;
the classification of a share-based payment transaction with net
settlement features for withholding a certain amount in order
to meet an employee’s tax obligation associated with the share-
based payment; and accounting where a modification to the terms
and conditions of a share-based payment transaction changes its
classification from cash-settled to equity-settled. The amendments
clarify that the approach used to account for vesting conditions
when measuring equity-settled share-based payments also applies to
cash-settled share-based payments. The amendments introduce an
exception so that a share-based payment transaction with net share
settlement features for withholding a certain amount in order to meet
the employee’s tax obligation is classified in its entirety as an equity-
settled share-based payment transaction when certain conditions
are met. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that if the terms and
conditions of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction are
modified, with the result that it becomes an equity-settled share-
based payment transaction, the transaction is accounted for as an
equity-settled transaction from the date of the modification. On
adoption, entities are required to apply the amendments without
restating prior periods, but retrospective application is permitted if
they elect to adopt for all three amendments and other criteria are
met. The Group will adopt the amendments from 1 January 2018. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group's financial statements.

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version of HKFRS 9,
bringing together all phases of the financial instruments project to
replace HKAS 39 and all previous versions of HKFRS 9. The standard
introduces new requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting. The Group will adopt HKFRS
9 from 1 January 2018. The Group will not restate comparative
information and will recognise any transition adjustments against the
opening balance of equity at 1 January 2018. During 2017, the Group
has performed a detailed assessment of the impact of the adoption
of HKFRS 9. The expected impacts relate to the classification and
measurement and the impairment requirements are summarised as
follows:

(a) Classification and measurement

HKFRS 9 introduces, among other things, new requirements for
classification and measurement of the Group’s financial assets.
Available-for-sale investment with gains and losses recorded
in other comprehensive income will, instead, be measured at
fair value through profit or loss, which will increase volatility in
recorded profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Impairment

HKFRS 9 requires an impairment on a debt instrument recorded
at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income, lease receivables, loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts that are not accounted for at fair value
through profit or loss under HKFRS 9, to be recorded based on
an expected credit loss model either on a twelve-month basis
or a lifetime basis. The Group will apply the simplified approach
and record lifetime expected losses that are estimated
based on the present values of all cash shortfalls over the
remaining life of all of its trade receivables. Furthermore, the
Group will apply the general approach and record twelve-
month expected credit losses that are estimated based on the
possible default events on its other receivables within the next
twelve months. The Group has expected that the provision
for impairment will increase upon the initial adoption of the

standard.

HKFRS 15, issued in July 2014, establishes a new five-step model to
account for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under
HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring goods or services to a customer. The principles
in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured approach for measuring
and recognising revenue. The standard also introduces extensive
qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements, including
disaggregation of total revenue, information about performance
obligations, changes in contract asset and liability account balances
between periods and key judgements and estimates. The standard
will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements
under HKFRSs. Either a full retrospective application or a modified
retrospective adoption is required on the initial application of the
standard. In June 2016, the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 15
to address the implementation issues on identifying performance
obligations, application guidance on principal versus agent and
licences of intellectual property, and transition. The amendments are
also intended to help ensure a more consistent application when
entities adopt HKFRS 15 and decrease the cost and complexity of
applying the standard. The Group will adopt HKFRS 15 from 1 January
2018 and plans to adopt the transition provisions in HKFRS 15 to
recognise the cumulative effect of initial adoption as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained earnings at 1 January 2018. In
addition, the Group plans to apply the new requirements only to be
made on 1 January 2018 upon initial adoption of HKFRS 15 will not be
immaterial. However, the expected changes in accounting policies, as
further explained below, will have a material impact on the Group's
financial statements from 2018 onwards. During 2017, the Group has
performed a high-level assessment on the impact of the adoption of

HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

The Group's principal activities consist of the provision of enterprise
applications software and related services, business process
outsourcing, e-business, and related maintenance services, provision
of system and network integration, IT solutions development and
implementation, and related maintenance services, and property
and treasury investments. The Group does not expect the adoption
of HKFRS 15 will have a significant impact on the Group’s financial
performance and financial position. However, the presentation and
disclosure requirements in HKFRS 15 are more detailed than those
under the current HKAS 18. The presentation requirements represent
a significant change from current practice and will significantly
increase the volume of disclosures required in the Group's financial
statements. Many of the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 15 are
new and the Group has assessed that the impact of some of these
disclosure requirements will be significant. In particular, the Group
expects that the notes to the financial statements will be expanded
because of the disclosure of significant judgements made on
determining the transaction prices of those contracts that include
variable consideration, how the transaction prices have been
allocated to the performance obligations, and the assumptions
made to estimate the stand-alone selling price of each performance
obligation. In addition, as required by HKFRS 15, the Group will
disaggregate revenue recognised from contracts with customers
into categories that depict how the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by economic
factors. It will also disclose information about the relationship
between the disclosure of disaggregated revenue and revenue
information disclosed for each reportable segment.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16, issued in May 2016, replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-
Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-
Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating
the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The
standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to
recognise assets and liabilities for most leases. The standard includes
two recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets
and short-term leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a
lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease
liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset
during the lease term (i.e,, the right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset
is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses unless the right-of-use asset meets the
definition of investment property in HKAS 40, or relates to a class of
property, plant and equipment to which the revaluation model is
required. The lease liability is subsequently increased to reflect the
interest on the lease liability and reduced for the lease payments.
Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest expense
on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-
of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the lease
liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such as change in
the lease term and change in future lease payments resulting from
a change in an index or rate used to determine those payments.
Lessees will generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement
of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from
the accounting under HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all
leases using the same classification principle as in HKAS 17 and
distinguish between operating leases and finance leases. HKFRS 16
requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than
under HKAS 17. Lessees can choose to apply the standard using
either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach.
The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 16 from 1 January 2019. The
Group is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 16 upon adoption
and is considering whether it will choose to take advantage of the
practical expedients available and which transition approach and
reliefs will be adopted. As disclosed in note 30(b) to the financial
statements, at 31 December 2017, the Group had future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in aggregate
of approximately HK$8,752,000. Upon adoption of HKFRS 16, certain
amounts included therein may need to be recognised as new right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities. Further analysis, however, will be
needed to determine the amount of new right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities to be recognised, including, but not limited to, any
amounts relating to leases of low-value assets and short term leases,
other practical expedients and reliefs chosen, and new leases entered

into before the date of adoption.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 40, issued in April 2017, clarify when an entity
should transfer property, including property under construction or
development, into or out of investment property. The amendments
state that a change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases
to meet, the definition of investment property and there is evidence
of the change in use. A mere change in management’s intentions for
the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use.
The amendments should be applied prospectively to the changes
in use that occur on or after the beginning of the annual reporting
period in which the entity first applies the amendments. An entity
should reassess the classification of property held at the date that it
first applies the amendments and, if applicable, reclassify property to
reflect the conditions that exist at that date. Retrospective application
is only permitted if it is possible without the use of hindsight. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from
1 January 2018. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22, issued in June 2017, provides guidance on how to
determine the date of the transaction when applying HKAS 21 to the
situation where an entity receives or pays advance consideration in a
foreign currency and recognises a non-monetary asset or liability. The
interpretation clarifies that the date of the transaction for the purpose
of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) is the date on
which an entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset (such as
a prepayment) or non-monetary liability (such as deferred income)
arising from the payment or receipt of the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance of recognising
the related item, the entity must determine the transaction date
for each payment or receipt of the advance consideration. Entities
may apply the interpretation on a full retrospective basis or on
a prospective basis, either from the beginning of the reporting
period in which the entity first applies the interpretation or the
beginning of the prior reporting period presented as comparative
information in the financial statements of the reporting period in
which the entity first applies the interpretation. The Group expects
to adopt the interpretation prospectively from 1 January 2018. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group's financial statements.
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2.3

2.4

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23, issued in July 2017, addresses the accounting for
income taxes (current and deferred) when tax treatments involve
uncertainty that affects the application of HKAS 12 (often referred to as
“uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation does not apply to taxes
or levies outside the scope of HKAS 12, nor does it specifically include
requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with
uncertain tax treatments. The interpretation specifically addresses
(i) whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately;
(i) the assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax
treatments by taxation authorities; (iii) how an entity determines
taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused
tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity considers changes
in facts and circumstances. The interpretation is to be applied
retrospectively, either fully retrospectively without the use of
hindsight or retrospectively with the cumulative effect of application
as an adjustment to the opening equity at the date of initial
application, without the restatement of comparative information. The
Group expects to adopt the interpretation from 1 January 2019. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group's financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets
in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTBERME(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit

retained.

Goodwill previously eliminated against consolidated reserves
Prior to the adoption of the HKICPA's Statement of Standard
Accounting Practice 30 Business Combinations (“SSAP 30") in 2001,
goodwill arising on acquisition was eliminated against consolidated
reserves in the year of acquisition. On the adoption of HKFRS 3, such
goodwill remains eliminated against consolidated reserves and is not
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when all or part of the
business to which the goodwill relates is disposed of or when a cash-

generating unit to which the goodwill relates becomes impaired.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, debt investment
and equity investments at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset and liability. The principal or the
most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, financial
assets and investment properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person:

i

) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

i

) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties (continued)

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for
this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land and Over the shorter of the lease

buildings terms and 2% to 4%
Leasehold Over the shorter of the lease
improvements terms and 20%

Computer equipment 20% to 33'/,%

and software

Furniture, fixtures and 18% to 25%
other equipment
Motor vehicles 20%
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTBERME(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year
end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property which
would otherwise meet the definition of an investment property)
held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business.
Such properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the
reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year in
which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year
of the retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2% B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2017 —Z—+&+_-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Customer relationships

Purchased customer relationships are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of 8 to 10 years.

Software

Purchased software is stated at cost less any impairment losses and is
amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful lives of
10 years.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will
be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability
to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these
criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised using the straight-line basis over the
commercial lives of the underlying products/services not exceeding
five years, commencing from the date when the intangible assets are
available for use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R 2R B aE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2017 —Z—+tF+—-HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the statement
of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where
the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases are
charged to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and buildings elements, the entire lease
payments are included in the cost of the land and buildings as a
finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
and available-for-sale financial investments, as appropriate. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value
plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets, except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair
value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

24 TESTHEREE(E)

REEE

R EERBR BRI EIHR & ERRFR
BREEAZEE I AKEHEE - EX
SEREBEAR  AEERELEHETHE
HeBEFARDEE RELHET
Z YIS ABRRIRAME ABaER o
EAEERAEAR - ] %&%fﬂ‘ETZWi
NS NERERE RN ER RN

KERE 2 BN T A E N R F KA
PR - HIENEHEERER - EHE
'H KB AA DA T REFHES
2RAEEFHF AL RIEFHA - 5
T’EW% WEREBE2BERS -

RERHMUBEE

SRR TE
MBEERN T HABREZBRSER
BAFELKESARIMBEE EXK
M HIAR A HHERBIRE - WIEEE
RN FHERRZ A FEMEBTEEER
HZRBRAFTE - R FELESEA
BRZ TS EERRSD o

AREFBRTEARKEZHBEE
REZAER - IAKEAZBAKHE
ZEEZHHY - ERBERTEARKETS
RIS IE G — RRE 2 AR
BEARHEMBEE -

BB RAEEERAR —T—LEFR

929



100

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2% B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2017 —ZE—+%+_-_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
sale in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss. These net fair value
changes do not include any dividends or interest earned on these
financial assets, which are recognised in accordance with the policies
set out for "Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition
and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as separate
derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the
host contracts are not held for trading or designated as at fair value
through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in
the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows
that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial
asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R 2R B aE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2017 —Z—+tF+—-HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in the statement
of profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investment

Available-for-sale financial investment of the Group is a non-derivative
financial asset in debt securities. Debts securities in this category
are those which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of
time and which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in
response to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, an available-for-sale financial investment is
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss, or until the investment is determined to
be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the statement
of profit or loss. Interest earned whilst holding the available-for-sale
financial investment is reported as interest income and is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss in accordance with the policy set out
for "Revenue recognition” below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2% B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2017 —Z—t&§+=-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESBERME (F)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Derecognition of financial assets RIEEIANKEE
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or W EE(NER - BBEEREP—IH
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised S—HEUCHMBEERET —F9)EE2R
(i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial THER IR BIRAEE 2456 8
position) when: kR R MER)
the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or . BZEERMReRE 2ENEE
Wk
the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from . AREEDEEREREZEEREN
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received BN - SEREIEIR | 2R
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under EEAEYREREREATRAE=
a "pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has Hi%(ﬁﬁauﬁlﬁﬁiﬁﬁmimﬁﬁc ;
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or QAEBECHEHEZEERRLHRA
(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially A&@iﬁ EAOFN=S @jﬁﬁ@}%ﬁﬁ
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control BREEZBRRT D REBROR - H
of the asset. EEEZEE R %'J% c
When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from MERAEEEEZEEEEAEWRNRERE
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates 2RI B FT L EIR T HE - A aﬂEIEE&
if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership ENRELRBEEHEEEZRR
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially ] B ETEENTRE ﬁFZi@ﬁ‘B
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the R R EIR - INEEEREE 2T - A
asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the REBRABELRZEREEZIZER
extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group RLBE - RZBEAT - AEBTEHER
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the HEAaE CEREENMBBEGETINR
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and A E AR B RERN REERELEFTS o

obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the FELHEASEREEREEFEL 2R
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying B EEEREENUZBEEZLREEEAE
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that LN S jZfE: ECREEE LR ZUR
the Group could be required to repay. EEFHE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R 2R B aE (AR
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group
of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be,
recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 R 2% B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2017 —ZE—+%+_-_A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERME(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans
and receivables together with any associated allowance are written
off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the statement
of profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investment

For available-for-sale financial investment, the Group assesses at the
end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence
that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for sale,
impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial
assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount recorded
for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference
between the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Future interest income continues to be
accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset using
the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Impairment losses on
debt instruments are reversed through the statement of profit or
loss if the subsequent increase in fair value of the instruments can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R 2R B aE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2017 —_Z—+F+_-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities of the Group are classified, at initial recognition, as
loans and borrowings.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts
that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its
fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher
of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period; and
(i) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERME(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held by the
Company or the Group (treasury shares) are recognised directly in
equity at cost. No gain or loss is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own
equity instruments.

Shares held under the restricted share award
scheme

Where shares of the Company are purchased from the market for a
restricted share award scheme, the consideration paid, including any
directly attributable incremental costs, is presented as “Shares held
under the restricted share award scheme” and deducted from equity.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case
of finished goods and work in progress, comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated
costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue represents service fees received in advance from
the rendering of the corresponding services. Revenue is recognised
and deferred revenue is released to the statement of profit or loss
when the corresponding services have been rendered.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in the statement of profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESHBERME(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future periods in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured
reliably, on the following bases:

(@)  from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective control
over the goods sold;

(b)  from the rendering of integration and solutions services
and application services (other than the sale of goods or the
provision of maintenance services), on the percentage of
completion basis, as further explained in the accounting policy
for "Contracts for services” below, or when the relevant services
have been rendered;

() from the provision of maintenance services, on a time
proportion basis over the terms of the respective contract, or
when the relevant services have been rendered;

(d) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease terms;

(e) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset; and

() dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTBERME(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Contracts for services

Contract revenue on the rendering of integration and solutions
services and application services comprises the agreed contract
amount. Contract costs comprise direct equipment and material
costs, labour and other costs of personnel directly engaged in
rendering the services and attributable overheads.

Revenue from the rendering of integration and solutions services and
application services (other than those that are recognised on a time
proportion basis over the period of the contract or when the relevant
services have been rendered, as appropriate) is recognised based on
the percentage of completion of the transaction, provided that the
revenue, the costs incurred and the estimated costs to completion
can be measured reliably. The percentage of completion is established
by reference to the costs incurred to date as compared to the total
costs to be incurred under the transaction, or the value of services
performed to date as a percentage of the value of total services to be
performed under the transaction. Where the outcome of a contract
cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent
that the expenses incurred are eligible to be recovered.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are
anticipated by management. Where contract costs incurred to
date plus recognised profits less recognised losses exceed progress
billings, the surplus is treated as an amount due from contract
customers.  Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred
to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is
treated as an amount due to contract customers.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESBERME (F)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Share-based payments URHBEZNRS
The Company operates two equity-settled, share-based RARRBEMIBRIEZZRG MEE
compensation schemes including a share option scheme and a BIE—IEERER S R —IEE R AR (H 12
restricted share award scheme for the purpose of providing incentives EhEtEl - BEUARBARKEEE 2 KINED
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of BRlcEERSHEEREEDRER - K
the Group's operations. Employees of the Group (including directors SEHEE(PEASEETSERBCESE)
of the entities comprising the Group) receive remuneration in the FRBMAROZF2ME - MiEEZRMH
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as REIEERETAZRE(TRELZER
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”). 1) e
The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants B -F+—HtHE  pAaRniE
after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value at R BT < IRAEA §§%2ﬁ$7ﬁﬁ
the date at which they are granted. RHERACATERE
The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee PR AE 45 B X 5 2 A AN 2 (R R AN 2 4R FE IR
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity, EREJNHERBAR SRG G2 AR
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions EERAMAZ®ER - AERRERNREE
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled REZRBERAMRELER SRR
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting MYREEBHEERLD - UERAEE
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and REESEBERB o RATAHE &
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that FEbE - SHRBER ZIBETA - 18
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit or ZHEARNEREERERRTHASI 2 E
loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense g o

recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into ETRENAEDBHNATER W IE
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but ZE R MIETHEBUEMT - BT hE
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the MZ SRR B E AR SR B &AL
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will FENRETIASENREME - MIFE
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within MG RERIFE B A TERN o 2EAT
the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, B 75 B N 8 4 B PR 75 22 I A 4T L At 614
but without an associated service requirement, are considered to %ﬂﬁ'ﬁ BEBIEM - BRIFBBINNRE R,
be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in ERURY - BRIZERBIR M RN 5EE)
the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an E’\J”&EFTEW BB S 51 52 -

award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market FERERIETIBE R R &
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no BEBRURFBNEBNE - T2RAT
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non- X - &REBET ST B RY
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective REMAHEMBEB R LR IGHE &=
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided K Tiemis sk IR B 1'7&@7&% SEERK
that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied. ZERGHERRBEE

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B35 $R 2R B aE (AR

31 DECEMBER 2017 —&—+F+_-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification, that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options and shares held under the
restricted share award scheme is reflected as additional share dilution
in the computation of earnings per share.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS 2 in
respect of equity-settled awards and has applied HKFRS 2 only to
equity-settled awards granted after 7 November 2002 that had not
vested by 1 January 2005 and to those granted on or after 1 January
2005.

Other employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their
employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under certain
circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at the end of
each reporting period is permitted to be carried forward and utilised
by the respective employees in the following year. An accrual is made
at the end of each reporting period for the expected future cost of
such paid leave earned during the year by the employees and carried
forward.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESBERME (F)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Other employee benefits (continued) Hihfg 5B (&)
Retirement benefit schemes BB E
The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident REBIRBEERENEAERFT NGO A
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the HeBER2HEE@ECEEERTREM
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for ToARIM AR RKEANEEI(REEE
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. 1) o HRNIEEEERT M2 B AT
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’ - ERAESFEIZRAETZARR
basic salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss BTGk BESHECEERBY
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF ERZESHEAEEEESFFHA - &%
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from BrREHEFNEM TaEesTEENE
those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The HEENER  ASE 2 EXERMEE
Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees when HR - EEEREZE T HHEEHRATE
contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group's employer BOBRAT @ JIRRESFTE 2R BRE
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the REH -

employee leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting fully,
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in REBRPEAMEE B ARERR
Mainland China are required to participate in a central retirement 22 B g AR A P B 3t 75 T BRI i 2 R AR
benefit scheme operated by the local municipal government. REFETE - ZEMBRARAREBEE LH
These subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage © 2 —E B DL m A RRKEE R F B4
of their payroll costs to the central retirement benefit scheme. oo HEETIRIBEBE R LRIKBHIFTE 2R
The contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss as BB EEMNRERRRP Y o

they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
retirement benefit scheme.

Termination benefits #KIEEF

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Group BRIEBMRARETCBREREEZSMN=
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the Rk EAEBRERS R HRIEEFZE
Group recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of MR (AR BB A E B TER o

termination benefits.

Borrowing costs (ER- 122N
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group BERABEAEBERESKREL ZF
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds, and they are BRHEMAR  ZESEREERES -

expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors, excluding those relating
to the Company’s own shares held under the Company’s restricted
share award scheme, are classified as a separate allocation of retained
profits and/or other distributable reserves within the equity section
of the statement of financial position, until they have been approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends
have been approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s bye-laws grant the directors the authority to declare
interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in
the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e, translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit or
loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation,
the component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Judgements (continued)

Operating lease commitments - Group as lessor
The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined, based on
an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that
it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other
assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion that
is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion
that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold separately
or leased out separately under a finance lease, the Group accounts for
the portions separately. If the portions could not be sold separately,
the property is an investment property only if an insignificant portion
is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an individual
property basis to determine whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as an investment property.

Income taxes

Significant judgement is involved in determining the provision
for income taxes. Determining income tax provision requires
management to make estimates and assumptions and involves
judgement on the tax treatment of certain transactions, assessment
of the probability of tax uncertainties and interpretation of applicable
tax rules. These estimates, assumptions, judgements and assessments
affect the amounts that are reported in these financial statements
and accompanying disclosures. The Group carefully evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly.
The tax treatment of such transactions is reconsidered periodically to
take into account any changes in tax legislation and/or underlying
assumptions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31
December 2017 was HK$134,485,000 (2016: HK$134,485,000). Further
details are given in note 14 to the financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period. Non-
financial assets with finite useful lives are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value of an
asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal
is based on available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value
in use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate
the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating
unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of related
non-financial assets at 31 December 2017 was HK$53,656,000 (2016:
HK$57,463,000).

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at their fair values. The fair value
at the end of each reporting period was based on a valuation on
these properties conducted by an independent firm of professionally
qualified valuers using property valuation techniques which involve
making assumptions on certain market conditions. Favourable or
unfavourable changes to these assumptions would result in changes
in the fair value of the Group’s investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the gain or loss are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Further details, including the key assumptions used for fair value
measurement, are given in note 13 to the financial statements.

Impairment of loans and receivables

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is any objective evidence that a loan/receivable is impaired.
To determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment,
the Group considers factors including, inter alia, the probability of
insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtors and
default or significant delay in payments.

The Group maintains an allowance account for the estimated
loss arising from the inability of its debtors to make the required
payments. The Group makes its estimates based on the ageing of its
receivable balances, debtors’ creditworthiness, and historical write-off
experience. If the financial condition of its debtors was to deteriorate
so that the actual impairment loss might be higher than expected,
the Group would be required to revise the basis of making the
allowance. Further details are given in notes 18 and 19 to the financial
statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Contracts for services

The Group recognises certain contract revenue on the rendering
of services by reference to the stage of completion of the contract
activity at the end of the reporting period, when the outcome of
a contract can be estimated reliably. The stage of completion is
measured by reference to the proportion that contract costs incurred
for work performed to date bear to the estimated total contract
costs to be incurred under the transaction, or the value of services
performed to date as a percentage of the value of total services to be
performed under the transaction. Significant assumptions, such as the
total budgeted staff costs, are required to estimate the total contract
costs and/or the stage of completion. The estimates are made based
on past experience and knowledge of management.

Business combination

On 4 January 2016, the Group acquired the entire equity interest in
Platinum China Limited (“PCL"). PCL and its subsidiary (collectively
“Platinum”) are engaged in the provision of Human Resources
Management ("HRM") solutions specifically designed to meet
the business and regulatory requirements in the PRC. Intangible
assets acquired by the Group in the acquisition include software
and customer relationships. The residual portion of the purchase
consideration was allocated as goodwill, which represents the
balance of the purchase consideration over the fair value of
identifiable net assets acquired by the Group. The purchase price
allocation has involved significant management judgement and
estimation, such as the valuation methodologies, the discount rate
adopted and the estimation of useful life of the intangible assets.
Further details are given in note 29 to the financial statements.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Deferred development costs

Deferred development costs are capitalised in accordance with the
accounting policy for research and development costs in note 2.4 to
the financial statements. Determining the amounts to be capitalised
requires management to assess whether such cost is eligible for
capitalisation, including the assessment of whether such cost is
directly attributable cost, and make assumptions regarding the
expected future cash generation of the assets, discount rates to be
applied and the expected period of benefits. At 31 December 2017
the best estimate of the carrying amount of capitalised deferred
development costs was HK$4,127,000 (2016: Nil).

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has three reportable
operating segments as follows:

(@)  the application services segment that primarily engages in
the provision of enterprise applications software and related
operation outsourcing, business process outsourcing and
e-business, and related maintenance services;

(b)  the integration and solutions services segment that primarily
engages in the sales of computer networks and system
platforms, and the provision of system and network integration,
IT solutions development and implementation, and related
maintenance services; and

(c)  the investments segment that primarily engages in various
types of investing activities including, inter alia, property
investment for rental income and/or for capital appreciation
and treasury investment in securities for dividend income and
interest income and/or for capital appreciation.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit, which is a measure
of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted profit before tax is
measured consistently with the Group's profit before tax except that
unallocated interest income, unallocated other income and gains,
net, unallocated foreign exchange differences, net, corporate and
other unallocated depreciation, corporate and other unallocated
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, tax recoverable, pledged
bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, and other unallocated head
office and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group
basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and
other unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.

There were no material intersegment sales and transfers during the
current and prior years.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

Al

mETHER ()

EEBREYERAKBEERENHZF
B URERDERKRBFGELIRE ©
7 BRI TR IR A e E 0 AR A AE 1T Y
fl - ML T EFBBRFADRFIGHE X -
7R 8 B R 5 A V) LA R [ R A At A2
FFEEE-H - EPAEST RRIENE
WA~ ROEER ZR0%F5E - EEREM
AOBEFTEAREEREMARD B -

DHEBEENBRBRENAEE - (RENR
B EEARTER B LERBEZER
E - ARHEMADBRELBRERXEE @ R
RAALHFEESER—EE -

DHRBENERBEANE  REFEAR
REMADEABREXRAE  REA/L
FRENEER—ERE -

REFMEBEFELTEERDBHEIHE
S



123
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5o 35 S Y o ()

31 DECEMBER 2017 —_Z—+HF+=ZA=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
(a) Operating segments (a) KEDHR

EVEIENT]
Application Services  Solutions Services Investments Total

ERER SRRBANERR h& L

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 216
=84 - Eay o ERY) - BRI
HK$'000 = HKSO00"  HKS$'000 = HKSO00"  HK$'000 = HKS000"  HKS$'000 = HKS000
tan (R Tan SR  Tin (R a7 R

Segment revenue: AHRA:

Sales to exteral customers HEFIRER 144293 13987 106991 116293 2631 2579 253915% 258699
Otherincorne and gains,net At A RN TS 4751 499 (25) @) 689 657 5415 113
Total 5t 149,044 140326 106,966 116,250 3,320 336 259,330 259812

Segment results TH%E 53557 46980 26,765 30418 7,810 392 88132 81360

Reconcilaton: HE -

Unallocated interest income RARHEHA 3849" 4081
Unallocated foreign exchange differences,net ~ KA R REEF8 (905) (109
Comorate and other unallocated depreciation ~ SEREMAAENE (1,828) (1809
Coporateand otherunallocated expenses ~ SERERANEH (28400 (26728)
Proft before tax Bianar 60846 5679

Segment assets FDEE 87,349 8253 344371 335601

Reconciliation: %

Corporate and other unallocated assets TEREMRALEE 23779 268571

Total asets BELH 608,150 604172

Segment liabilities AUEE 936 83 123101 1283%

Reconciliation: i

Comorate and other unallocated liabies ~ S¥REMKAREE 32,081 3%

Totalliabiltes BEE% 155,182 162690

* This represents the consolidated revenue of HK$253,915,000 (2016:
HK$258,699,000) in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

ERBABRERZEAEKRA
253915000 8 7L ( = & — X F
258,699,000/ 7T ) °

These comprise the consolidated other income and gains, net, of " BEEGEAEBRERANZ HMA R
HK$9,264,000 (2016: HK$5,194,000) in the consolidated statement of I FE /9,264,000 T (ZF —RF ¢
profit or loss. 5,194,000/ 7T) °
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
(a) & AR(HE)

(a) Operating segments (continued)

Integration and

Application Services  Solutions Services Investments [c]

ERER SRRBANERR r& L

2017 06 2017 06 2017 06 2017
ZE-tF D208 ZE-tF T2 % CE-tF DT F | CZ-tF
HK$'000 | HKSO0D! HK$'000 - HKSOOD" HK$'000 - HKSOOD  HKS'000
Tén | fEm TR TEr TEr| TEm TEn

Other segment information: EAHER
Netfair value gains on investment RENFA TR TR
properties - - - - 3,590 1,000 3,590 1000
Net far value gains on BATBEER AR
financialassets atfair value through IREEATENE
profitorloss e - - - - 1380 B5 1380 15
Amortisation of other intangible assets At AR 6,024 6024 - - - - 604 6024
Depreciation Vil 607 619 364 408 34 % 1,005 1061
Corporate and other unallocated PEREMRAERE
depreciation 1,828 1809
2,833 2870
Impairment losses recognised/ reversed) NEREER
inthe consolidated statement of w2/ (BE)Z
profit orloss, net* REEBRE 345 (78 - (4 - = 345 (8
Capital expenditure™ BRRET B5 5330 4139 197 S S A3 5349
Corporate and other unallocated capita PEREBAAE
expenditure B 667 4
5,041 53544
& Including impairment losses recognised in the consolidated & BRERGEBERMER RS E AR

%5 B0 2 BB B 18 /& 74600078 T (=
T—7NF 1 29400058 70) © RIREREE
5B 2R A FE BRI £ S0 R SR A K
BARAFRRE DB BEEES R A
401,000 70 (ZF — /<4 © 372,0007%8
T RE(ZZ—7RF 1 400087T) °

statement of profit or loss attributable to the application services
segment of HK$746,000 (2016: HK$294,000) and impairment losses
reversed in the consolidated statement of profit or loss attributable
to the application services segment and the integration and
solutions services segment of HK$401,000 (2016: HK$372,000) and
nil (2016: HK$4,000), respectively.

EAHAXBEDE  BERRER
B HM\PEENRSEH KN
BRRZAE -

** Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and *x
equipment and other intangible assets including assets from the
acquisition of subsidiaries.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

(b) Geographical information

(i) Revenue from external customers

Segment revenue: ABBA
BETHAEP

Sales to external customers

The revenue information is based on the locations of the

customers.

(ii) Non-current assets

Hong Kong
Mainland China

The non-current asset information is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes financial instruments

and deferred tax assets.

(c) Information about major customers

Revenue from an external customer individually amounting to

10% or more of the Group's total revenue:

For the year ended 31 December 2017, revenue from a major
customer of HK$61,437,000 (2016: HK$66,564,000) was derived
from the application services segment and integration and

solutions services segment.

4, BEsWBEH(E)

(b) HEEHR
) RBEIREFZBA

Hong Kong and other

countries/regions Mainland China Total

BERAMER/ HE TERL e

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017

2016

2Rt DTN ZF-tF |58 F| C%-tF 5T 0%

HK$'000 - HKSO0D.  HK$'000 - HKSOOD  HK$'000
TR WAL TEx[ TEL TER

186,914 195,261 67,001 63438 253,915

HKS'000

A7

258699

WABR AR FPELAE

i/ﬁ'_o

(i) FRBEE

2017 2016
S5d =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT THT
115,465 114,554
143,931 145,059
259,396 259,613

FRBEEEMVIREEME
W23 - FEPIRFREHT

ANEERBREE °

(0 EEEFZEHR

KB —RINTEP ZRABRIEAE

B 42U A10%8K A F

HE_Z2—tF#+-_A=+—8H
EFE KRB RZXTEREFZK
A &61437,0008 L (ZF — /N F -
66,564,000%57C) * BREASRETIRE E
FABRTE » SR AR AR KRR R IR

BB o

Mgt R EER AR
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET

Revenue represents the aggregate of the invoiced value of goods
sold, net of trade discounts, returns and sales related tax, where
applicable; fees earned from the provision of enterprise applications
software, related operation outsourcing, business process
outsourcing, e-business, system and network integration, IT solutions
development and implementation and related services; fees earned
from the provision of maintenance services; gross rental income
earned from investment properties; and interest income earned from
treasury investments during the year.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains, net is as follows:

WA

RS EEREN KA EE
SN REERRRIMIRE
B PR - ARBRBRERS

Revenue

Provision of enterprise applications software
and related operation outsourcing, business
process outsourcing and e-business,
and related maintenance services

Sales of computer networks and system
platforms, and the provision of system
and network integration, IT solutions
development and implementation, and
related maintenance services

HEERERRRGTE - UK
RERG R ABEERRT -
BARHEERT RERNER
AR AR RARE IR TS

KREMFE 2 MW LR ER
BREZHBIA

Gross rental income from investment
properties and interest income from
treasury investments

Other income and gains, net Bt AR e FER

Tax refund received RBE

Bank interest income HRITHEUA

Dividend income from listed investments ETRE ZREWA

Loss on disposal of items of property, plant ~ HHE¥% « BiE KEZEEE
and equipment, net 2 EBFEE

Others Efth

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

WA - B AR Wi

BARAEFEHEEm ERERRT
BRESIH - RERHEEEBHRE(E
) RECEEBEN - HEAEBINA
Rz EFEZRE - ZRLE
MEMRTE - EARBRBRATRERRE
HEARBBERGE R B RRHRER
BRRZER  REMERDR B WA
MR ARGLESREREUZ M B YA -

WA~ A RSSO -

2017
—¥—tF

2016
—EF—RF
HK$'000
FH&T

HK$’000
TET

144,293 139,827
106,991 116,293
2,631 2,579
253,915 258,699
4,354 212
3,849 4,081
689 657
(18) (42)
390 286
9,264 5194
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BRBIADGEA
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): NEE BB ADS &R, (5t A) T3l
&I
2017 2016
—E—+t& —E—REF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FEx FAT
Cost of inventories sold BHEFENA 56,722 52,570
Cost of services provided BRI A 53,669 59,997
Depreciation* rEx 12 2,833 2,870
Amortisation of other intangible assets**  EL{th L& FE i G+ 15 6,024 6,024
Loss on disposal of items of property, LEME - BEREHEE
plant and equipment, net 2 SRR 18 42
Minimum lease payments under operating  RIFAEZEHE 2 HIEH S
leases FIE 6,246 6,497
Auditor's remuneration ZE AN & 1,220 1,570
Employee benefit expense (excluding EERMAXZ(TRE
directors' remuneration — note 7)": EEME — 7)™
Wages, salaries and allowances TE - FHie k£ 108,904 112,884
Equity-settled share-based payment R 4 B PARR (0 2SR 2
expense 200 397
Retirement benefit scheme contributions  3EARAEF 5T B4R
(defined contribution schemes) (m%ﬁ LA 5,293 5,221
Less: Amount capitalised in other B REMEREEEARE
intangible assets s x (3,680) =
110,717 118,502
Impairment of trade receivables JEWE 5 BR TR E 18 746 294
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables  $[al FEU & 5 BR FORE 18 (401) 372)
Reversal of impairment of an amount due B BIEW—Z 4 LR IR
froma contract customer SR 20 - )
Direct operating expenses (including repairs 8] BEXFE & 2 & W3 B #&
and maintenance) arising from KRR
rental-earning investment properties (BREFBRRE) 132 81
Fair value gains, net: NEEWEFEE -
Financial assets at fair value BAHELEBRARZ
through profit or loss M EE (1,380) (235)
Investment properties wEME 13 (3,590) (1,000)
Interest income from treasury investments  JEI§IE 2 F S WA (79) 79)

M REGEEERART —T—tFFH



128

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONTINUED) 6. MBANGER (&)
o Depreciation for the year of HK$33,000 (2016: HK$11,000) is included in “Cost * REFEEARHTE330008 L (ZF—7<4F : 11,000
of sales and services” on the face of the consolidated staternent of profit or BIL)MAREBRRZIEE RRBEH K]
loss. A o
R Amortisation of other intangible assets for the year of HK$6,024,000 * N E R E A B A 86,024,00078 7T (=
(2016: HK$6,024,000) is included in “Other expenses” on the face of the T — R4 © 6024000870 AR EBIRERZ
consolidated statement of profit or loss. [EfbFZ A -
" Inclusive of research and development cost for application software " BEEBERBHERTFR RRAZEKE
products of HK$11,555,000 (2016: HK$8,833,000). 11,555,000/ 7T (ZZ— /N4 :8,833,000/87T) °
' Inclusive of an amount of HK$53,669,000 (2016: HK$59,997,000) classified f BESER ERIRERBRAR | 2 8E
under “Cost of services provided” above. 53,669,00078 7t ( =& — /X F © 59,997,000 /&
JT) °
7. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 7. EEHM
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules FRNESHFHRBEBTERAIIMBERA
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong AIFEAH EMARBI( EWHAA]) - FBRF]
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of 1EHIZE383(N)@) ~ () * O RMOIER AT (HE
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies EENEER)APIE A HENT -

(Disclosure of Information about Benefit of Directors) Regulation, is as

follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FExT FAT
Fees: W -
Executive directors WITES = =
Independent non-executive directors B IEITES 450 450
450 450
Other emoluments: HAhEi s -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMREYAN S 6,553 5,731
Bonuses* TEAL* 1,913 1,118
Equity-settled share-based payment ARFELEE AR T R X
expense’ 419 316
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BRIREFIET B
(defined contribution schemes) (TEEHFETE)) 69 65
8,954 7,230
9,404 7,680
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7.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

determined by the board of directors on a discretionary basis.

The fair value of such restricted shares, which has been recognised in the
statement of profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the
date of grant and the amount included in the financial statements for the
current year is included in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during

the year were as follows:

Independent non-executive directors:
Ha Shu Tong xR
Lee Kwok On, Matthew TR
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRE

Save as disclosed above, there were no other emoluments
payable to the independent non-executive directors during

the current and prior years.

Certain directors of the Company are entitled to bonus payments which are

In prior years, certain directors were awarded restricted shares of the
Company, subject to certain vesting conditions, in respect of their services
to the Group, under the restricted share award scheme of the Company,
further details of which are set out in note 27 to the financial statements.

BUIFPITES ¢

7.

ESHM (&)

(a)

ARBETESHREDAEESNBEEE
2R

RBEFE - REARDQR 2 HR GG ZE)
8 RETRBGEEZHART  5TES
ERRENAEEMEHREERAREA
RbIBR LD - BREE — FRHGH N B IRKH
27 c REAERHIB M 2 AFETIREHB
HEE  YERRBHAERERER - M
AARFEHBHRRZEBNERER EX
ERHFMRER -

BAFYITES

0 SNTBIFRTES RS
T

2017 2016
S =
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR Tt
150 150

150 150

150 150

450 450

BEXEEESI  RAFERBESF
B EEMENTBLIFNTESZ
B -

M REGEEERART —T—tFFH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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7. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED) 7.

(b) Executive directors

The fees and other emoluments paid to executive directors
during the year were as follows:

ESHM (&)

(b) HITES

FR - ENTFRTEE RS REM
BEmT

Salaries, Equity-settled  Retirement
allowances share-based benefit
and benefits payment scheme Total
in kind Bonuses expense contributions remuneration
e 2ER e FE D EARER
itk AL ROZMAEX HE e Wewam
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TARL TARL TARL TARL
2017 ZE-tF
Executive directors: HTES
Ng Cheung Shing (Note 1) KRB 2,661 852 - 18 3,531
Leung King San, Sunny RRH 300 - - 15 315
Cheung Wai Lam RER 2,092 561 339 18 3,010
Ng Kwok Keung REI% 1,500 500 80 18 2,098
6,553 1913 49 69 8,954
2016 ZTRE
Executive directors; YIES:
Ng Cheung Shing REB 239 751 = 18 3161
Leung King San, Sunny 2R 300 - - 15 315
Cheung Wai Lam RIERR 1914 367 209 18 2,508
Ng Kok Keung (Note 2) REHA(fr0) 1,125 - 107 14 1246
5731 1118 316 65 7230
Notes: FiE
1. The directors’ emoluments paid to Mr. Ng Cheung Shing included a 1. SN TFTREBLEAECZCESTHRBE

housing allowance of HK$2,381,000 (2016: HK$2,112,000) which was
remunerated by way of rental reimbursement. The rentals of the
related property were paid directly by Mr. Ng to the landlord, which
is a company jointly controlled by Mr. Ng and one of his family
members.

2. Mr. Ng Kwok Keung was appointed as a director of the Company
on 1 April 2016 and the remuneration only included the period
subsequent to his appointment as a director of the Company.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

R B23810008 T (ZF — RN F -
2,112,000% 7t ) 2 (X FER/ - U
BZARAXMT - almEZHASHAR
EAEFBINTEE  MzEXARE
AREERBEFA —BRKEKE LA
b A/ I

2. REBREER T RNFOA—HE
ZERAAFEE  MEFMERRE
HEZERARRERETHREN
B o
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7. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (CONTINUED) 7.

(b) Executive directors (continued)

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the current and prior
years.

8. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 8.

The five highest paid employees during the year included three (2016:
three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 7
to the financial statements. Details of the remuneration for the year
of the remaining two (2016: three including the director appointed
in year 2016) non-director highest paid employees for the year are as
follows:

e KR
A E AR TR
Bonuses ++£I

RREFIEBER CERHS

Salaries and allowances
Equity-settled share-based payment expense

Retirement benefit scheme contributions
(defined contribution schemes)

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

T 21,000,000 7T
1,000,001/ 75 & 1,500,000/ 7T
1,500,001 75 2 2,000,000/ 7T

Nil to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

ESHM (&)

(b) BMITEE(H)

RAFERERBEFE - EFWEFHD
X [F] 2 B T Hr B 2 22 B

LEERSHFMES

FA IEESFHEERE=R(=F
—REZR)ES - REZFHFBEER
TG MARMI 7 - EBME(ZT—RF -
—HR(BER_TAFEZREZESR))R
BHMIESEE CFAFHFMFBOT

KETE))

2017 2016
S84 -
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
1,931 3,774
60 244
350 471
36 36
2,377 4,525
HFHNFUATANZZ2FHMIEERES
ZANEIT
Number of employees
BEAH
2017
—E—+F
1 _
1 2
= 1
2 3

Bt ZSEEFR A —T—LFFIR
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8. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (CONTINUED) 8. hERSHMES(E)
In the prior year, restricted shares of the Company, subject to certain RBEFE - BEBEARRE 2B R HIARM5D12
vesting conditions, were awarded to two non-directors highest BEE - RETEBREZHRRT - MA
paid employees in respect of their services to the Group, under the R HEEERECRERAAEEMR
restricted share award scheme of the Company, further details of HREEREA R R BREIRD - #E— 5
which are set out in note 27 to the financial statements. The fair value BEN I HmEM 27 - ZZEBREIRMN
of such restricted shares, which has been recognised in the statement ZAVFETRELEHBEE  TERFSB
of profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the AL IE R RER - Mt ARNFEE M B W
date of grant and the amount included in the financial statements for RZEBNEEERLXGESHFMIEES
the current year is included in the above non-director highest paid B EFBHRER -
employee’s remuneration disclosures.

9. INCOME TAX 9. FREBL

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2016:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions
in which the Group operates.

BENBRIBBEAFEARBBELZ
B ERBB N K 165%( = F —/NF :
16.5%) VEH B - B b R B 1 2 71
ERBEAEBEEEBAERK RE
RRERAVEE -

2017 2016

—E— & —T—RAF

HK$’000
TET

HK$'000
THET

Current - Hong Kong BNEY — &%
Charge for the year FRFRIAL H 7,905 8810
Overprovision in prior years RFELIREME (430) (1,595)
Current - Elsewhere BNER — Efthith[s=
Charge for the year FARIEXZH 775 841
Underprovision in prior years FEEVREE - 18
Deferred IRAE (1,733) (1,623)
Total tax charge for the year FRRIEX HAERE 6,517 6,451
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INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at
the statutory profits tax rate for Hong Kong in which the Company
and the majority of its subsidiaries operating/are domiciled to the tax
charge at the effective tax rate is as follows:

BR A AR A

Profit before tax

Tax at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate of 16.5%
(2016: 16.5%)

Effect of withholding tax of 5% on the distributable
profits of the Group's PRC subsidiaries

B/ 48R
B

Lower tax rates for overseas subsidiaries

Adjustments in respect of current tax of FLAE AN 2 BNEARE I8
previous periods {EH A%

Income not subject to tax BERBIUIRA

Expenses not deductible for tax CIEL RS

Tax losses utilised from previous periods )R B A BiIEE 18

Tax losses not recognised RIERTIBEE

Others HAftb

Tax charge at the Group's effective tax rate

BIAX

Under the income tax laws of the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"), enterprises are subject to corporate income tax (“CIT")
generally at a rate of 25% (2016: 25%). In the current and prior
years, certain of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries operating in specific
development zones of the PRC were granted preferential CIT rates of
10% to 15% by relevant tax authorities.

In the prior years, the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department
(the “IRD") had issued protective assessments to a subsidiary of the
Company demanding tax of approximately HK$6,622,000 for the
years of assessment 2007/08 to 2009/10. Enquiry letters were issued
to that subsidiary regarding, inter alia, the nature and the deductibility
of certain expenditure/expenses. The subsidiary had objected to the
protective assessments and written notices of objection had been
filed to the IRD, at the same time, the subsidiary had purchased tax
reserve certificates at the request of the IRD.

BREBREHRE165%
(ZZ—7<F 1 165%)
FTEZFIE

RAEEFEMB AT Z
A IR M2 5%TEFHE

EEINRIEEPNCIEN R RS

AEERERHERAELZ

Fr&%i (&)

ERNRART REKXED M E A RK
g/ m2MEBZEENEHRAERS
BRECATE M 2 BRIA - BB KRG

B BRI ERNT
2017 2016
—B—tF —E-RE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx TAT
60,846 56,795
10,040 9371
(665) -
(263) 97)
(430) (1,577)
(2,062) (1,209)
411 507
(9) (20)
154 306
(659) (830)
6,517 6451

BEREARLIMEA(HR])AERE
2 —RREE 5% ( ZT—7<F 1 25%) 2B
KAMPERBR([BEMBR]) o KA
FERBAEFE  ANEBETERATHE
TR @A BB A R AR BT SR
BT1I0%E1S%EIECEMESHBENE
e

RBEFE BEBRBRUBBER]) RAA
AE— R B AR L RE TR - Bk
B —TEL TNFE_FTTH, T
FRERZFETFMA66220008TT ° B
MM B AR LSRRG - ARE/E(E
FEE)E TR SHZEE RS T
R - ZM B AR R A BRE TS
WEHRHEZEMBNRERZRER @ [
B ZMBAREEHRERERBERFR
5‘;—’; o

MERSEEERAR —EB—LFFR
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INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

In October 2016, the IRD had issued the final tax assessments of the
subsidiary for the years of assessment 2007/08 to 2015/16, which
allowed the deductions of the abovementioned expenditure/
expenses. The tax reserve certificates purchased in the prior years
were refunded by the IRD. An overprovision of HK$1,003,000 in
relation to the IRD enquires had been adjusted and reflected in prior

year's profit or loss of the Group.

10. DIVIDENDS

Frigwi (&

ﬁé:g—ﬁiﬂﬂ REBERZHEA
ABEH =TT+ TN\FE-_ZT—F/
/\Eﬁ?ifz B ERFIR
My Y - REREREERNBAFE
BECRES BENEREAMEE Y
IBEBEE1,003, 0008 T E AL T AKRE
ERAFEZBERA -

10. RE

2017
—E2—+tF

HK$’000

Interim and special dividends — HK$0.10

TR

R H R R RIRR B — A E AR

(2016: interim dividend of HK$0.07) per 010/7T (ZE—7 4F :

ordinary share f&2007787T) 24,420 17,094

Less: Dividend for shares held under the Company's & : 1R IEANA R1G IR #IA% {5 258
restricted share award scheme FHEIRE R FTEARE (193) (159)
24,227 16,935

Proposed final - HK$0.07 (2016: HK$0.07) per BRI — SRS AAR0.0778 7T
ordinary share (Z=—7"F : 00787L) 17,094 17,094

Less: Dividend for shares held under the Company’s & : 1BiEANR 5] 5 R HI A% (7 228
restricted share award scheme FHEIRE R FTIEARE (121) (149)
16,973 16,945

Proposed special — HK$0.05 (2016: HK$0.03) per BORAE B — SRR E AR0.0578 7T
ordinary share (ZZ—7"%F : 003%7T) 12,210 7,326

Less: Dividend for shares held under the Company's & : 1R IEZANA B1A BR #I A% {5 288
restricted share award scheme SHEIRE 2RI FTEARE (87) (64)
12,123 7,262
53,323 41142

The proposed final and special dividends for the year will be payable
in cash with a scrip dividend alternative. The proposed dividends
are subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting ("“AGM”") and the permission
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited of the listing of new

shares to be issued.
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11. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 1. BARIEERBRRELERAER

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
242,229,239 (2016: 241,864,176) in issue during the year, as adjusted
to exclude the shares held under the restricted share award scheme
of the Company.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amounts is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent. The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during the year,
as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at
no consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares granted under the share option schemes of
the Company and the deemed vesting of all dilutive restricted shares
of the Company awarded under the restricted share award scheme of
the Company into ordinary shares.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on:

Earnings

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on
profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent.

Shares

BREABFESENBEIAREER
RRELRFANZMNRFASETEBR
DNRE Y9 80042,220239 % (—Z B — N5 ¢
241,864,1768% ) 5T E + WL HIBR AR R AR
il A% 15 BB AT EI T TR IR A (R FA % -

BRETRNSEIRES AR BB
REGFRENGE - SFEMAZEBK
MEFARSHESRERBNAR 2 F
NEBRTEBRREA - URERRNABR
BARRBEREASROZBEETER
B R BEATE R - ARARBAR
AARGBIR D ZE &R L ZME REE
ERERBIROBRIERER - ARFE
REE T A BIT 2 B BB -

SHEESRERNEERTNTAEENT

27
0% AN RS B T 8 A ) R
SRR RIS -

igri)

Number of shares

R 8 E

2017

Weighted average number of ordinary shares & & S&RREARZFFTAFA
BEITE RN T E

in issue during the year used in the basic
earnings per share calculation

—E—tF

Effect of dilution — weighted average number ~ EEE3 2 — @A INEFH SR -

of ordinary shares:
Restricted shares awarded under the

RIEAR R B R A 220
Company’s restricted share award scheme  5F&8I3% H = A R HIAZ D

242,229,239 241,864,176
753,412 856,914
242,982,651 242,721,090
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. Y%  BERRZE

31 December 2017

At31 December 2016 and

“§-tEt-A=t-A

RZE—E+-A=+-AR

Leasehold
landand
buildings

i
HRET
HK$'000
T#7r

Leasehold
improvements
il

HK$'000
TEn

Computer
equipment
and
software
B
RE#
HK$'000
iR

Furniture,
fixtures
and other
equipment
i %8
SR
HK$'000
TEn

Motor
vehicles

nE
HKS'000
Thn

Total

Ak
=}]

HK$'000
TER

at 1 January 017: RZE-t5-A-R:

Cost s 1,213 6,817 4,248 2,102 647 15,027

Accumulated depreciation ST (451) (4127) (3172) (1,233) (184) (9.167)

Net carrying amount RETE 762 2,690 1,076 869 463 5,860
At 1 January 2017, net of RZF-t5-A-R"

accumulated depreciation il e i 762 2,690 1,076 869 463 5,860
Additions "E - 3 855 2% - 914
Disposals HE - (20) (9 (5) - (34)
Depreciation provided during the year FRRERE (33) (1,534) (738) (366) (162) (2,833)
Exchange realignment A% - 36 6 1 - I
At31 December 2017, net of RZF—tETZA=T-A"

accumulated depreciation THRgitnE 729 1,205 1,19 525 301 3,950
At31 December 2017: REE-tE+ZA=T-R:

Cost A 1,213 6,856 5037 2,156 647 15,909

Accumulated depreciation 2itNE (484) (5,651) (3,847) (1,631) (346) (11,959)

Net carrying amount FHEE 729 1,205 1,190 525 301 3,950
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

Leasehold equipment fivtures
land and Leasehold and other Motor
buildings  improvements vehicles
g - fig E :
THRETF NZ5E k& e
HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000
Thr i ThL ThL ThL
31 December 2016 ZE-xE+ZR=1-A
At January 2016 RZZ-r"E-A-H
Cost A 123 5587 12,552 1813 657 282
Accumulated depreciation ZEiTE @12 (1820) (11802 (839) (0) (14903)
Net carying amount HEFE 801 3767 750 974 627 6919
At 1 January 2016, net of RZE-—RE-A-F"
accumulated depreciation il 801 3767 750 974 67 6919
Addtions hE - 508 80 % - 1462
Disposals inj 5 - () 4 (13 = (66)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 29) Y- EHBARHH) - 31 19 199 - 479
Depreciation provided during the year EMAEER 39) (1548) (759) (360) (164 (2870)
Exchange realignment B AR - (24) (15) ) - (64
At 31 December 2016, net of RZE-E+-A=+-R"
accumulated depreciation MR2iriE 76 26% 1076 869 43 5860
At31 December 2016; RZZ-"E+-A=1-A:
Cost A 123 6817 4048 2102 647 1507
Accumulated depreciation STl (41) 4127 B172) (1233) (184 (9167)
Net carrying amount HREE 76 269 1076 869 463 5860
R RS E AR AR T —tFFR

12. 9% - BERKRE(E)

Computer

Fumiture,
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

R—A—B ' REE
Net gain from a fair value adjustment N EFE 2 Wam F 58

WtZA=+—RH  KEE

Carrying amount at 1 January

Carrying amount at 31 December

The Group's investment properties consist of three (2016: three)
commercial properties in Mainland China and one (2016: one)
industrial property in Hong Kong. The directors of the Company
have determined that the investment properties consist of two
classes of asset, i.e.,, commercial and industrial, based on the nature,
characteristics and risks of each property. The Group's investment
properties were revalued on 31 December 2017 based on valuations
performed by Landscope Surveyors Limited, independent
professionally qualified valuers, at HK$71,255,000. Each year, the
Group's Chief Financial Officer decides, after proper approval, to
appoint which external valuer to be responsible for the external
valuations of the Group’s properties. Selection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained. The Group’s Chief Financial Officer has
discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and
valuation results twice a year when the valuation is performed for
interim and annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating
leases, further summary details of which are included in note 30(a) to
the financial statements.

At 31 December 2017, one of the Group’s investment properties
situated in Hong Kong with a carrying value of approximately
HK$60,000,000 (2016: HK$57,000,000) was pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group.

Further particulars of the Group's investment properties are included
on page 179.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

13. REWE

2017 2016

—g—tx | B NE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT FHT

67,665 66,605

6 3,590 1,000
71,255 67,665

REBREYEBTE=B(—T— R F: =18)
MRFBERZ AEMER—H(ZE—XAF :
—H)NRBEBZIENE - ARAEBEIRE
BEYEZELD BHURERETCREDE LM
BB (AIEERTIF)EE -RZE—tF+=
B=+—8 AEEZRENERBLIEELE
A ERN AR 2RI T AR A RE T 2 HEEM
/71,255,000 7T © ANEBEMBRERTE - REUE
BERER  BFRTINBEEMEEASLED
EZINEMEE UBIZEBEMSNG B2
B REEERFEEKE - NEEMBRE
BEEMER TR R FEBHRE R NT
ZIEETER 2 A ERER RGBS RETRAG

=A
A ©

REMFEORBLEHELHTE=7 £—F
BB R BN M B HRR M RE30@) ©

R-Z—+F+-A=+—08  AEEURES
2 B —I518 B Y % R E B £ 460,000,000 7T
ZZ—7X4F 1 57,000,000 ) EEAESER T
AEEZ —ARIRITRVE (IR ©

REEREYFE 2 E—HFHBERE1795 -
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of
the Group's investment properties:

Recurring fair value EEMATERNE
measurement for:
Commercial properties BENE
Industrial property IEm%

Recurring fair value EEMATERNE
measurement for:
Commercial properties HEME
Industrial property IEm%

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3
(2016: Nil).

13. REWF(H)

AFESRRE
TRETASERENEZ AP EES
BRI -

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2017 using
R=S—tF+=A=+-B2ATERANTEEIE
Quoted
pricesin Significant  Significant
active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

ERME EXTHEE EXTTEE

HE BAHE BAYE
($1/8) (%5218) (%3fE) et
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THET TEx TRT

- - 11,255 11,255
= = 60,000 60,000
= = 71,255 71,255

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2016 using
NZE—RNETZA=T—HZATERANTEEFE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(EVER)) Level 2) (Level 3)

(
FETS EATEER ETTER
%

HE I AR BARE
(F18) (F28) ($38) st
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TR TET

= = 10,665 10,665
= = 57,000 57,000
= = 67,605 67,665

RAFE  F1EHREE2ETEQATE
AEERRUENTEFEEARELES
B(=—ZT—/NF &)

M REGEEERART —T—tFFH
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 13. REWE(E)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) AN EEREEE)
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 BHEARNTESREESEIBENATENS
of the fair value hierarchy: AR -
Commercial Industrial
properties property
[SE2/ES TEYE
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FTEx
Carrying amount at 1 January 2016 RZZ—R"FE—-—A—AZKEEE 10,665 56,000
Net gain from a fair value adjustment RERPER AT EFRE
recognised in profit or loss W $ 58 = 1,000
Carrying amount at 31 December 2016 and RZZE—RE+-A=+—HkK
1 January 2017 —2—tF—-HA—HZEKHEA 10,665 57,000
Net gain from a fair value adjustment RIERP R AT ERE
recognised in profit or loss WS 5Ea 590 3,000
Carrying amount at 31 December 2017 RZZE—+tF+=A=+—~1H
ZBRHEE 11,255 60,000
Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the key TRAHKREMERERA ZEERER
inputs to the valuation of investment properties: FEHABEME -

Significant
Fair value Valuation unobservable
hierarchy technique inputs

DYEER EXRTBE

RiE hERE LIPN ¢

Commercial properties Level3 Market comparable  Prevailing price per RMB1,115to RMB1,252 to
method square foot RMB2,184 RMB2:415

[EEUES F3E s EE FFARZETEE  AR¥1L11552 AR5
ARM2,1847 AR 4157

Industrial property Level 3 Market comparable  Prevailing price per HK$10,899 to HK$10,657 to
method square foot HK$11,936 HKS$11,731

IEMx F3E TS BA BYARZBTER 10,899 T2 1065782
11,9368 173187

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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13.

14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 13. REYHE(E)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Under the market comparable method (or market comparable
approach), a property’s fair value is estimated based on comparable
transactions. The market comparable approach is based upon the
principle of substitution under which a potential buyer will not pay
more for the property than it will cost to buy a comparable substitute
property. The unit of comparison applied by the Group is the price
per square foot (“sq.ft.").

GOODWILL

DN ESRER(E)
BREBEMISLBOR(RMIHALEE) - W%
RFETIAFT LB R 5 BEEME - 15
HESEAR B RAAER - it - BHEE
R T ERDENRBEEZMEZ AL
BERMERZ 2% - ARERBZA
HBEMBFFTR(FITRI)ZER -

14. BHE

HK$'000
TAT

31 December 2016

Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2016
NEREIE

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 29)

Cost and carrying amount at 31 December 2016

W BE B B A A (B EE29)
R-ZE—RFE+-_A=+—H
AR REE

—E-XRF+=ZHA=+—H
R-ZT—XRF—A—HZKRA

44,575
89,910

134,485

HK$’000
TR

31 December 2017

Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2017 and
31 December 2017

As further detailed in note 2.4 to the financial statements, the Group
applied the transitional provisions of HKFRS 3 that permitted goodwill
in respect of business combinations which occurred prior to 2001 to
remain eliminated against consolidated reserves.

The amount of goodwill remaining in consolidated reserves, arising

from the acquisition of subsidiaries prior to the adoption of SSAP 30
in 2001, was HKS$7,227,000 as at 31 December 2016 and 2017.

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to the
following cash-generating units for impairment testing:

Application services cash-generating unit; and

Integration and solutions services cash-generating unit.

R-ZB—+F—A—HBK
—ET—+F+HA=+—H
2R REREE

—Z—+tH+=-H=+—H

134,485

M IR KT 2405 - AEEER
BB 1S 2 Rl 36357 2 @R MRS
BN _ZEZ—FRIMELEBEGEH
BB IR S RS o

RIBT—F RPN E LR F 3058 A1
WENB AR FTEATRERGAHBEZ
EESE NZZE—R"FER_FT—tF
+=—RA=+—H%&7.227000 7T °

EERERH

SREARTNE - BREBAREZE

BESEE MHIRSELSW :
FERBEREELSM : R

SRR ERGR S ELEN -

M REGEEERART —T—tFFH
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14. GOODWILL (CONTINUED) 14. BHE (&)
Impairment testing of goodwill (continued) EERENR (&)
The carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to each of the cash- PREFReEABN 2 AERMENT :

generating units are as follows:

Integration and Solutions
Application Services Services Total

R SRRBRLRRY At

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
“E+tFE 2T % —E—tF T \F ZE-t& == %
HK$’000 HKS000© HK$'000 HKS000© HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET TER TAT TEx TAET

Carrying amount of goodwill HEEEE 132,462 132462 2,023 2023 134,485 134,485
Application services cash-generating unit ERARERESEELEN
The recoverable amount of the application services cash-generating EARBREELESEM AT KEEEER
unit has been determined based on a value in use calculation using BEAEEMSEE  ZEAEENIAS
cash flow projections approved by senior management covering BEREBRMEZAFHERETEA R
a five-year period and beyond that extrapolated with a zero (2016: ARTE(ZE—RF: T)EILEREKHE
zero) percentage growth rate. The discount rate applied to the cash HmatE - BensBAmAITIRER19%
flow projections is 19% (2016: 18%) and the cash flow projections (ZZ—7R%F : 18%) - MR METEATIR
are determined based on past performance and management’s BRAIXRAREEEHEMSER CTEHRM
expectations for the market development. EEE °
Integration and solutions services cash-generating unit EREBAATRBERESELESN
The recoverable amount of the integration and solutions services SEREBATRRBRSEABL 2K
cash-generating unit has also been determined based on a EeEACREBECHAEESTE  ZERAE
value in use calculation using cash flow projections approved by BRIMARREEEEZ AFHRSR
senior management covering a five-year period and beyond that EEARGAERZE(ZE—RF: T)ENMH
extrapolated with a zero (2016: zero) percentage growth rate. The EERHEEMAE - RER=2RATER
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 19% (2016: WIREAB19%(ZF—NF : 18%) + MR
18%) and the cash flow projections are determined based on past MEEANREBEATRALREEEHMS
performance and management’s expectations for the market BRE 2 TAEMETE

development.

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the HE_Z—tF+A=1+—HBEKZ=Z
application services and the integration and solutions services cash- —RNF+ZA=+—8 " TEEARBEA
generating units for 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016. The REKEBATERRB ReEESEL
following describes each key assumption on which management has FREBEREEAZETRE - ERER
based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of HRemEBAETEERE NG TKE
goodwill: ZEBBEF2HEEBMNT
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14. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

Integration and solutions services cash-generating unit

(continued)

Budgeted revenue - The basis used to determine the value
assigned to the budgeted revenue is the revenue achieved in the
year immediately before the budget year, adjusted for management’s

expected change in market demand and customer base.

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the value
assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average gross margins
achieved in the year immediately before the budget year, increased
for expected efficiency improvements, and expected market

development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax and reflect

specific risks relating to the relevant cash-generating units.

15. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

31 December 2017 —T—+F+-A=1—H

Costat 1 January 2017, net of RZZE—+F—-A—-Hz

accumulated amortisation and

impairment wE
Additions NE
Amortisation provided during the year KEEHERE
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+-A=1—H
At 31 December 2017: RIZ—+F+-A=+-8:
Cost PR
Accumnulated amortisation and SR RAE
impairment
Net carrying amount FEFE

PR - HBR RETHESH T

14. BE(E)

TS 2R k1R L (A
ERRBRTREBR SE B (H)

BHEBRA-BERAZEBEDRERER
BEEMZFERNDERN ZWAEE I
PEEEBERMERLREFPER 22
TEHFHEE

AHTRE - BEER® 2 EEDRER
BREEEN 2 FENE 2 FHEF
REE - YRBERAKERBEDEE
BfE s -

FRE-MEMANFTRXBHEHATTR
R ZRRRRABREELEM 25
EERR ©

15. EttEFEEE

Deferred
development Customer
costs* relationships Software Total

JEFEBA R KA EFRRE L a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TR TER

= 12,290 39,313 51,603
4,127 = = 4,127
= (1,656) (4,368) (6,024)
4,127 10,634 34,945 49,706
17,153 14,767 43,681 75,601
(13,026) (4,133) (8,736) (25,895)
4,127 10,634 34,945 49,706

MERSEEERAR —EB—LFFR
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15. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 15. Hh\EEEE(E)

Deferred
development Customer
costs* relationships Software Total

ERTFREAA EFEE G et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TAT TAT TATL TAL

31 December 2016 “E-XE+ZA=t-H

Costat 1 January 2016, net of accumulated ~~ R=ZE—~E—A—HAz

amortisation and impairment BRAS - MR RATEE R
RE - 6,343 = 6,343
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 29) YrBaP B A7) (Ff7E29) = 7,603 43681 51,284
Amortisation provided during the year AEEEHERE - (1,656) (4,368) (6,024)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—"F+ZA=1+—H = 12,290 39313 51,603
At 31 December 2016 and at RZZE—R"F+=-A=1+—H
1 January 2017: RZE—+F-A-R:
Cost A 13026 14,767 43681 71474
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 25T KR (E (13,026) 2477) (4368) (19871)
Net carrying amount FEFE - 12,290 39,313 51,603
& During the year, additions of other intangible assets of HK$4,127,000 (2016: * FRN - AtEFEERNES1270008T(=F
Nil) were developed internally. —NF  \E)TIERRERRE o
16. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 16. AIHERE
2017 2016
—E—tF —F—RF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET T
Club membership debenture, at fair value BAFEFEZSHMeEES 1,780 1,880
During the year, the net loss in respect of the Group’s available- RER > BERNEENE M2 EmIKA T iE
for-sale investment recognised in other comprehensive income R AR ERE 2 IFEE /1000008 7T
amounted to HK$100,000 (2016: Nil). (ZZT—R"F &) -
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17. INVENTORIES

Work in progress & m

18. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

Trade and bills receivables

For system integration projects and the provision of maintenance
services and software development services, the Group's trading
terms with its customers vary from contract to contract or depending
on the specific arrangements with individual customers, and may
include cash on delivery, advance payment and on credit. For
those customers who trade on credit, the overall credit period is
generally within 90 days, except for certain projects with longer
implementation schedules where the period may extend beyond 90
days, or may be extended for major or specific customers. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding trade receivables
and overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over these balances. Trade and bills receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

EUE SRR R EREE
Impairment DERIE]

17. E&

2017 2016
S5d =

HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx TAT
1,433 38

18. EWWE ZRA R EWERE

2017 2016
—g—+5 [ e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH THT
43,724 46,363
(2,361) (1,975)
41,363 44,388

SR G ERAIA B DA RIR MR B RS R
RERBME  AREREFIIVZRS
R e Bl & # AR T B AR E P 2
PIRHEMRE - AT BRERINR - BEN
AR o MZFARBRTZETRSZ
BEPME  BREEH-KRTEZR0OX
KA TREETHRE - AIEEHAE
REBBEOX  LARERIHETFT
REEH - ARE—HEBEHERER
ZEWE SRS SREEETENEMN
B IR AR o AKE B UL FHERRT
BEMEBERRRELEMEERERE -
FEUE 5 MR M SRR AN FT RS

M REGEEERART —T—tFFH
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18. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of provisions,
is as follows:

Within 1 month —REAR

1 to 3 months —Z=={8A
410 6 months HZE N EA

7 to 12 months +tE=+=f@A

The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables are as

follows:

At 1 January n—HA—H

Impairment losses recognised (note 6) B HERREEE (MisTe)
Impairment losses reversed (note 6) B ERERBE(MEe)
Amount written off as uncollectible HsE A TR & 58
Exchange realignment e 3, 58 B

At 31 December W+=ZRA=+—8”H

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade receivables is
a provision for individually impaired trade receivables of HK$2,361,000
(2016: HKS1,975,000) with a carrying amount before provision of
HK$2,361,000 (2016: HKS$1,975,000).

The individually impaired trade receivables relate to amounts that
were long outstanding and/or customers that were in financial
difficulties/in default.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

18. BERE B RREERREE (F)

RBEMREAER  BEESERRLER

ERREFHRY KB BEZ Rk ST
LI

2017 2016
—g—tf | ==
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T
29,190 29,174
9,366 9,521
1,084 5137
1,723 556
41,363 44,388

FEE H RN RERBESHINT -

2017 2016
—B—tF —ERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TAT
1,975 1783

746 294

(401) (372)

- (10)

a1 280

2,361 1975

FiEWE SERZRERERIEREE
AT B T 1B /4 2,361,000/8 0 ( ZF — /N &F ¢
1,975,000 70 ) Z (BRI B R EE U E 5 B K
YEH 2 B #52,361,0008 L ( Z 8 — N & ¢
1,975,00078 7 ) °

& 51 2 5 (B e W B 5 B SR B = AR 9 5K 8R
/B BREREZEFER -
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18. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables that are not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

RE TR RIE
BRIR—EA
BH—E={EA
BHEAPY = X fE A
B EANRLE

Neither past due nor impaired
Less than T month past due

1 to 3 months past due

4 to 6 months past due

Over 6 months past due

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
number of diversified customers, including certain departments/units
of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
("HKSAR"), for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of independent customers that have a good reputation and/or have
a good track record with the Group. Based on past experience, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.

19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

Prepayments TEfFRIE
Deposits and other receivables Be R EAMFEWGRIA

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial
assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which
there was no recent history of default.

18. BWESZRRKEVRREE(E)

KRG AREZ Y E SRR N EREZE
ZERERDITINT ¢

2017 2016

S ad =
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHT
25,674 28,762
9,830 7,372
3,971 3,205
1,377 4,616

511 433
41,363 44,388

R 78 B I R B 2 R UK IR B AT HR I R e
Rz 22 TRAEFER  BERAEER
BlITHE ([EEFR])BUFE T8

fiz o

BEESRE REFRREEBRTR
SEAKRBEEARFERCHRZETEYL
EFPAR - RENEER  KARESFER
Ao HRNEEERYESAZY  A%E
BRIDEE /A BBKRE - MBARZE
RERRELIRE R

19. ANFE - HFE REMEWRKIER

2017 2016
S5d =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT THT
10,662 8,024
4,804 5,795
15,466 13,819

PR EEMEAMSHRRE - BN E
a4 R R 2 B 755 1 BRI B S R R R
ZIRWGRIBRR -
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20. CONTRACTS FOR SERVICES

Contract costs incurred plus recognised profits
less recognised losses to date
Less: Progress billings

Gross amounts due from contract customers

BN & NEPFIRMEER

Gross amounts due to contract customers

The movements in provision for impairment of amounts due from
contract customers were as follows:

At 1 January R—H—H

Impairment losses reversed (note 6) B ERERE(MFe)
Amount written off as uncollectible MEs AT eelk e S8R
At 31 December R+ZA=+—8

Amounts due from contract customers that were not impaired were
not past due and relate to a number of independent customers
that have a good track record/relationship with the Group and/or
for whom there was no recent history of default. Based on past
experience, the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances
as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.
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S EEERKIBAN
BRI AR E R B 1R
B OEE R AR E

eI & #IE P IR A

20. RIEEH

2017 2016
—g—tF | —E &
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT T
73,820 69,533
(77,951) (79,646)
(4,131) (10,113)
16,276 10,092
(20,407) (20,205)
(4,131) (10,113)

ERAEHBEPFIEREREZESHINT

2017
—E—+tF

HK$000 HK$'000

THET

- 1,556

- )

- (1,552)

YEREZBEEHOEFPFBALRAS -
WERSMRAEER RIFNHRCEEA
SEE RIFBER R0 BN SR RE 8
ZBIEFPER - RIBBELER  ARF
EERRBANZFERIELRERE
HIHNMEEERYESAEE  MAH
REERMDER AR 2BURE - AN B &5
REEBRTFEEMERRREMEER
RIE o
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21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

21. RAFEKEBESARZUBEE

THROUGH PROFIT ORLOSS
2017 2016
—ZE—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHT THET
Debt investment, at market value EMEFE 2 —HEEKRE 2,544 2,531
Listed equity investments, at market value EMEFE 2 EmRARE 10,857 9,490
13,401 12,021
Portion classified as current assets DEAREESD (10,857) (9,490)
Portion classified as non-current assets DI AIEREEES D 2,544 2,531

The debt investment was designated upon initial recognition as
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss as it is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management or investment strategy, and
information about the investment is provided internally on that basis

to the Group's key management personnel.

The listed equity investments were all included under current assets
at 31 December 2016 and 2017 and were classified as held for trading.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's debt and listed equity
investments with a carrying value of approximately HK$13,400,000
(2016: HK$12,000,000) were pledged to secure general banking

facilities granted to the Group.

ERNEBREDNRERCAREBINE
REEAFEEEEERFHERE - &0
MRERREIEE /B AFELRE AR
ZHBEE MEBZRFREZERTIR
HEAEERAASEZ T EEIEABRNE
Al

EARAREHEFAR T —RFER-
FE—tHEF+_A=+—"BZRBEE L
DRESREER -

R-B—+F+-A=+—8 Kx&H
AR TE (B #) 713,400,000/ 70 ( = & — /N4
12,000,000/ 7T ) Z (B & E MR A E B 1E
AOBERTAEE 2 —RIBITHEER
j:qﬂ °
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22. BEREFREEEURCEF

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

RITEM

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—K
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FBT
Cash and bank balances B MIRTTHE & 135,591 114,249
Time deposits TEHAITE SR 112,027 137,040
247,618 251,289
Less: Pledged time deposits for performance B BLERTTE L 2 BAVRE
bonds/qguarantees issued by banks EREETEEBER (536) (19,765)
Pledged deposit for a banking facility BIBITIRE CIRITRE
granted by a bank* P 1377 50 (535) (2,120)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in FTAGEMBMAR 2 RE R
the consolidated statement of financial position ZRBCEE 246,547 229,404
@ The banking facility has not been utilised as at the end of the reporting period. * RFERFSEED - WREEAZRITRE -

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
and time deposits of the Group denominated in Renminbi ("RMB”)
amounted to approximately HK$98,057,000 (2016: HK$75,396,000).
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. However,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods
of between one and six months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short
term time deposit rates. The bank balances and time deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
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RMEPHLEER - ZEEUARE(A
R DEtE2 R ¢ RIRITESG R TE BTN
#97/598,057,00078 70 ( —ZF— 754 : 75,396,000
BIT) c ARBTATEHLRAEME
BAR B P B At FINE B IR R ) e 45 B - B
ERFNEERRTE  AEBEELEE BT
EITINEXEB 2 RITIARB LR ABEM
HNEE o

RITRERIBEE B RITERMRZZEH
KR - EHEMERNFERANTF—=
NEATE - \FAKENERSHFRM
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23. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND

23. ENESKRN - EBARER

ACCRUALS FEStROR
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—R
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FEx FATT
Trade payables BT E S ER 25,306 21,246
Other payables Hih e3R8 29,874 27,425
Accruals e IR 19,094 15,558
Consideration payable on WEER B A B R E (P EE29)
acquisition of subsidiaries (note 29) - 14,795
74,274 79,024
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting R EHEAEER BNESRKIRRR
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: B BREDTAT -
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FA&T
Within 1 month —fEAR 21,493 17,524
1to 3 months —&E={@A1 2,807 2,598
410 6 months e P! 547 184
Over 6 months ME A A E 459 940
25,306 21,246
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled FBRE SRR TTE - —RIZ30AHR
on 30-day terms. 5 o
Bl X EE BB A A T —tFFR
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24. DEFERRED TAX 24, EEBIIE
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year FNEERIBEERAB2EEHNT :

are as follows:

Deferred tax assets ELEBIBEEE
2017
—E—+5F
Temporary
differences of
deferred
revenue
ETLEWRA 2
HEFER
HK$’000
FExT
At 1 January 2017 RZE—tF—H—H 2,994
Deferred tax charged to the consolidated statement ~ FRFHFRER S IBRR
of profit or loss during the year ZIEEF IR (214)
Exchange differences M ERE 204
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+tF+-A=+—H 2,984
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHRAKE

2017
—E-tf
Fair value
adjustments
arising from
Revaluation acquisitionof ~ Withholding

of properties  subsidiaries taxes
L
WEARZ
NRERE LTERR M st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FAR FTER Ti#n TR

At 1 January 2017 R=ZE—+45-A—-H 1,378 12,438 3,658 17,474
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to the FRIB/ FAGRABER

consolidated statement of profit or loss BT

during the year 148 (1,430) (665) (1,947)
Tax paid ENHE - - (280) (280)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+-A=1+-H 1,526 11,008 2,713 15,247
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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24. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax assets

At 1 January 2016

Acquisition from subsidiaries (note 29)

Deferred tax credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss during the year

Exchange differences

At 31 December 2016

Deferred tax liabilities

24. ELEH IR (&)
EEBHEEE

R=—E—XF—H—H
U BE BT 8 A A (B 7E29)

FAFTALRE
EFERTA
M EE

BaERZ

RZZE—ARF+=-A=+—H

At 1 January 2016
Acquisition from subsidiaries (note 29)
Deferred tax credited to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss
during the year
Tax paid
Exchange differences

At 31 December 2016

e

YR B AR (BisE9)
FRAZABRE
ZIEERA
BAHE

EHEE

RZE—"E+-A=1—H

2016

S AN
Temporary
differences of
deferred

revenue
BIEWAZ
ThrER
HK$'000
FAET

3,018
153
(177)
2,994

EEBEEE

2016
—TRF

Fair value

adjustments

arising from

Revaluation  acquisitionof  Withholding
of properties subsidiaries taxes

it

=N
WEEf  DTERER BB @t
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TET
1378 1,047 4% 2921
= 12,821 3,658 16479
= (1430) (40) (1470)
- - (467) (467)
= = 11 11
1378 12438 3,058 17474
MERSEEERAR —EB—LFFR
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24. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied
if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. For the Group'’s subsidiaries established
in Mainland China, the applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The Group
is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed
by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At the end of the reporting period, in respect of certain subsidiaries
of the Group established in Mainland China, no deferred tax has
been recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on
the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding taxes. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, it is not probable that
these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable
future. The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred
tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately
HK$2,408,000 at 31 December 2017 (2016: HK$3,083,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

Tax losses not recognised

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unrecognised
tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately HK$2,868,000
(2016: HK$1,989,000), subject to the agreement by the Hong Kong
Inland Revenue Department, that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits arising in Hong Kong of the
companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not
been recognised in respect of these losses as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and/or due to
the unpredictability of future taxable profit streams of the companies
in which the losses arose, and it is currently not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can
be utilised.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

24, IE

FERLTE (45)

RIBEFP B RERERE - NP AAK
ZHNE B EMEIMNGEE T IR B EIZ10%
TENHREAH - BEAETE ST N\F—
A—HREXR  WERAR-ZEZT+F+=
B=+—HZ2BMELER - WAER
B IME B E T RERE R B EN T K
o BRI SR ARE 2 FENHE R - KEER
R B A Y 37 2 B B8 2~ B3 R B 2R A 5% 3%
0% By BEZEENF—H—HE ' K~
SEERZENFERAST ZHEA

FREABFED K2 IS TENF -

R EMEEER  AEBWERLERF
B NS 2 FWE“T*EMM@
AR BT Az BHRERECHIE -
RARIEERAE  RA] LARK - %ﬁW?
PDEITKAJRED IRZERF - RZF—
#+=-_A=+—80 - ﬁ&¢lmmzm
BARKENRB SR ERBEAHLD
240800078 Jt ( = & — 7N £ : 3,083,000 78
70) MW ERERIEERIBAE -

ARRBNE F A E B RR A B S 1 2 £ A
B/ -

AERNB AR

RIREHEEER  AEERBBELR
TSR B TA 5 18 492,868,00078 7T (Z & — /X
F 11,989,000/ 7C) © AJEREIEIREEH

BELEBRARZRKKERTEN - M
FRERGRERA - ARZEEERED
E-RAFHEBSERZMBARRE %2
B A 5% 55 B I 2 B R 2R B SR B A SRR 8
AT TR LA 23RBS SR AR T AR BE B B AR R
m A A B TR IREE - MU AZE
EIEERRERIAEE
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25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. [RA
Shares %15
2017 2016
—E—tF AN
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET T
Authorised: SRR
1,000,000,000 (2016: 1,000,000,000) 1,000,000,000H§(: T —7NHF -
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 1,000,000,0000% ) &A%
EE0.10B T2 EdR 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BT REER
244,194,198 (2016: 244,194,198) 244,194,198 ( — T — N4 -
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 244.,194,1980% ) T A%
E{H0.10/8 7T iR 24,419 24419

A summary of movements in the Company’s issued ordinary share
capital, share premium account and shares held under the restricted
share award scheme is as follows:

Ordinary shares

RZE-~"E-F-H

BEARHROREHENE

w58 7
R=E—7"E+-A=1+-A

RAZE-+5-A-H
BEARHRHREHERE

i 7
REE—+E+-A=1-H

At 1 January 2016

Vesting of shares held under the
restricted share award scheme

At 31 December 2016 and at
1 January 2017

Vesting of shares held under the
restricted share award scheme

At 31 December 2017

AARERTEBRA - RIEERRR
5 5 R R SRR A B 2 IR 5 B B
= -

Shares held

under the

Number of Share premium  restricted share

sharesinissue  Issued capital account  award scheme

REERH

gEf BEfT kit ROZB:TE
R#E s BEE  KEZRE szt
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS000
Thr AL THL Thn
244194198 24419 38493 (3019 59893
= = = 572 512
244194198 24419 38493 (2447) 60465
- - - 58 58
244194198 24419 38493 (1919 60993

SRR EEER AR T —tFFR
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25.

26.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share options
issued under the scheme are included in note 26 to the financial
statements.

Restricted shares

Details of the Company’s restricted share award scheme and the
restricted shares held under the scheme are included in note 27 to
the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme for the primary
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. The share
option scheme entitles the holders of share options granted under
the scheme to subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company at any
time during the exercisable periods of the options. Share options
do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at
shareholders’ meetings.

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2012 Scheme”).
Eligible participants of the 2012 Scheme include the Company’s
directors (whether executive or non-executive and whether
independent or not), other employees of the Group, consultants or
advisers of the Group, suppliers of goods or services to the Group,
customers of the Group, the Company’s shareholders, and any other
person, at the sole discretion of the directors. The 2012 Scheme
became effective on 19 November 2012 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that
date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the 2012 Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares issuable under
share options to each eligible participant in the 2012 Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

25.

26.

A (4%)

B
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Share options granted to a director or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or to any of their associates, are subject to approval in
advance by the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their associates,
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time or
with an aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s shares
at the date of grant) in excess of HKS5 million, within any 12-month
period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general

meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 10 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HKS1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, and commences after
certain vesting period and ends on a date which is not later than 10
years from the date of offer of the share options or the expiry date of

the 2012 Scheme, whichever is earlier.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors,
but may be at least the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price
of the Company's shares on the date of offer of the share options; (i)
the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company's shares for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii)

the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

No share option of the Company was outstanding, granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the current and prior years
and subsequent to the end of the reporting period under the 2012

Scheme.

26. BRERTEI(E)

BYARAZESTHEIERR  AWEFE
MM EA LT ZEBREASTIGBILIEHR
TTERHUE o - MER+ & A 5
BRTARBDEERRIBLIFATES
FRFEABBEA L 2 ERBREBRAN
REPMERIEE 2 E#ITR00.1% - KB
B REGREARBRONBRER
HBEHRZERAE)BRs0EET - AIA
ERERRAE EISIIRILE -

RER G 2 BRERTNIEEZ AL 108
MR - MERABINAKIETZERE
ARE - FIRLBREZTERHESE
o YHETHRBERRFAG  MERBH
TRERREEBREAHEATFH_-F
—ZFFEZHHA (ARPERE)

BREZTEERESEE - BTAER
TI=FRZERE  (ARARNIVIES
FERUE B BB P 2 TR B (DA R A
BN EERREE AR AER S BERR
At FHEWTHE © RGNARTRMDZEE -

ARBNRAFE R BEFE N RREHAHE
REARBMEEMNWRTE 2RE B
7 ERHAB KRR Z -~ —Fit8l
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27. RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 22 May 2008, the Company adopted a restricted share award
scheme (the “Award Scheme”) under which shares of the Company
(the “Awarded Shares”) may be awarded to selected employees
(including directors) of any members of the Group (the “Selected
Employees”) in accordance with the provisions of the Award Scheme
and an irrevocable trust (the “Trust”) was also established by the
Company for the purpose of the Award Scheme. The Award Scheme
became effective on the adoption date and, unless otherwise
terminated or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that
date. Further details of the Award Scheme are also set out in a circular
of the Company dated 29 April 2008.

The aggregate number of the Awarded Shares currently permitted
to be awarded under the Award Scheme throughout the duration
of the Award Scheme is limited to 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company from time to time. Subject to the aforesaid limit, the
maximum number of the Awarded Shares which may be awarded
under the Award Scheme shall not exceed 2% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the year end date of the preceding
financial year of the Company for any 12-month period up to and
including the date of the relevant grant. The maximum number of
the Awarded Shares which may be awarded to a Selected Employee
under the Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the year end date of the preceding
financial year of the Company.

Pursuant to the rules governing the operation of the Award Scheme
(the “Scheme Rules”), the board of directors of the Company (the
“Board”) shall select the Selected Employees and determine the
number of the Awarded Shares to be awarded. The Board shall cause
to pay the trustee of the Trust (the “Trustee”) the purchase price and
the related expenses from the Company’s resources for the shares of
the Company to be purchased by the Trustee. The Trustee is a third
party appointed by the Board for the administration of the Award
Scheme. The Trustee shall purchase from the market such number of
shares of the Company awarded as specified by the Board and shall
hold such shares until they are vested in accordance with the Scheme
Rules.
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27. RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

(CONTINUED)

When a Selected Employee has satisfied all vesting conditions, which
might include service and/or performance conditions, specified by
the Board at the time of making the award and become entitled to
the shares of the Company forming the subject of the award, the
Trustee shall transfer the relevant vested Awarded Shares to that
employee at no cost. The Selected Employee however is not entitled
to receive any income or distribution, such as dividend derived
from the unvested Awarded Shares allocated to him/her. The said
income or distributions shall be used by the Trustee for payment of
the Trustee’s fees or expenses or for purchase of further shares of the
Company for the Award Scheme.

The Trustee shall not exercise the voting rights in respect of any
shares of the Company held under the Trust, including, inter alia, the
Awarded Shares and further shares of the Company acquired out of
the income derived therefrom.

The fair value of the Awarded Shares awarded was based on the
market value of the Company’s shares at the grant date and the
Group recognised an equity-settled share-based payment expense
of HK$691,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
HK$713,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2017, 397,000 Awarded Shares
(2016: 362,000 Awarded Shares) were vested and transferred to
certain executive directors of the Company and certain employees
of the Group. During the year ended 31 December 2017, upon the
vesting of certain Awards Shares, the carrying value of the shares held
under the restricted share award scheme account of the Company
was reduced by HK$528,000 (2016: HK$572,000) and such amount
was transferred to the share-based payment reserve of the Company.

27. BRH| R RE 8 (&)

FREEREBENESSNIEL BRI
EZ—SBIGNT (E BERS R RK
BN LEMTIBRERER AR
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XHEBAZKA B2 EAR TR ©

ERATEREBERFE AR BEMARK
7 (Eh 25 2R RO RARMES 2 B
WAIB B 2 B AR R RIAD ) IT AR RAE -

HE-_ZT—+&+-A=+—HILtEE -
EREERRG 2 AFEZRART KRG R
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EEE DARR D X 26910008 T (=ZF
—NEE 7130008 7T )5t E o
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27. RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME
(CONTINUED)

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no ordinary
shares of the Company were acquired by the Trustee for the Award

Scheme.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, no Awarded Shares were

awarded.

The following Awarded Shares were awarded and outstanding under
the Award Scheme during the year:

At 1 January R—HA—H
Awarded during the year FAKT

Vested during the year FRHE
Forfeited during the year ERRI

At 31 December R+-A=+—H

Out of the total of 9,970,000 Award Shares awarded in prior years,
3,500,000 Awarded Shares were awarded to the executive directors of

the Company.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had 735,000 Awarded Shares unvested under the Award Scheme,
which represented approximately 0.3% of the Company'’s ordinary

shares in issue at that date.
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27.

2017 2016
—E-tf —FRF
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
fair value unvested fair value unvested
at grant date Awarded at grant date Awarded
per share Share per share Share
R A RRE R E
SRmE AERER STl REE R
FHAFE Ro#E FHARATE !
HK$ HKS
B BT
213 1,162,000 197 1,226,000
- = 243 370,000
1.96 (397,000) 1.84 (362,000)
2,62 (30,000) 2.38 (72,000)
2.21 735,000 213 1,162,000

AR IR A0 SR B =t & (4F)

REBEE-_ZT—+tFR-_ZFE—X "F+=-A8
=t+—HILFE AL ERERTZ
BAKRDT L@
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g BHER T SRR -

FR - RESEEEHERERERTEZ
RERMHAT :

RBEFE - EH L 24 $£9,970,0008% 52 E)
arR - B RZANAR#FTE B 1% 3,500,000
A% S2EIAEAD o

REE SRR ER - ARAIREKE
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28.

29.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 70 to 71 of the financial
statements.

The Group's contributed surplus originally represented the excess
of the aggregate net asset value of the subsidiaries acquired at the
date of their acquisition pursuant to the Group reorganisation on 29
April 1998, over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange therefor.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for wholly-foreign-
owned enterprises, a portion of the profits of the Group’s subsidiaries,
which are established in the PRC and Macau, has been transferred to
reserve funds which are restricted as to use. The subsidiaries are not
required to effect any further transfer when the amount of the reserve
funds reaches 50% of their registered capital.

The Group's goodwill reserve represents goodwill which arose on
the acquisition of certain subsidiaries in prior years and remains
eliminated against consolidated reserves, as further explained in note
14 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

In prior year, the Group acquired the entire equity interest in PCL.
Platinum are engaged in the provision of HRM solutions specifically
designed to meet the business and regulatory requirements in
the PRC. The Group has acquired Platinum to further expand its
application services business and to extend the existing product
offering. The purchase consideration, including the Cash Adjustment
(as defined in the announcement of the Company dated 21
December 2015), of approximately HK$ 147,002,000 for the acquisition
was payable in five tranches in form of cash.

28.

29.
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29. BUSINESS COMBINATION (CONTINUED)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Platinum as at

the date of acquisition were as follows:

29. ¥HE0F(H&)

BT :

HERNBBRZABRIEERRBZAF

Fair value

recognised on

acquisition

g2

ZAFE

HK$'000

FHERx

Property, plant and equipment (note 12) M - R Rk (faE12) 479

Cash and bank balances Be MIRTTH 46,032

Trade receivables FEWE Z IR 7,144

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TEFRIE - e REAMEWGIE 1,797

Deferred tax assets (note 24) R TEE 2= (F5E24) 3018

Other payables and accruals EAh e3R8 R BRI IR (13,781)

Deferred revenue RIEW A (9,620)

Due to contract customers ENEHEFHRIE (11,331)

Tax payable FES A IE (1,451)

Deferred tax liabilities (note 24) EERTEE & (Fi5E4) (3658)

Total identifiable net assets at fair value BATHERE 2 A # R EE R ERTE 18,629

Goodwill on acquisition (note 14) Iihg 2 B (Msk14) 89,910

Other intangible assets arising from the acquisition (note 15) U BEFT1S < E bR & 2= (FH3E15) 51,284

Deferred tax liabilities arising from the acquisition (note 24)  UWBBFAT1S 2 IEERIIA & & (M 5E24) (12,821)

Total cost of the business combination ES A= Xoiwd I #iN 147,002
Satisfied by: AT

Cash Be 132,207

Acquisition consideration payable (note 23) FERTUCEE R B (FEE23) 14,795

Total cost of the business combination EEE P2 B 147,002

RUE B 2 R E 5 BR 7k K H i i U 708
NFAE D B 47,144,000 7T ]2 1,797,000 7
oo BRIWE SRR REMEWRGIEZBE

The fair values of the trade receivables and other receivables as at
the date of acquisition amounted to HK$7,144,000 and HK$1,797,000,
respectively. The gross contractual amounts of trade receivables and
other receivables were HK$ 11,815,000 and HK$ 1,797,000, respectively, #9458 Bl A 11,815,000 7T & 1,797,0007%
of which trade receivables of HK$4,671,000 were expected to be 70 HAREWE 58R3K4,671,000/8 LB ET
uncollectible. ALl E o
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29. BUSINESS COMBINATION (CONTINUED)

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$955,000 for this
acquisition. These transaction costs had been expensed and were
included in general and administrative expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Included in the goodwill of HK$89,910,000 recognised above was the
value of expected synergies arising from combining operations of the
Group and Platinum. None of the goodwill recognised was expected
to be deductible for income tax purposes.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of

29. XHE0F(H&)

R £2 B Bt b TR W B E A 32X 5 K AR 955,00078
T ZERGRAE X HLRERABER
—MRRITERFA SRR

3l B R 2 289,910,000 TT B HE A 45
AAEEENS 7 FE R mE £ TR R K
HEE -  EERZEEBEEEIA AER
HFTSFRFLIA -

EFRRRENRBARZRSRES TN

subsidiaries in the prior year was as follows: K
HK$'000
FAT
Cash consideration paid BEeRE (132,207)
Cash and bank balances acquired BUHEIR & MIRIT4E AR 46,032
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included in FARERDFERERECHER
cash flows from investing activities LR\ EER L FE (86,175)

Since the acquisition, Platinum contributed HK$46,394,000 to the
Group's revenue and HK$11,822,000 to the consolidated profit for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the prior
year, the revenue of the Group and the profit of the Group for the
prior year would had been HK$258,862,000 and HK$48,243,000,
respectively.

BRERR  HeBE_T—X~F+=A
=+ —HLEFERAEER ZWAREES &
)5 Bl & B 46,394,000 7% 7T K 11,822,000 7
7TE o

HEHEREFFVTK  EFEFEAE
B 2 W A K AN 62 B 4 1) B 95 Rl 258,862,000
57T ) 48,243,000/ 7T °
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30. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a) Aslessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 13) under
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for
terms ranging from one to two years. The terms of the leases
generally also require the tenants to pay security deposits and
provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the then
prevailing market conditions.

At 31 December 2017, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with
its tenants falling due as follows:

—FR
F_EFNF(BRERRF)

Within one year
In the second to fifth years, inclusive

(b) Aslessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties under operating
lease arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for
terms ranging from one to four years (2016: one to four years).

At 31 December 2017, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling
due as follows:

—FR
F_EFNF(BERERERF)

Within one year
In the second to fifth years, inclusive
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30. KREHELH

(a) FRHBEA

AEERBELZHELHHERRE
WEME)  BEZHEBNF—=
METE - HERR—BRITERKBEL
XNFRERE  YARBERRTH
AEHABEE -

RZT—+F+=-A=+—8B K&
EREEEEPER N NIHRER
ZAAREHEERE MR BRERZ

HERSLELOT -
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RE
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FHT
2,797 1,908
2,089 34
4,886 1,942

(b) EREEA

ARERBEEEEZHAERET
WAEME - HENEFHT 2B
NF—EME(ZB—AE : —E0
%) 0

RN-ZZT—+F+=-_A=+—8 &&
BRI H T 51 HARR [ i 2 T ] s A
EHEMRBZEN ZRERASRE

M -
2017 2016

—e—tx | =% A&
HK$'000 HK$'000

FH THT

5,754 5426

2,998 9,055

8,752 14,481
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31.

32.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

31. AREE

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided RFEHREAEER - WRRMBHRERAIE
for in the financial statements were as follows: LB E 2 IABENT

Guarantees have been given to certain banks by the Company for RARRIEMAREBAEZETEAMBES
performance bonds/guarantees issued by the banks in relation MIRTTELEZBORE ERAE TR
to certain contracts undertaken by the Group amounting to TR 5 827,800,000 7T ( —F — /N 4F ¢
HK$27,800,000 (2016: HK$27,800,000), of which HK$20,537,000 (2016: 27,800,00078 7T ) Z &R » E 20,537,000

HK$19,682,000) were utilised as at 31 December 2017.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

TT(ZZ—7N4F 19682000/ ) BN =8
—+FE+=-A=+—HBHH -

32. BEALRS

In addition to the transactions, arrangements and balances detailed BRUHEFBRREMEGFLA RS - &
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had the following PERAEARIN  REBRFRNGHET TSI

transactions with related parties during the year:

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

BEALRS

AEETEEBEABZMEIT

2017 2016
S5d =

HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx TAT

Short term employee benefits HR B EA 9,883 9,969
Equity-settled share-based payment expense ARt 4 E AR (9 AP S 479 454
Post-employment benefits BEER 12 4B A 87 87
Total compensation paid to key management SNEEEBABZ
personnel & BB 10,449 10,510
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 7 to the EEMecE—PHEBHIRITBRRE
financial statements. MI5E7 o
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 33. B IEZDE
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial SHEANMBETANREHEAEER ZKE
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (ER NN
2017 —E—tF
Financial assets BEEE

Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss
RAHERBRAR
LBBEE
Designated Available-
as such for-sale
upon initial Held for Loansand financial
recognition trading  receivables asset Total
ROSRRR LEV e
EEfzRR BEEE eI HBEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR ThR ThR TER TER

Available-for-sale investment ARHERE - - - 1,780 1,780
Trade and bill receivables BN E SRR EREE - - 41,363 - 41,363
Deposits and other receivables e REMEYWTIE - - 4,804 - 4,804
Financial assets at fair value through RATEEERARL
profit or loss H%EE 2,544 10,857 - = 13,401
Pledged bank deposits BEARIER - - 1,071 = 1,071
Cash and cash equivalents RERERRLEE - = 246,547 S 246,547
2,544 10,857 293,785 1,780 308,966
Financial liabilities =R

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost

DU 68 pR 2R

SRz

S S=Ri

HK$’000

TFHET

Trade payables FERTE SRH 25,306
Other payables H eI FRIR 29,874
Financial liabilities included in accruals SRR RIE WS A& 3,980
59,160
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 33. I ITEZDE(E)
(CONTINUED)
2016 —E-RE
Financial assets MBEE

Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss

RATES

Designated Available-

assuch for-sale

upon initial Held for Loans and financial
recognition trading receivables asset Total

il Bk Al E
EEEZR FEEE e HBEE @5t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Tin Tin Tidn Tin Tin
Avallable-for-sale investment EHERE = = = 1880 1,880
Trade and bills receivables RN E SRR ERSE = = 44388 - 44388
Deposits and other receivables e REMEKFIE - - 5,795 - 5,795

Financial assets at fair value BATELESEAR L
through profit or loss HBEE 2531 9490 - = 12,021
Pledged bank deposits BERRTRER - - 21,885 - 21,885
Cash and cash equivalents BeRERELEE = = 229404 = 229404
2531 9490 301472 1,880 315373
Financial liabilities g =R

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
DA% SRR A
FIRZ
WFaE
HK$'000
TFET
Trade payables FEE SRR 21,246
Other payables E At T FIE 42,220
Financial liabilities included in accruals ST AR RIAE S A& 4208
67,674
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34. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the
Group's financial assets and liabilities reasonably approximated to

their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged bank deposits, trade and bills receivables,
deposits and other receivables, trade payables, other payables
and financial liabilities included in accruals approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these

instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used

to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of listed equity and debt investments are based on

quoted market prices.

The fair value of an available-for-sale investment is based on available

market price.
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34. IR TEAFERAFLESHE

B

RBERREER  AEBMBEENA
B RAEREE AT ESEWARS -

ERECHERENFRARSEE &
RRITHER  BRBEIERARERER
e hEMEYGIR  BNESERR  H
il FE A SRR M AT A BRI 2 M AE 2
AFEREKEERS  TEHARZST
HEZBHBEERE -

MEAERABL ATENRERRSS
ZERERNR D2 TRD TASHEAR -
RIS B I AR ERR © T3A
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34. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 34. IR TEAFERAFESEHRE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of
the Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:
As at 31 December 2017

B(&|)

DESRRE
TRETAEEHBTAZ AFEIES

ARIRAE

BAVEBZEE :
R-F—tF+=-A=1—H

Fair value measurement using

AHEHERANTZE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
inactive observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ER EATEE  EXTUEE
mEHR{E BARE BARE
(%18) (5%28) (%38) it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET TR TR
Available-for-sale investment: ARINERE
Club membership debenture eHMesEs - 1,780 = 1,780
Financial assets at fair value through BATEEEEAE L
profit or loss: MBEE
Listed equity investrments LTRARE 10,857 - - 10,857
Debt investment EHRE 2,544 - = 2,544
13,401 1,780 - 15,181
As at 31 December 2016 R-E—NF+-H=+—H

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) el3) Total
R EATBR iz
e EN ¢ BAEE
(£1E) (%2E) (%3E) a5t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
THT TEL THET THT
Available-for-sale investment: ARHMERE :
Club membership debenture efeEEs = 1880 = 1,880
Financial assets at fair value through EATEEERARL
profit or loss: HBEE
Listed equity investments LTRARE 9490 - - 9490
Debt investment EHRE 2531 - - 2531
12021 1880 - 13901
SRR EEER AR ZE—LFFR
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B35 R 2% B (AR

31 DECEMBER 2017 —_Z—+HF+=A=+—H

34. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Liabilities measured at fair value:

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value

as at 31 December 2017 and 2016.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for

both financial assets and financial liabilities (2016: Nil).

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments include pledged bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to finance the Group's operations. The Group
has various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade and bills
receivables, deposits and other receivables, trade and other payables,
financial liabilities included in accruals, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, and an available-for-sale investment, which

mainly arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, equity price risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for

managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.
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34.

35.

BB TAQXFERAFEERE
B (&)

AFESHRE(E)
RAVESEZAM

AEBR-_ZTE—+tFR-_ZF—X~F+=A
—t+—BUETMEAFEFEZT KR

& e

FAFIBEF2EZEMEMBEER
MBABERFEFEES - TEQFER
EBARELEIE (T —RF: ®)-

MEEREEEFERBER

AEBzTEVBTABEEERRITR
FARBREREFRREEE - WFEHHT
AZT2RRNRAKEZEXBRE - KN
SEERMERMBEERAE  WEK
BHERLEERE - BE RHE MR
B BNEZRAREMEMNKE - FFA
et RE B AR RATFELBESA
ReMBEER -—HARHERE 0%
MBEENABIRAXGEERRES

AEBMBTRAEEZI2RRANEME
B ANERRR - EERER - RAERRR
EnBECREAR ZBFSEHIFRETX
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

35. M EREE B RREEK(E)

Interest rate risk T 2= & bz
AEBREMSHNEEEMAT ZERE
DHEAEEFRNBITIRBZESHA R L
ZIEE MIRTTIERAR -

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s cash at banks and bank deposits with
floating interest rates.

TRENEMBEMBEGERTZ TN
T AKEZBRHANGE N (EERF B HI R IR
THRBMRTESAEZE) BN ERAER
REHBRESH  HRIEE -

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact on
floating rate bank balances and bank deposits).

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) in
in basis points profit before tax

E3higmm, BRB AT R
(H4) i/ (Bd)

HK$'000
THET
2017 —E—+F
Hong Kong dollar BT (25) (173)
United States dollar eIV (25) (203)
RMB AR (25) (216)
Hong Kong dollar BIT 25 173
United States dollar EIH 25 203
RMB AR 25 216
2016 2T
Hong Kong dollar BIT (25) 212)
United States dollar ETT (25) (129)
RMB AR (25) (273)
Hong Kong dollar BT 25 212
United States dollar ET 25 129
RMB AREE 25 273

There is no impact on the Group’s equity except on the retained

profits.

BRI - HARERA B
@ o
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 35. B EREEEERBKE)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Foreign currency risk S [ B
The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures AEEEHRZERKRR - WRREER
mainly arise from revenue generated and/or costs and expenses BEREEBUERAZEMNEEEUININE
incurred by operating units in currencies other than the units’ BRI WA R, HELEZERARAS
functional currencies.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of TRESNEMEEMEHRBFIE BN
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB T NEBRHERBEE B 2BV ADS
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's MAEKEERBEATEEZE)WAR
profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets KEIER R[S IR B E) o RRRIRE -

and liabilities).

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) in
in exchange rate profit before tax

ExtH A BRBE AR

(FBg) i/ (GRS

% HK$’000
FET
2017 —E—tF
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB ST HARBEE 5 (656)
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB BT HAREAHE (5) 656
2016 —ERF
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB WS TH ARBEE 5 23
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB WS THARBHE (5) (23)
There is no impact on the Group’s equity except on the retained BRARBEE TSN - 2N 5 B AR AN 48 4 {E o] 52
profits. 2
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 35. BIEREEEERBEK(E)

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk

The Group primarily trades on credit terms with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that most customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are to a certain extent subject to
certain credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored by the Group’s management on an ongoing basis.

The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets, which comprise
pledged bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, debt investment
and deposits and other receivables, mainly arises from default of
the counterparties, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group primarily trades on credit terms with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.

Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/counterparty,
by geographical region and by industry sector. At the end of the
reporting period, the Group had certain concentration of credit risk
as 22.8% (2016: 28.5%) of the total trade and bills receivables of the
Group were due from certain departments/units of the Government
of the HKSAR, the Group's largest customer.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to credit
risk arising from trade and bills receivables are disclosed in note 18 to
the financial statements.

EERE

AEETRERAREBREZF=ZTR
ERERETRS - RBRAKEZHEK -
REDBRBREEGRRETRIZEP &
XREE LWARRETEEEZER - It
S BRBHRZIMAZ AEBERERE

.
B

AEBEEMPMBEE  BRCERRTE
R REMFRARECEE  BHERENUR
e hEMREFEZEERRTIERA
RBHEFELD  MESARBERLEFT
H2fRmEfE -

HRARBETERRANGEERTFZE=
TRERGRETRS  WERERR -

SESTRBREBRER HFHiRERIER
TESPEIDERE - NIHEHBLALER -
HRAEERKE SRR L EREE AR
FRE28%( ZZF—7R1F 1 285%) BEKES
BRATREEF(AEBRARF)E TEB
P/ BZHE MAEEEAZ—TEE
SRR -

BEAEBEREEWE SRR M EREZERT
EBZZEERBZE—FTTEEDMERE -
R FSREMI 1845, -

MEEREEERAR —E—tFFR
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 35. M EREREBERBEKE)

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Equity price risk IR A B 4% R B

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities AR 7S (B 4 B B 2 15 FR PR AR SR 48 SR (| Al 35
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and the HFEEFCERRAFZSF 2 X FEREK
value of individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity price 2R o REEZ RAGRERRNEZ
risk arising from individual equity investments classified as financial E—+FRE-RFT+_A=+—8%
assets at fair value through profit or loss — listed equity investments in BREARATEKERS AR MFEE
Hong Kong (note 21) as at 31 December 2017 and 2016. The Group's — BB LTIRARE (KtaE21) 2 @51 R4
listed equity investments are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong "E - AEEZ FTRAIEEREEBH S
Kong Limited and are valued at quoted market prices at the end of RGFABRAR LT RREHEEER
the reporting period. EMIGHRENE -

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10% change TREINEMEEMEH BT TIE BN
in the fair values of the Group's listed equity investments, with all TRARFHEMMRBZER - LAEKREEAS
other variables held constant and before any impact on tax, based on A% AEEEMRARERRE RS
their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period. EHZRATFETEE 0% - BEEE 28

Carrying
amount of Increase/
equity (decrease) in
investments profit before tax

BRAREZ BRBE AR
BREE 2 ORd)

HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FExT
2017 —E—tF
Equity investments listed in Hong Kong: EER LM zRAEE -
— Held-for-trading — FEBE 10,857 1,086
2016 —ERF
Equity investments listed in Hong Kong: ERB LI ZRAIRE -
— Held-for-trading — BEEE 9,490 949
There is no impact on the Group's equity except on the retained FRARBB R FISN - B AN B IR AN 4 {0 52
profits. &
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to ensure there are adequate funds to meet
its contractual payments for financial liabilities in the short and long
term. In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and bank balances, and time deposits
deemed adequate by management to finance the Group's operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Cash flows
of the Group are closely monitored by senior management on an

ongoing basis.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities at the end of the
reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is

as follows:

Trade payables

Other payables

Financial liabilities included in
accruals

Guarantees given to banks for
performance bonds/guarantees
issued in relation to certain
contracts under taken
by the Group

FERE SRR

HA RN FIR

ATARERT OB Z B 75
afE

RAKEAZRET
AHRELEN
RE/ERM@RTT
R IR

35.

MR EREERRRBRA)

REBE S E

AEEZ BRREREREHES AERN
HERRERHZMBABEAONK - BE
RBETERE  AEEERREREE
ERRERREERASELEMFTRS MR
TRHBEEREFSR  LRERRERER
BERZTE SREEERETIESR
AEEZRERE

RBEHRREER  AEERBESORN
BNt E 2B REDRERNT

2017
—e—t%

Lessthan3 3 toless than
On demand months 12 months Total

S
REREE LPR=EA T-EAR st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FTET TET TET
22,251 2,223 832 25,306
- 29,874 - 29,874
- 3,980 - 3,980
20,537 - - 20,537
42,788 36,077 832 79,697
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 35. IRREEEERBER(E)

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

REBE S mEE (&)

Liquidity risk (continued)

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

Lessthan3 3 toless than
On demand months 12 months Total
==
RERER PR=EA +ZEAA F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT TAT FAT FAT
Trade payables BRE SRR 19,084 1222 940 21,246
Other payables HA R FRIR = 42,220 = 42,220
Financial liabilities included in FT BT SRIE 2 B 75
accruals B& - 4208 = 4,208
Guarantees given to banks for BAEEAE AT
performance bonds/guaranteesissued A& #)E HHEL)
in relation to certain RE /BRI AERIT
contracts undertaken R ER
by the Group 19,682 - - 19,682
38,766 47,650 940 87,356
Capital management EXRERE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders' value.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 December
2017 and 2016.

Capital of the Group comprises all components of shareholders’
equity.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 DECEMBER 2017 —_Z—+HF+=ZA=+—H

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 36. A2 BBIEAR R &R

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company RFEREEEBRRAUBRRAERZE
at the end of the reporting period is as follows: B

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETB R R E 183,247 125,019
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables TR RIE K E At FE MR IE 251 251
Cash and cash equivalents ReRERRSEE 3,117 4,169
Total current assets MEVEERE 3,368 4,420
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Accruals FERTRIB 365 406
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEZRE 3,003 4,014
Net assets BEFE 186,250 129,033
EQUITY s
Issued capital B BT 24,419 24419
Share premium account &R ERR 38,493 38,493
Shares held under the restricted R I% A PR B A 15 2 Eh T 3

share award scheme IEX=pdi ) (1,919) (2,447)
Share-based payment reserve (note) AR A R et s (Bt ) 2,908 2,745
Retained profits (note) RE & F (MI5E) 93,253 41,616
Proposed final and special dividends (note) PR AR B R AR B (BRE) 29,096 24,207
Total equity AR 186,250 129,033

Bl ZmEEERA A —T—LFFIR

2017
—E—+tF

HK$’000
FERT

2016
ZE—RF
HK$'000
FHT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 36. AD TR IER(E)

COMPANY (CONTINUED)
Note: BfsE -
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: AARBERELNT -

Proposed
Share-based final and
Contributed payment Retained special
surplus reserve profits dividends Total
RATR BRARE K
BARER it RE R HRIRE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THER THER THER THERT THER
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—"E—F—H - 2,604 17,785 16920 37,309
Profit for the year REFEH - - 64,988 = 64,988
Vesting of shares held under the WRIRA B IR 7 S2Eh 5
restricted share award scheme HERDZEE = (572) = = (572)
Share award arrangements Rt 12 B 22 bk - 713 - - 713
Final 2015 dividend declared FR-ZE—AFRHARE - - (15) (16,920) (16,935)
Interim 2016 dividend ZE-RERHRE = (16,935) - (16935)
Proposed final and special 2016 dividends BR=—T— " FREARERIRE = = (24,207) 24,207 =
At 31 December 2016 and RZB-—F"ETZA=1T—HK
at 1 January 2017 RZZE—tF—A—H = 2,745 41,616 24,207 68,568
Profit for the year RERH - - 104,980 - 104,980
Vesting of shares held under the BB BRI L@t &)
restricted share award scheme BERG 2 5RE - (528) - - (528)
Share award arrangements M fn R Bh 2Bk = 691 - - 691
Final and special 2016 dividends declared BR=ZT—ANFARARERIRE - - (20 (24,207) (24,227)
Interim and special 2017 dividends ZE—tFPHRERIRE - - (24,227) = (24,227)
Proposed final and special 2017 dividends BR-ZS—tFERERERIRS - - (29,096) 29,096 -
At 31 December 2017 RZF—tF+=A=t+—H = 2,908 93,253 29,096 125,257

The Company'’s contributed surplus originally represented the excess of the
aggregate net asset value of the subsidiaries acquired at the date of their
acquisition pursuant to the Group reorganisation on 29 April 1998, over the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor.

KRB ZHABBRERERBEN - ANANFEA
“TABRZEEER  ERESMBARZAH
ZEMBARZRAEFEBL AR BIEREA
w2 EE

Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, a company may make distributions to its
members out of the contributed surplus in certain circumstances.

B—NWN\—FBREQRRE  RARETERTA
A BBRABRIEH DK ©

37. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #EB IR R

BExgnX T /\F=A+=A#ERK
TP ERE -

37.

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors on 13 March 2018.

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES
Y= Fff &

31 DECEMBER 2017 —Z—t & +=-A=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REWE
Attributable
interest of
the Group
AEEEMN
Location - EZESE
1. Units 1,2and 3 on 11t Floor a5 Industrial Long term lease 100%
Westlands Centre 08 TI%HA REIMEE
No. 20 Westlands Road R 2058
Quarry Bay R L
Hong Kong 11181~ 2R3=
2. Unit No. A1 on Level 21 PEARKME([HE])  Commerdial Long term lease 100%
Golden Eagle International Plaza LERA [EES:E REIMEE
No. 89 Hanzhong Road FRm
Jianye District e
Nanjing B R 8O5R
Jiangsu Province & BB b
People’s Republic of China (“PRC") QIBAME
3. UnitNo.Eon Level 12 s Commercial Long term lease 100%
And Car Parking Space No 44 s EE3;E REIMEE
Jinming Building RE®
No. 8 Zunyi South Road B BRS5R
Changing District RRARE
Shanghai NEEER
PRC REAL4455
4. Unit No. 2601 on Level 26 EF' Commercial Medium term 100%
South Tower ERE EEI;E lease
Guangzhou World Trade Centre Complex BN FHEE
Nos. 371-375 Huanshi East Road RIE
Dongshan District IR R 371 2375%;
Guangzhou BMtRE 50 KE
Guangdong Province 2]
PRC 261826012

M REGEEERART —T—tFFH
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
FEFEHBEE

UTNRAREBRERAMBRFEZREAREE
RBBZRE  TREAE TR ZEESCMBR
xR WDHEEWERDOR - IMEY MEKKLE
T ImARE A E R -

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial
statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out below. This summary
does not form part of the audited financial statements.

RESULTS E

Year ended 31 December

BET-A=1+-BHLEE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
“E—+&E —TF —T-1F —_T-@EF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TEL TEL TET TET
REVENUE WA 253,915 258699 219,087 210,762 187,110
Cost of sales and services SHE RARTEA A (110,424) (112,578) (100430) (101,043) (85,989)
Gross profit e 143,491 146,121 118,657 109,719 101,121
Otherincome and gains, net HABA Rz 558 9,264 5,194 9,383 11,640 9,657
Foreign exchange differences, net BN EEFE (905) (109) (9,073) (4,481) 7,555
Fair value gains/(losses), net: AFEKS/(BB)FE
Financial assets at fair value BAFELSBEARZ
through profit or oss HHEE 1,380 235 (58) (30) (171)
Investment properties REME 3,590 1,000 3200 8125 2,558
Selling and distribution expenses HERAHERAE (34,497) (33823) (22,980) (23124) (23,065)
General and administrative expenses, net —RRITHAY FE (55,453) (55.799) (48,231) (46529) (42,483)
Other expenses HibA% (6,024) (6,024) (821) = =
Finance costs B%ER - - - - (56)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBLAR A 60,846 56,795 50,077 55,320 55,116
Income tax expense FEHAY (6,517) (6451) (5974) (6,529) (6,970)
PROFIT FOR THE YEARATTRIBUTABLETO &7\ EH AJE(L
OWNERS OF THE PARENT REERR 54,329 50,344 44103 48,791 48,146
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at 31 December
R+=BA=1+—H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
ZE-tf —TRF —T-HF —T-NF —T-=%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tz T BT T T
TOTAL ASSETS EELE 608,150 604,172 539,702 522,640 511,637
TOTAL LIABILITIES SE%E (155,182) (162,690) (111,084) (99,823) (99219)
452,968 441482 428618 422817 412418
ANNUAL REPORT 2017 Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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